Torres Rojas, Genara pitd P B e

From: nancy.rich@zanett.com

Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2012 4.02 Pm

To: ) Duffy, Daniel

C¢: Totres Rojas, Genara, Van Duyne, Sheree
Subject: Freedom of Intormation Qnline Reguest Form
Information:

Iirst Name: Nancy

Last Name: Rich

Campany: Zanett

Mailing Address 1: 8532 Matlards Poin
Mailing Address 2;

City: Naples

Starte: FIL

Zip Code: 34114

Email Address: nancy.richgpzancir.eom
Phone: 239-283-1964

Required copiey of the records: Yis

List of specific record(s):

Zanett tikes to keep reconds of ur past propusils along with the competition’s proposals, would you be willing
to send methe compatitive bids for this procurentent Support for the Port Aathority's Hyperion-Based PRO
System, Please contitme this is the apprepriate way in which 1o make this formal cequest. Thank you, and
wishing vou and the Port Authority of NY NI much success Best Regards,




THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

Daniel D. Duffy
FOI Administrator

September 24, 2012

Ms. Nancy Rich
Zanett

8532 Mallards Points
Napies, FL 34114

Re: Freedom of Information Reference No. 13163
Dear Ms. Rich;:

This is a response to your May 10, 2012 request, which has been processed under the Port
Authority’s Freedom of Information Code (the “Code”) for copies of the bids related to the
procurement Support for the PA's Hyperion-Based PRO System.

Material responsive to your request and available under the Code can be found on the Port
Authority’s website at http://www.panynj.gov/corporate-information/foi/13165-C.pdf. Paper
copies of the available records are available upon request.

Certain material responsive to your request is exempt from disclosure pursuant to Exemptions
(1) and (2.b.) of the Code.

Pleasc refer to the above FOI reference number in any future correspondence relating to your
request.

Very truly yours,

Daniel D-Duffy
FOI Administrator

225 Park Avenue South
New York, , NY 10003
T:212 435 3642 F 212 435 7555


http://www.panvni.gOv/corporate-information/foi/l3165-C.Ddf

Technical Proposal

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

The Port Authority of NY & NJ

Support for the Port Authority’s
Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System

Submitted to:

Due Date:

Submitted by:

eMail submission
JSummerville@PANYNJ.org

April 17, 2012
2:00 p.m, Eastern Time

Chris Roth

NYC Division Manager
Computer Aid, Inc.

100 Park Avenue, Suite 1600
New York, NY 10017
Chris_Roth@compaid.com
NY (212) 551-3212

PA (610) 530-5197

Cell (610) 217-0529

ORIGINAL |
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The Port Authority of NY & NJ

Support for the Port Authority’s
Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System

April 17, 2012

This proposal includes data that shall not be disclosed outside The Port Authority of New York and New Jersey
{PANYNJ) and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed, in whole or in par, for any purpose other than to evaluate
this proposal. If, however, a contract is awarded to Computer Aid, Inc. (CAl) as a result of, or in connection with, the
submission of this dala, PANYNJ shall have the right to duplicate, use, or disclose the data to the extent provided in
the resulting contract. This restriction does not limit PANYNJ's right 1o use information contained in this data if it is
obtained from another source without restriction. The data subject to this restriction are clearly marked with the
statement; “Use or disclosure of data contained on this page are subject to the restriction on the title page of this
document.*

Submitted by
Corporate Office
Computer Aid, Inc.
1390 Ridgeview Drive
Altentown, PA 18104
www.compaid.com
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A. TRANSMITTAL LETTER

T ———
Compsrer Ald, Inc,
e .

April 20,2012

Pr. Contracls Specialist James Summervitle
Port Authority of New York and New Jersey
Isummerville &6 panyny.gov

Mr Summenville:;

Computer Ak (CAD) i pleased to submit this proposal 16 the Port Authority of NY & NI Tor Support of
your [ypetion-tused Budget PRO System. We have followed the fosmat stipulated in the RFDP and
provide the Tollewing in response 1o Seetion FLA: Letter of Transmittal,

a} tlams, physial address and URL address and an ongina) signature on tha L Eiter of Transsnal by 37 SuMMGIZET represenisive’

Corpurate Address: New Yok Office:
Compuier Aid. Inc. Computer Aid, Ine.
F390 Ridgoview Drive 100 Pl Avenue., Swite 1600
Adlentonwn, I'A TR 10 New York. NY 10017

www.comail.eom

b) Mame(s) 1Ce(s), emel Badvasses Ard Ietephovts abel(s) of ihe indhideas ) who are auharRed 1o negbiiate v ¢ -ecute the Comrac!
Chris Roth, NYC Division Manager el NY (212)551-3212
Chris_Rothécompatd.com PA{610) 530-5197

£} Hame, bile, emad sgdress and telephone number of two COMBC! Pervons (PAMAry AND baLhuR} 10 wah the Port Authorfy can adore s quessom of isuet
related 1o the Secuon Process Dotument.

Primary: Secondary:
Chits Rothe NYC Division NManiger : Dan Persa, General Manager
Chris_Rotbiiicompaid.com Dan Persaef compaid.com
Clell:

d) blame and address of propoved subconiactars, o any.

v Group, [oe. Vijay Kumar
379 Princeton-Flightstown Roacd (609) 371-940t exi 1]
Cranbury. NJ 08512 vijavkiiveroup.net
8] R corporaion (2) & satement of the names end sesaencey of &y oficers. and (b} a copy of B3 Cerufe sie of Incorporatien, wih & viten deckarasan sighed

by the secrefary of the ¢aporauzn, wath Lhe corporate seal adied Iherets, that the <20y fumsshed s 2 bue copy of the Certhcale of I orporaton a4 of the
datg of the openng of the Respens ey,

Astthony Salvaggio, President & CLO

Thomas A Salviggio. Secretary

Andrew P Nelntyre, Treasurer & CFO

We have Tollowed e fivmat ol response that you requested and belivve we have submilied a compliant,
responsive, and cllective solution for vour needs. We look forward to working with veu through the
procurcmenl process.

Computer Ad, 11,

Amtrew |+, Melntyre
1330 Redgeview Drve
Allenilown, PA 13104

Chief Financiul Uﬂ]u»\
T (610) 530-5000

- ;_”é h_pfo_égls-c{ivit;o ;_:ixgq‘lsri.ce eéz{ﬁme . i&'ﬁhm Budgg! « Defined Processas -‘Melrig_s F i610) 330-52908
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A.1 CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

A ——— ke
Compiter Add, Tne,
e

Aprii 20, 2012

Pr, Contracts Specinlist James Summerville
Port Anlhority of New York and New Jerscy
JSunsmerville @ punynj.gov

Mr. Surumerville:

As the Chief Financial Officer of Computer Aid, Inc., | declare the attached Certificaie of Incorporation
<opy 0 be o true gnd aecurate depiction of the original.

spegtfully,

ndrew I, Mclniy?
Chief Financial CHteer

Attachment

Comnprer A, Inc
1380 Ridgevies Drve
Aderdoats, PA 18104

High Pradilctiva s Fixed P_r"i_g:_g“-_On Timee Withinlg'uggg*t:_pélined Processes s Metrics E}Q{g; giggggg




THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ APriL 17, 2012
SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERKON-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM A3

Fieel thin - 2425 duy o

. Auguat o &
ABYICZAT'S ECC'T 0 Crnmonwealth et Penisyivang
s gk oo St
81 ~56 090 Thepartmes: o St

NSCO 52— (Raw, 8-771
(L oy mnnbering)

Fihig Fet: §7%
fip _ _ﬂj./;’(.'c_@,ﬂp ?7,,62,_,;4,

CONVEMONWEALTH OF PENNRYELL ANEA

Articies of b (IRt ot f e el a s
10e 97p41 41108 H.M SIVESEENT OF ..‘-.'l.-‘lﬁz ) .
Bamesiic Bwsiness Carparation COLPORATION REREAL Secretiny of the Commonwietiith -

) tRox for Certilication}

i vanphance with the reqpinements ol sevidon 2000 o the Business Corporadione Lo, e ol Ay 301930
LS oD 0 80 31200 il gadersigned, desiring o 3 ncarporated s g business corparation. herehy

curtilies reertifve shae

1o The e of e amrpardion Js:

. .COMPUTER AID, INC. R .
2, The location and post oflive address of b patial megistered offfce of the corporittion in tirs Cominon- -
weahidy e
— Box ’N}a R.D. ¥l e e e e e et . A — e 4 1 o i e .

wounrh, ISTRELT) ¥
s

Pevsehvania o 18930

P

Kintneraville,
kv, ) T T

Vo The conperaiinn s e poninet eder o Busieess Sorponation T of the Comtasonaeaith of Teainsgd
worzadet Do UFis Lol anag gauenpabses 01 Jnanpaeses.

To engage in and to do any lawful act concerning any or All lawful bualneso
for which corporations may be incorporated under said Business Corporation Law,
including but not limited to, manufacturing, processing, owning. using and dealing
in perscnal property ol <very class and description, engaging in rescarch and
furnishing sevvices and acquiring, owning using and disposing of

developmaent,
real preperty of any nature whatsocver.

boThe jerne for whah the corporation i5 o vt is: Perpetual e e e e
5. The avtregate nekeatwer of shiees sohich dhe conpreristian shtd) honve HITE O R TURR T HY s

Ten thousand 110,000) shares of common stock with a par value of One {§1.08)
Dollar per share. The Board of Uirectors shall have the full authority permit-
ted by taw Lo fix by resolution full, limited, multiple or fractional or no
voting rights, and such designations, preferences, gualitication privileges,
jimitations, restrictions, options, conversion rights, ard other special or "
relative rights of any class or any series of any class that may be desived.

peremptory rights are applicable to these autherized shares.

T T
TTER

AL

Centificnnon#s 97236971 Page b il
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AODAE 85 HUMBER AmD CLASS OF BnARS

Al ng FIREE and mpmir <7 Ayl
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N CTESTIMORNY, WHEREOF . 1he incarpormont; has sty saned and sealed these Arucles of fncot-
guit oy s cduvef L July___ _19_81
A Cipndon— ASLAL a — .. {SEAL)
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My Cenusean Erpaes Apnk 22, 193%

INSFRUUTIONS FOIU COMPLETION OF FORM:

A, For geteral pedraetions velating 1o the incorparitton of husiness corporations see 19 Pa, Code Ch. 35
prelating o baniness corpotations genceally), These instructions relite 10 such madters as corporale
aune, suivd putposes. teem ol existence, amhaonzed share stivctore wud relied authority of the
biard of direetors, incrusion of names of fitst direciors in the Araeles of Incorperation, optian «f
provisions on comualazivi; voting lor vleconon of directors, e,

B, Oneor moie corporations v natwal perseny of full dge may incorporate a business copueradion,

vl

¢ Opticaad provisiong verpaired o authorized by Jaw pary be added as Paragraphs 7. 8.9 .

1. The following shall accompiny thrs form:

Three coples ol Form DSCB:HCL-—<206 (Registry Suiement Demestic or Forcign Business
Carporithion).

i)

t2; Any nevessary copics of Form DSCB:17.2 (Consent 10 Appropriation of Nume} or Form DSCB:17.3
tCanseit 1o [se of Simitar Name),

f4] ARY Beoessary povenaneiol approvals,

HOCL 303 (13 Pa, 8 §1205) requires that he tncorporatars shall advedise ther ingention 1o fle or
' carpatabon shall nd-.-vrn;u:.ghe fihng of aticles of meorporation. Proofs of publicadon of such
advertising should not la defildd 20 thyrdppartment. but shoutd te diled with the minules of he

carporation, ) h

Cortifivetond 7230971 Pape 2ol 12
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THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ APRIL 17, 2012
SUPPGRT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM PRICE FORMS - B-1

B. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

e e e — —————————— ]
With over 30 years of experience providing quality IT services, CAl is uniquely qualified to provide the
services outlined in the RFP. Since 1981 we have successfully partnered with a wide range of
organizations varying in size, industry, and IT maturity. We currently employ more than 3,000
associates who provide services for our clients across the US, Canada, Europe, and Asia — spanning all
areas of information services and technologies.

Legacy systems support (Budget Pro), which includes incident support, call support, and
enhancement and development support, is comprised of thousands of small and medium sized
interactions which have an impact on the Port Authority’s budget and planning business users. These
interactions leave an impression that directly affects the credibility of the IT organization. These
opportunities to positively impact business outcomes is the reason CAl developed our Managed
Maintenance {(MM) methodology, and Tracer toolset.

In this space CAl does three things better than any other company:

¢ Standardize your application environment around industry and customer-centric best
practices;

¢ Automate desired behaviors and outcomes to institutionalize success throughout the
enterprise; and

¢ Measure all relevant data points providing high levels of management and team visibility to
enable a rich, metrics/SLA-driven cuiture.

CAl's recommended approach utilizes our proprietary MM processes, methodologies and tools to
provide preferred results: Visibility — doing the right work right; Controf - ability to manage high value
workload; and Optimization — assuring that IT provides the services and results that the Port
Authority desires.

Our MM methodology includes four major phases:

¢ Assessment - determination of business drivers, detailed scope, resource requirements,
critical windows, SLAs (As defined in the Statement of Work/RFP)

¢ Transition - detailed plan and execution of turnover of responsibilities to CAl (CAl to assume
immediate ownership)

¢ Stabilization — establish baselines and fine tuning of processes

» Optimization — drive productivity, efficiencies, innovation, and improvement of CAl staffed
team

Each of these phases is highly process driven and supported by tools that enable repeatable and
meagsurable results.

B.1 QURTEAM

CAl will be the prime contractor on this engagement. We bring more than 30 years of experience in
providing IT solutions on time and within budget to each engagement. Our proprietary MM
methodology combines metrics-based reporting with defined, repeatable processes to ensure strong
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leadership and management of each and every project. Teamed with the appropriate skilled
resources, we believe we have a very compelling solution.

CAl will staff this engagement with a seasoned MM manager and a transition team that has been
through numerous transitions, and augment the team with all of the formal process MM ensures. Qur
account management team has been in place and working together for several years. We will provide
the Port Authority the same level of service and commitment that we have provided to our current
clients that has enabled us to thrive with them.

Mr. Chris Roth will serve as the primary point of contact for this proposal and the overall CAl-Port
. Authority partnership throughout the life of the contract. Chris has significant experience in the IT
industry and brings extensive experience in applications development and support strategies,
outsourcing, and IT organizational change to this engagement.

B.2 BUSINESS RISK

The first risk is CAl having a true understanding of the scope, current responsibilities, and work mix,
of the engagement so that we can rapidly build a solution to best achieve your desired results. To
mitigate this risk, during the month of May, CAl will need to collect all other detailed information not
included in the RFP. This process will not dramatically change our approach, but will let us refine the
details of the scope, our team and processes for alignment with the Port Authority.

Another primary risk is SME (Subject Matter Expertise) availability. While this is a particular concern
where the current support is provided by a vendor, or where employees end dates cannot be
controlled, CAl often encounters less than optimal SME availability.

Because this issue is not uncommon, CAl has adapted its processes to accomplish AKT (Application
Knowledge Transfer) with iess SME involvement when needed. This requires review of more
documentation and application code than in our typical AKT, and hence will lengthen the transition
timeline through June 2012,

B.3 SUMMARY

CAl has been serving Government and Fortune 500 clients with our proprietary metrics based
solution for over more than 30 years. This experience has allowed us to gain a “best practice”
approach to successful transitions and ownership of client’s support initiatives. The one critical piece
to successful engagements is the sharing of information that allows a true partner to craft a
comprehensive solution that serves as a mode! for application support across an application platform.
A solution that is based on reducing the total cost of application support, embraces process, metrics,
and standards, and ultimately the unit cost of labor.

CAl is uniquely qualified, with our time tested MM methodology and Tracer toolset, to provide the
support that the Port Authority has outlined in the RFP in a high value and cost effective manner. if
we are selected for this engagement, we feel our transition process and planned detailed discussions
will further enhance the solution to exceed expectations.

We would like to thank the Port Authority for the opportunity to propose our MM sclution and
welcome the opportunity to discuss any questions or concerns that you may have regarding this
proposal and the services CAl offers.

=

; Lomepuhs lod: [ni.,
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C.. AGREEMENT ON TERMS OF DISCUSSION

ATTACHMENT A; AGREEMENT ON TERMS OF DISCUSSION

Thc Port Authorily's receipt or discussion af any information {including information contained in any response,
presentation, vendor qualification, ideas, models, drawings, ar other material communicated or exhibited by
us or on our behalf) shall not impose any obligations whatsoever on the Port Authority or entitle us to any
compensation therefor (except to the extent specifically provided in such written agreement, if any, as may be
entered into between the Port Authority and us). Any such information given to the Port Authority before,
with or after this Agreement on Terms of Discussion (“Agreement”), either ozally or in writing, is not given in
confidence. Such information may be used, or disclosed to others, for any purpose al any tire without
obligation or compensation and without llabitity of any kInd whatsoever. Any statement which is inconsistent
with this Agreement, whether mmade as pant of or in cannection with this Agreement, shall be void and of no
effect. This Agreement is not intended, however, Lo grant to the Port Authority rights to any matter, which is
the subject of valid exlsting or potential letters patent. The foregoing applies 10 any information, whether or
not given at the Invitation of the Authority.

Notwithstanding the above, and without assuming any legal obligation, the Port Authority will employ
reasgnable efforts, subject to the provisions of the Port Authorltty’s Freedom of Information Policy and
Procedure adopted by the Port Authority’s Board of Commissioners on November 20, 2008, which may be
found on the Port Authority website at: htip://www.panynj.gov/corporate-information/pdf/Freedom-of-
Information-Policy-and-Procedure pdf, not to disclose to any competitar of the undersigned, information
submitted which are trade secrets or is maintained for the regulation or supervision of commercial entarprise
which, If disclosed, would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the enterprise, and which
infarmation is identified by the Respondent as proprietary, which may be disclosed by the undersigned to the
Port Authority as part of or in connection with the submission of a response. ’

(.'cnuﬁulcr Aid, Inc. (CAD
om Gv)
QN =
i#nature) N

Andrew P, Melntyre
Chicl Finuneial Officer
{Title}

ﬂ-or.l {0, 2012

(Date)\)

.

ORIGINAL AND PHOTOCOPIES OF THIS PAGE ONLY.
DO NOT RETYPE,
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D. CERTIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO CAI'S INTEGRITY PROVISIONS

CAl understands that by signing the Letter of Transmittal, we make the certifications in the
“Contractor’s Integrity Provisions,” included in Attachment B, the “General Contract Provisions” of
this RFP.
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]

E. DOCUMENTATION OF PRE-REQUISITES

Y ——————————— _———— ]

E.1 REFERENCES

" We found the allotted space in Attachment D too small to fit the contact details
for our references. We have duplicated the form below.

1. Respondent shall have an active (i.e. nol expired) contract with another governmental entity in the
United Stated under which it can provide suppert of Hyperon-based products. Examples of
gavernmental entities include the State of New York, the State of New Jersey, New Yerk city, and the
U.S. General Services Administration (GSA), as well as other State, Local, and Public municipalities
and agencies.

2. The Respondent shall have at least five (5) years of continuous experience immediately prior to the
date of the submission of its response as a business actually engaged in providing application
management services for Oracle, Hyperion, Esshase Systems.

The Respondent may fulfiil ihis prerequisite if it can demensirate that the person(s) or entity{ies} owning
and controliing the Respondent have had a cumulative total of at least the same number of years of

experience in the provision of similar services immadiately prior to the submission of its response or
has owned and conirolled other entities that meet the requirement.

Gowi Entity Name
& Contract #

Contract

Commencement Contact Information, Name, Email, Phone

Terminated

‘ Description of Services Provided

Contract ’

Chicago CAl has provided Oracle wee | Phillip 8. Riesterer, Manager

1 Transit support and Hyperion 0212009 Current System Support ESM
Authority maintenancefimplementation EMAIL pn'esterer@t[ansitchicag().COm
{CTA) services which include rroNe | 312-681-3709

functional budgeting process guidance and assistance to the Budget Office in finalizing Fiscal Year budgeting
cycle as well as provide day-to-day support in resolving outstanding Hyperion related issues. Work effort
included Reporting, Planning, managing rules files, budget recongiliation and validation of data between
Oracle and Hyperion systems. {Hyperion version - current 11.1.2)

3. Respondents are encouraged to provide at least three additional references from firms (public or private) to which the
Respondent provides support of their Hyperion-based products:

Govt Entity Name Contract Contract
& Contract # Commencement | Terminated

Description of Services Provided Contact Information, Name, Email, Phone

Northast As ;?art of a broader Kelly Dimeo, IT Applications Director
ortheas application support services
1 Utilties engagement, CAI provides 03201 Current ewiL | Kelly.dimeo@nu.com

operational support and PHONE | 860-665-3737

application maintenance and support services for several Hyperion v11.1.1 modules including Planning,
Essbase, Financial Reporting, Web Analyzer, SmartView, Application Link, DRM, and HFM. Also support

Weblogic.
As part of a broader applicalion s | Debbie Winka, S&OP Team Leader
. support services engagement, — -
2 | Unilever CAl provided operational 06/2008 02/2011 emar | Debbie winka@unilever.com
support and application PHONE

maintenance and support services for several Hyperion v7 modules including Planning, Essbase, Financial
Reporting, Hyperion Analyzer, Excel Add-In, and Application Link. Also supporled Weblogic.

Chicago CAl provides ongoing Oracle we | Phillip 3. Riesterer, Manager

5 | Transi support and maintenance and | 1o Current System Support ESM
Authority delivered Hyperion support, emiL | priesterer@transitchicago.com
(CTA) implementation of specific ProNE | 312.681-3709

modules and recommendations of the latest Hyperion deployment {11.1.2)



mailto:priesterer@transitchicago.com
mailto:Kelly.dimeo@nu.com
mailto:Debbie.winka@unilever.com

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ ApRIL 17,2012
SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM PRICE FORMS - 1

F. RESPONSE

F.1 COST RESPONSE

The Monthly Services Fees applicable to this engagement would be calculated based on multiplying
the FTE rates and FTE counts for each month set forth in Table 1 and Table 2; these calculations
represent the total charges for the provision of Services described in the RFP. The amounts in each
- table are fixed for the duration of the engagement for the currently identified scope.
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" F.1.A ATTACHMENT E

PRICE FORMS
1A, One-Year Base Period; Fixed Price (Lump Sum)
Description Total Prices based on Respondent’s Govt, Contract -- Yes or No? And

identify the Government Contract and the Contract #

{1) Operation Support S

HaiaTy ale based upon | 4&¥o-Horth Ratioad Imormation Technalogy Consuling SEices |

164,736.00 [taster Agreement #0000 70816, Category 14-Hyperion Developer. Total based upon

2080 bug

{2) Application s

Maintenance and 164,736 00 [Hourly rate based upon Metro-Morth Raioad Information Technology Consultng Services
Master Agreement #0000 70816, Catagory 14-Hyperion Developer. Total based upen

Support 2080 hrs

{3) Database 5 Hourty tated based upon GSA Advantage. Compuler Aid, Inc. {GS-35F-0256H)

Administration 21578720 | patn Base Adminisvator rate of $132 59/aur. Total based upon 2080 hawrs. Team Lead
and DBA role

ToTAL 5 605,259 20

18, Miscellaneous Tasks  (see note 3):

Category of Total Hourly Total Prices based on Respondent’'s Govt.
Personnet Estimated Rate Caontract -- Yes or No? And identify the
Hours Government Contract and the
Contract #
Trainer 49 x |$ 8000 5 4,200 pg} Trainer / Transibon Manager S8QMour, CAl rate
Apptication Specialist | x i35 1| ° s 39.500,00 | Yes. as noted above
Project Manager " 1S msal =15 1gss 0| ves.asnowdabove
Total S
90,755 40
70

APRIL 17, 2012
PRICE FORMS - 2




THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ :
SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM

1€, Disaster Recovery Tests; Fixed Price (Lump Surn): Cost to participate, as needed, in disaster recovery
tests, in accordance with Section 3.8 of Attachment C, Scope of Work. Assume no more than three (3} tests per
year

Year | Price per Test | x | Three Tests per Year | = Total Prices based on

Respondent’s Govt.
Contract -- Yes or No? And
identify the Government
Contract and the Contract
#

One ] 000 L = 5 0.00 Price included in CAl Team pricing
{Section 1A}

10. Transition Costs; Fixed Price (Lump Sum):

Total one-time cost for an orderly transition from the existing vendor: $ 40000
Timeframe: _8 _weeks

1E. Total cost for base period
Sectfons 1A+ 18 +1C+ 1D =$____ 69443460

2. One-YEAR OPTION PERIOD

2A. One-Year Option Periad; Fixed Price (Lump Sum)

APRI 17,2012
PRICE FORMS - 3

Description Total Prices based on Respondent’s Govt. Contract -- Yes or No? And
identify the Government Contract and the Contract #

(1) Operation Support 3 Hourty rate based upon Lietro-North Rairoad tnkormation Technotogy Consulung Services
184,736 00 | p1agier Agreement #0000 70816. Category 14-Hyperion Developer. Tolal based ypon

2080

{2} Application S

Maintenance and 184 736,00 | Hourly 1a1e based upon [dauo-Horth Redroad informalion Technology Consulling Seevices

S ' tiaster Agresment 400000 70814, Calagory 14-Hyperion Daveloper. Totat based upon

upport

2080 frs

(3) Database 5 )

i . 275,787 20 Houtty rated based upon GSA Advaniage, Compuler Aid, Inc. (G5-35F-0256H)

Administration -2 | Dala Base Adminisy ator rate of $132 59/Mhow. Tolat based upon 2080 hours Team Lead
and DBAole,

TOTAL ; 6§05.256.20

71




THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ APRIL 17, 2012

SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM PRICE FORMS - 4
28B. Miscellaneous Tasks  (see note 3):
Category of Total Hourly Rate Total | Prices based on Respondent’s Govt. Contract
Personnel Estimated -- Yes or No? And identify the Government
Hours Contract and the Contract
. Trainer / Transtion Manager §80mour, CAlrate
Trainer 40 x 15 8000 = 320000
Application 500 X 3 79.20 = 3060000 Yes. asnotedin 1A
Specialist
Project 60 x |$ 132 58 = 795540
Manager
50,755 40
2C. Disaster Recovery Tests; Fixed Price {Lump Sum): Cost to participate, as needed, in disaster recovery
tests, in accordance with Section 3.8 of Attachment €, Scope of Work. Assume no more than three (3) tests per
year
Year Price per Test | x | Three Testsper Year | = | Total Prices based on Respondent’s
Govt. Contract — Yes or No?
And identify the Government
Contract and the Cantract #
One 5 000 x |4 = 3 000 Price included in CAl Team pricing
(Seclion 2A)
20. Total cost for Option period
Sections 2A+28+2C=5_ 65601460
3 TOTAL COST OF THE CONTRACT
Sections 1IE+2D = § 1.349,576.60
4, ASSUMPTIONS & NOTES
Provide assumptions or notes to clarify or explain the cost structure submitted. Use additional sheets/pages if
necessary.
72
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Attachment Contractor's Assumptions/Notes/Clarifications

SAMS: Base &‘ Opétl_on Base and Option, pricing vall remain consistent.

‘Periods. '/ -+ © . |toincrease for year two.

Transition Transibon Lo begin in iy, 2012 and be compleled in aarly iy, 2012.

ol T .. . § | Planined to octur over B six-week period while team is supportng the production enviroament,
e g 4 et L7 | Transiton Manager and supporl staff 1o pravida delivery of Fansition aclivibes vath leam ($80/our for WO IBSOUICES KX X
o, Cm T weeks)

"Disasger Re‘couie_ry' +  IDisaster Recovery efiori(s) 1o be included in daily actmtes of CAl eam.

S e N e

Mlsvcellarlteous Ta;sks Rates established are cansesteni vath leam in place.
o * = | Teainer and Transdon Llanager rates are $80Mour,

e 1 rEy

other (including tasks |,y ennancements wil bo handied as dased by the Port Authority
to be compensation

that are not specified
herein)
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F.1.B PRICING APPROACH

CAl’s pricing approach incorporates the following:

¢ A focused and efficient transition period (utilizing a Transition Manager and additional
resource for a fixed fee)

e A fixed price engagement that will be very flexible to accommodate scope change while
providing all the benefit of cost certainty to the Port Authority

s A commitment to SLAs aligned to the Port Authority’s goals for the engagement

The pricing approach we are suggesting is a fixed amount per role/resource with a fixed number of
resources (3) throughout the term of the engagement. This approach provides cost certainty and also
provides scope change flexibility with an opportunity to further reduce costs to the Port Authority
based upon continual review of the workload and service level mix.

CAl has been working with clients on metrics, productivity and SLAs for over 30 years. We believe so
strongly in the merits of appropriate measurements that we founded the IT Metrics and Productivity
Institute (ITMPl.org) which has become the preeminent clearinghouse for experts around the world
to discuss and share research about these important topics.

We would welcome the opportunity to further discuss with the Port Authority how SLAs impact
behaviors, pricing models, and outcomes that meet your business requirements.

F.1.C Scope CHANGES

Should the scope change at any time during the engagement, the Port Authority and CAl will execute
a change order detailing the change. It is our standard approach to jointly agree upon the proposed
scope changes, followed by having CAl provide an addendum as to requested changes to the
contract.

" F.1.D TRANSITION COST

The transition team will be comprised of our Transition Manager, Service Delivery, Transition QA, and
Human Resources. CAl will bill a fixed price for this transition team (as requested). Expenses for our
transition team as well as travel for the project team during transition are included in the fee.

The MM team that will start on the engagement full time on or about May 24", 2012 as directed by
the Port Authority. This group will inciude our Engagement Manager, team lead, and all required
technical resources. Each member of this team will be charged at the applicable rate, as identified in
our pricing.

F.1.E ARRIVING AT A FINAL PRICE

CAl employs a regimented process in determining resourcing levels for our MM engagements. The
key component in that process is our current state assessment. Information gathered during our
assessment includes (naming just a few):

e Current support team FTE levels
e Experience levels of the current team
* Support process maturity



http://ITMPI.org

THE PCRT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ Apri. 17, 2012
SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM PRICE FORMS - F-2

e Support work mix (i.e., time spent on incidents, call support and work requests)
e Current work approval process
o Current support SLAs and performance against those SLAs

This information allows us to build the appropriate solution. Data obtained related to the experience
level of the current team, support process maturity, and current work approval process is key in
determining how much smaller of a team MM will enable us to use. Data, such as support work mix is
needed to determine onshore/offshore mix. Engagements with high call support volume and lower
work request volume will dictate a smaller offshore component.

Ticket levels can be useful, but only within the context of this other data. To illustrate this point, we
offer the following insight from two engagements: the first is an MM engagement of 37 FTEs split
between our Allentown and Manila centers; the second is an MM engagement with 15 person team
split between the client’s offices in New York City and our Allentown center. Both are highly
successful engagements in which we have provided our clients with substantial savings, and both
clients will provide glowing references. Both engagements use the same MM principles, and both use
Tracer.

The first engagement averages between 30 and 37 tickets per support FTE per month, while the
second averages between 11 and 13. At first glance, it might appear that the first team is three times
more productive than the second team. However, in reality, that is not the case; this example
exemplifies the reality that the types of support requests vary greatly from engagement to
engagement.

The data gathered during the May 2012 transition would confirm the actual scope of work, confirm
whether the IT initiatives will impact workload for the in-scope applications, and dictate whether that
price could be lowered further,

F.1.F CosT CONTAINMENT

It is our belief, that with the use of our consistent process and methodology, the use of our Tracer
tool and the management and oversight provided within our MM team, we will deliver in the fixed
price {lump sum) manner as noted in our Cost Proposal. Our ability to increase visibility as to work
being performed wil! effectively drive out inefficiencies, increase productivity and allow the team to
focus on value add activities in the form of ongoing enhancements. Therefore, we do not anticipate
any additional costs incurred within our support model. The exception to any cost containment would
be an enhancement request that is substantial in nature and is required in an immediate time frame
that would ultimately have an impact on agreed upon service levels within the contract.

F.1.G CoST ASSUMPTIONS

CAVs technical proposal and cost proposal are based upon the information provided by the Port
Authority through this procurement process, our experience with projects of similar scope and
complexity, our experience with clients of similar size and constraints to the Port Authority, and the
following assumptions. Changes to the documentation provided or any of the assumptions may
impact our cost proposal and schedule.

1. Yearly pricing reflects a three {3) person team spread across each of the descriptions of
services (Operation Support, Technical Maintenance, Database Administration, and
Application Support). It is our intent to have each of the three team members traine%agm]
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capable of supporting each function to assure we have back up in the event of vacation/ sick-
time and off-hour calls/disaster recovery activities to the extent possible. (Obviously, Oracle
DBA functions will be controlled tightly with our team lead/DBA).

2. CAl is planning to provide the Disaster Recovery Tests (1C) within the team structure
established at no additional fees. CAl would like to further evaluate the level of effort required
to perform these tasks. This evaluation may determine a level of effort that is greater or less
than our planned approach.

3. All pricing reflects expenses included.in our response.

F.2 TECHNICAL RESPONSE

CAl welcomes the opportunity to put our experience and expertise to work for the Port Authority.
Our objectives for each engagement are to:

e Provide high quality service delivery

o Achieve outstanding levels of customer satisfaction

¢ Implement measurement techniques and metrics based management
¢ Utilize IT best practices and processes -

¢ Provide rapid response to customer calls and minimize resolution time
e Strengthen governance

e Establish “customer centric” service levels

" Itis in these areas that CAl has thrived; we have competed and won engagements similar to the Port
Authority’s by bringing metrics-based repeatable processes to clients. These processes ensure rigor
with process-driven tools that increase productivity and decrease overall costs. With more than 30
years of experience providing quality IT services for the public and private sectors, our processes,
methodologies, and approaches are time-proven and field-tested.

F.Z.A' EXPERIENCE

CAi has extensive experience is providing superior quality services to clients similar to the Port
Authority and on projects of similar scope and complexity. We encourage the Port Authority to
contact our references. The services, scope of work, and complexity of the Air Products and
Chemicals (APCI) engagement demonstrates to the Port Authority our overall flexibility and capability
to deliver based upon the requirements. The service levels associated with the support requirements
are roughly equivalent, users are located in multiple locations, APCl is metrics and SLA driven, and our
support team is split between US based and offshore. As with the Port Authority, we are committed
to a continuous improvement model with APCI. CAi has been providing services to APCI for more than
20 years; they are well qualified to speak about the quality of our service and the flexibility we have
offered over a long time horizon.

CAl continues to provide Oracle and Hyperion support on behalf of the Chicago Transit Authority
(CTA) with the completion and involvement of the following activities:

* Application Maintenance and Support

¢ Report Resolutions and Fixes (Monthly and National Transportation Data Reports)
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¢ Process Improvements and Security Cleanup
e« Recommendations _
¢ Training and Documentation

e Fixed the NTD Reports (F30, F40, F50 and R10) by creating member formulas, updating
dimension members, and writing calcscripts

» Supported the Budget Office in finalizing Hyperion FY Budgets and loading relevant data to the
Reporting application

e Built Hyperion rule files, member formulas and data forms
e Created data extract scripts to perform analysis as needed

e Provided Analysis of CTA's Hyperion Planning applications, design and flow of data to the
Budget Staff and IT management

¢ Provided guidance to the budget staff on Hyperion budget system administration
e Reconciled and validated data between Qracle and Hyperion systems.
¢ Improved data loading and budget update process

» Successfully resolved Workforce Planning calcscripts processes to correctly update the Budget
Planning application

CAl provides Hyperion (v11.1.1) Production Support and Application Maintenance and Support
services to Northeast Utilities as part of a broader application support services engagement. CAl
provide support for several Hyperion modules including: Planning, Esshase, Financial Reporting, Web
Analyzer, SmartView, Application Link, DRM, HFM, and Weblogic. This experience is similar to the
Hyperion support we provided to Unilever for several years.

F.2.B PROCESSES/TOOLS

CAl has developed a proprietary application support methodology, MM, and tracking system, Tracer®
that drives our MM methodology. By using this support tool and our proven processes, we apply
performance metrics to improve productivity, quality, and user satisfaction, while providing superior
and consistent application support. Through our Tracer data, we analyze the root cause of support
issues to continually improve our application maintenance services.

CAl will leverage our work management tool Tracer for measuring our performance. Additionally, CAl
will provide a Service Delivery Performance Status report on a monthly basis to the Port Authority to
reflect our prior period performance against the defined Service Level Goals.

F.2.C SERvVICE FLEXIBILITY

Based upon CAl's experience in working with customers in various industries, we have gained a
considerable level of “best practice” experience as it relates to key performance indicators and
: service level goals/agreements. Having this level of expertise allows our Transition Managers to
introduce the desired flexibility in properly setting expectations and service levels to achieve the
desired contractual and end-user satisfaction results. A solid example of our ability to manage and
support an environment utilizing Hyperion and Oracle environments with numerous other
: technologies would be our continued effarts at Unilever. Thus, we have included Unilever as a key
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reference to further demonstrate our flexibility in working with the desired technology while quickly
adapting the team to understand the business and financial drivers that positively impact their
business.

A.  Ability to Perform

CAl’s experience in supporting production applications is extremely diverse based on the fact that we
continually support high-availability environments, transaction oriented systems, custom (one-of-a-
kind) applications, financial applications, manufacturing applications, sales/CRM applications and
various other business applications.

As part of the transition phase, CAl will work with the Port Authority to develop contact lists,
communication plans and procedures, and service levels to ensure all parties have the same
expectations and are knowledge of the appropriate procedures for providing and resclving requests
on a 24x7 hasis. Additionally, through cross training and leveraging our online application knowledge
repository, developed during the transition phase and continually updated, our on call resource can
triage the initial call to determine the appropriate course of action and include the appropriate
personnel. In addition, CA! will develop and communicate escalation procedures with the Port
Authority to ensure that all requests are handled quickly and efficiently.

IMPROVING PRODUCTIVITY

The “Productivity Puzzle” displayed below represents the various
areas addressed by CAl's MM methodology and supported by the use
of the Tracer tool. For each puzzle piece, we utifize continuous )
improvement methodologies to improve overall day-to-day <~ _ ) o Trents .\
operations and support productivity. ARt '

Taxh Productidry * <77
~w FAST Mt ot
BY LFe St o

Productivity improvements are realized from: — T el R
- Institutionalizing knowledge '
- Implementing/utilizing measurable and repeatable

processes across the support team and integrating with customer |T teams/processes

- Workload prioritization and scheduling
- Quality control and assurance
- Standard estimating
- Individual and team performance measurements
- Detailed event tracking

Through Tracer, CAl addresses all the pieces of the productivity puzzle:

¢  We institutionalize knowledge through the use of CAl's Application Knowledge Transfer
process.

* Through the transition process we will integrate the MM methodology with the Port
Authority’s processes. Being a process driver, Tracer inherently implements measurable and
repeatable processes across the support team.

e We perform work trend analysis to verify that the right work is being done. All resource tasks
are recorded in Tracer. As such, team leaders can prioritize and schedule tasks for team
members and there is no ambiguity regarding task priority.

S
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* We perform quality analysis to detect rework trends, root-cause analysis and remediation for
undesirable trends. We achieve high quality by mandatory quality checkpoints and checklists.

e By utilizing standard estimating techniques, made easier by their inclusion in the Tracer tool,
we are able to consistently meet scheduled completion dates and hour estimates.

e We utilize detailed event tracking to figure out how well work is being performed and how
fast the work is being done. We measure user perception of value through customer
satisfaction feedback surveys. All these measurements are against mutually agreed upon
service level goals/requirements.

By implementing these various continuous improvement methodologies, we strive to achieve an
improved work mix by driving required support activity lower. Once this is accomplished, the Port
Authority can determine how to invest those savings, either by doing more value-add work requests,
or by reducing to size of the support team and realizing cost savings.

Teams, and individual team members, are measured on their ability to meet service level goals. By
providing team-based incentives, the engagement teams are encouraged to improve their level of
service. At the team member level, Tracer provides objective performance data that drives individuals
to enhance their personal performance.

Service Delivery Performance is also managed and reported Tracer, enforcing our MM methodology.
Tracer provides management, team leaders, and core team members the tools to perform their job
and to continually improve their performance.

As shown in the accompanying figure, our teams use Tracer to view work assignment and track
workflow.

Because all team members use the tool for recording their time, Tracer also
serves as the database for information to enable us to evaluate trends; the
database serves as a store of information for data mining. This enables trend
analysis to be performed to reduce support calls and increase time spent on .

work request enhancements. The chart shown above summarizes how Tracer Ef‘:fj't;ff*:’!::3‘f"' B
enhances our ability to do root-cause analysis. o

|
Fovinwbuc s it

CAl uses several management reporting techniques, including individual status
reporting, time recording, issue reports and project status reports. Regularly scheduled status
meetings provide the opportunity to review and report information, to address issues, and to validate
progress against defined project objectives.

IT performance and productivity is the balanced measure of “How well work is being done” and “How
much work is being done.” It is of little value to complete a great deal of work very fast if it doesn’t
meet expectations.

CAl uses several different measurements to measure performance, productivity, and the rate of
improvement. Using only one measurement may be misleading. When we compare several
measurements against each other, we can make a definitive evaluation of the level of performance,
productivity, customer satisfaction, and the rate of improvement. Using our methodology and Tracer,
we can measure and report performance, productivity and customer satisfaction at the engagement,
team, or individual team member level. These reports can be combined to a department level for
high-level review or detailed to an individual team member level to determine the root cause for
poor team performance and productivity. :
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CAl uses several systems to facilitate information capture and reporting. Our team leaders use Tracer
to record the overall plan and schedule for the work effort including tasks, durations, resources,
schedules and task relationships. This plan is updated throughout the engagement to reflect
completion of work efforts, as well as new tasks and activities based on project scope changes. in
addition, for very large projects {estimated hours greater than 1,000}, the team leaders may opt to
use Microsoft Project.

We also use our Tracer Report Module which allows us to display and print data that has been
entered into the tool. The Report Module can categorize, search, and sort records to provide
numerous reports and graphs that best illustrate metrics unique to this engagement. Our team
leaders use this tool when developing status reports and answering client questions.

Tracer will be implemented to track performance of the entire team at an individual level, with
particular attention to the performance of the operation support, technical support and application
support with refinement/adjustments expected for Database Administration. In our other
engagements we have documented comparable performance levels however, to achieve this,
communication is paramount. CAl has the controls and measurements to ensure that we maintain a
consistent delivery model throughout the engagement for the Port Authority.

F.2.D0 TRANSITION PLAN

A.  Major Activities

Although no two transitions are alike, CAl utilizes a structured approach to transitions; a standard
project plan and standard templates to ensure effective knowledge transfer. This proven, checklist-
based transition strategy helps ensure a low-risk transfer of knowledge and minimizes both the
duration of the transition and the disruption to existing support activities while preventing any
impact to the current user base.

The duration of the transition phase is anticipated to last six weeks, but s swmene
it can vary depending on specific circumstances. The transition includes 777/ T
activities to identify process and technical information required to  semr 4 B ), i
support the client’s environment. We document this information using —3
standardized templates that supplement any existing documentation. s
Technical and process information is obtained by reviewing existing
documentation and interviewing existing support personnel via a structured top-down approach to
knowledge transfer as depicted in the accompanying figure.

secunty, aic

Once the knowledge transfer is complete, and prior to the end of the transition, CAl will complete
support requests to test our ability to support the Port Authority in an efficient, professional manner.

A few of the high level topics to be addressed during transition include:
¢ Finalize engagement organization structure
+ Identify supplemental technical training (if necessary)
s Establish physical operation — PC, software tools, communications, etc
o Identify appropriate team seéurity

» Establish administrative guidelines for the engagement team

Bumness funchons, screen
navgabon, sysiem arehiecture,
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»

Establish Work Request approval and prioritization processes

Establish process, tools and interfaces for Incident, Problem, Change, and Release
Management

Create Application Knowledge Transfer (AKT) notebooks

Finalize SLAs and reporting requirements

Establish customized process flows for call supports, production incidents and work requests
Install and initialize Tracer for the engagement

Develop Team Operations Notebook

Train engagement team on MM, Tracer, AKT process, technical environment, and customer
specific tools and processes

Establish process of capturing Customer Satisfaction Feedback

B. Training

Training classes are held during the transition phase to ensure all CAl and key the Port Authority
personnel are fully aware of the processes and tools to be utilized on the engagement. A few topics
include:

¢

CAl MM Methodology — overview of philosophy and processes
CAl Application Knowledge Transfer (AKT) — process overview
CAl Tracer —~ specific use of this CAl proprietary tool at the Port Authority

Port Authority specific tools, processes, and technical environment

C. Critical Success Faclors

Successful transition of services depends upon a number of factors. A few critical success factors
associated with the transition phase include:

[ ]

Staffing to address scope, technologies, work responsibilities, work mix, etc.

Successful knowledge transfer of application information and the Port Aufhority IT support
processes

Availability of the Port Authority SMEs to participate in the AKT process

Successful transfer of support responsibility to the CAl team requiring minimal follow-on
consultation with the Port Authority SMEs

Successful delivery of in-scope support services including incident resolution, work request
completion, and consultation (call support) services

Ability to use the Port Authority -specific utilities and tools

Defining ongoing relationship between the Port Authority Process/Application Area Specialists
and CAl Engagement Team

Establishing process flows for all work events

Establishing Work Request approval and prioritization processes

g (1]
Q;‘ Lompanr Vol t
Hlra
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e Ensuring all engagement related resources (the Port Authority and CAl} understand their roles
and responsibilities

D, Transition Plan

CAl understands that effective transitioning of knowledge is key to the success of each engagement.
The transition phase manages the transfer of support responsibility and knowledge from the existing
team to our team. This is the most critical phase in any outsourcing engagement. CAl has a very
robust transition plan template that is customized for each engagement. The primary activities of the
transition plan include:

e Phase 1000—Pre-Transition Planning — Assign Transition Manager, review findings and
proposal, engagement planning meeting, client planning meeting, identify technical skifls and
client system/third party support software required to support applications, create technical
interview requirements document

s Phase 2000—Pre-Transition Staffing — Define CAl team experience/skill mix for engagement,
acquire team and assign team leader.

e Phase 3000—Initial Transition Activities — Tailar MS Project Transition Plan, start Transition
Manager and Team Leader on site, establish physical operation (workstations, desks, phones),
prepare for Tracer installation, start team on client site, establish team administrative
guidelines

* Phase 4000—Scope Verification And Resource Assignments - Finalize application inventory
for transition, document formal/informal responsibility of current team, document scope of
effort, develop service level agreement.

¢ Phase 5000—Transition Kick-Off Meeting — Schedule and hold transition kick-off meeting,
establish critical success factors for transition, set up transition meetings between CAl and
client primary application support analysts.

s+ Phase 6000—Application Transition Estimating — Schedule AKT estimating meetings with
client analysts, obtain module counts, complete estimating documents, revise estimates and
schedule are required.

» Phase 7000—Supplemental Technical Training — Assess technical skills of team, create
training plans to include any client specific tools. Train team on any client specific Work
Request, Call Support, Incident and after hours procedures.

¢ Phase 8000—MM Training — Schedule and deliver training for CAl MM process and Tracer
tool.

¢ Phase 9000—Organizational Tasks — Review standards for development, coding, testing,
business requirements, functional specs, program specs. Determine base metrics and service
level goals, establish status meetings.

e Phase 10000 - Application Knowledge Transfer (AKT) — Done for each application to be
supported: AKT meetings and interviews, develop each AKT section for AKT Notebooks,
Review and sign-off with client SME, application turnover.

e Phase 11000—Team Leader Knowledge Transfer — Develop documents used to manage team
during project including checklists, meeting grids, job monitor procedures, after hours support
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procedures. Review customer work processes, map to CAl MM process and make any needed
amendments to CAl processes.

e Phase 12000—Transition Completion ~ Final transition review with client, transition
completion documents, transition sign-off.

CAl intends to initiate pre-transition planning within 1 week after contract approval. This will enable
us to begin transition related activities as early as possible given the project time constraints. Below is
a preliminary transition schedule. Additional details of the schedule will be developed during the Pre-
Transition planning activities.

o, !mk Tiame IR S S 1T Pine oy guat
— - — . 29 [ TR |53 ] %20 [ ST | &3 [eno ] env [ezs | 71 | e [ s | fez [ | &%
1100+ Pre.Transition FMlanning Mon 5711 Mon 511D ¢
© 2000 " Pre.Tranmition statfing Tuesany  Thupgand | oemmmmmp |
'i 000 !Cf nial Transiion Actation Tue 61547 Mon 64147 ' ¢==I;p
400_0 . - Engaqemnql Scnlpe and Reapuree Assigaments Thu 62412 Fri 71342, & : P
1 6000 0T rlﬂ‘lllloﬂ Kick Oft I._ieu!mg Thu bi1fing Thu 8112} g::—'-_.._'—'-".--:;
' 6300 = Appliestion Transition Estimating Friginz Frigga2 =
: 1000 1* $upplemental Techmeal Trainlng Thu 2412 fr J'F?M!E [ 7 ]
8400 '+ Mapaged Maintenance Training Thu 8724112 Mon 1/9:12; [ - )l
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12000 ' Transition Completion Decuments Pton 7730112 Tha 8212 ! cp

We have performed transitions for public-sector and commercial MM clients since 1988 and have
defined a methodology for Application Knowledge Transfer (AKT), including capturing knowledge
“about” the systems, i.e., knowledge that is often un-documented. Our normal transition process is
90 days. A certified Transition Manager, will be responsible for managing the details of the overall
transition to ensure that all tasks are completed successfully. This will be his primary work
assignment for the duration, and he will report status weekly on Transition. Quality Control (QC) is an
embedded part of our transition process. As part of our QC, a CAl Quality Analyst will review the
deliverables to ensure that are complete.

Given the time constraints on this project, we will engage the Transition Manager as early as possible
enabling the team to be effective as possible when the engagement begins. Ideally, CAl desires to
interview and shadow the existing team to understand the current support processes. CAl intends to
staff this early transition period with additional staff to help facilitate transition of key information as
quickly as possible.

E. Exit Transition

When the rebid of all or parts of this project is initiated, we will engage in turnover services. At this
time we will develop a Turnover Plan, identifying critical tasks that must occur for a smooth and
orderly turnover of functions between our team, the successful bidder and the Port Authority staff.
We will submit our turnover plan for final review and approval within the Port Authority's specified
time frame. We will include within our plan the System turnover objectives and work plan activities in
a Gantt chart, including activity time frames and responsibilities. 90 days prior to contract expiration,
we will begin working with the Port Authority and/or the selected bidder to transition knowledge,
functions, programs, responsibilities, services and systems. In much the same way as we performed
our transition of services on the first day of the project, we will perform the same steps in reverse,
with the overall goal being minimal disruption to business operations, We will provide updated
versions of system documentation according to the approved turnover plan. We will provide the
d
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system documentation, assets/artifacts in the form of a navigable normalized taxonomy, references
and operational instructions to technology assets, general procedures for updating computer
programs, data and reference files, and all other documentation and information currently used to
support application processing.

We will prepare the Final Turnover report that documents the completion of our turnover activities
and provides status on each high-level task and activity that was performed during the contract
execution period. This meeting will occur between our team management and the Port Authority's
management.

You will own the updated AKC notebooks that we develop and maintain over the course of the
contract. All of the best practices workflows and ITIL methods will remain with the Port Authority and
be transitioned over to the new vendor {if new vendor selected) and the Port Authority as part of
turnover.

F.2.E DocumeENTED METHODOLOGY

Application Management: Our MM methodology combines with our work management tool, Tracer
and includes activities related to documenting, approving, communicating and impiementing changes
into a production environment. During the transition phase, our Transition Manager will identify and
customize and steps and associated checklist/documentation to your existing standards and
procedures.

CAPS (Customer Annual Performance System): Review is performed on an annual basis. During this
annual review, CAl can provide insight into the work performed for the previous year to identify the
areas requesting work and their appropriate consumption of resources. In addition, CAl can propose
technology refreshes that may be appropriate in the coming year enabling the Port Authority to
incorporate into their budget for the upcoming year.

A. Approach

We understand the scope of work is to provide Application Management Services for the overall
Budget PRO System in the following areas:

e Operational Support

¢ Technical Maintenance
o Database Administration
¢ Application Support

CAl's approach to providing these services is based upon our proprietary application support
methodology, MM, and our application development methodology, Construction Management (CM).
In addition, to achieve the engagement objectives, CAl will leverage our proprietary work
management application, Tracer, in addition to Track-It.

In this section, we provide information on our proprietary MM methodology and Construction
Management {CM) methodology.

B. Managed Maintenance (MM) Methodology

- Aprimary objective in each of our support engagements is to:

—

I
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¢ Decrease support costs while meeting or exceeding current support levels
¢ Produce meaningful metrics to better manage the business
e Document and institutionalize the knowledge needed to support our clients

¢ Implement IT Best Practices to enhance performance and governance

Our approach to accomplish these goals revolves around

at
our basic tenants of the Productivity Life Cycle — Visibility, °"“}‘f’v .
Control, and Optimization. As the adage states, “you cannot y"o‘V O e
manage what you cannot measure”, which is why we start j\;&“‘l‘? o mplomaning § 55’;:5':’:’ .
our projects with a focus on visibility. Dfining Baseling [l - oocuentspes | I

KepFroces aag Contuiworn Prewess Improvement
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To be able to effectively apply Visibility, Control, and
Optimization concepts to application support, CAl ___

developed our MM methodology over 20 years ago. Through this process-driven methodology, we
monitor and measure IT support. Our methodology aligns project support actions and results directly
to the Port Authority’s IT strategy and organizational goals. MM deals with planning, tracking and
controlling the life cycle of the individual tasks associated with the maintenance and support of
legacy systems. MM combines the disciplined software-support approaches of the Software
Engineering Institute (SEl), the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) and the
International Society of Six Sigma Professionals (ISSSP).

Our proprietary tracking system, Tracer’, drives our MM methodology. By using this support tool and -
our proven processes, we apply performance metrics to improve productivity, quality, and user
satisfaction, while providing superior and consistent application support.

We institutionalize knowledge through the use of our Application Knowledge Transfer (AKT) process;
and during the transition process, we will integrate our MM methodology with your existing
processes. Both Tracer and MM are huilt upon the ITIL framework. As a process-driver, Tracer
inherently implements measurable and repeatabte processes across the support team. All resource
tasks are recorded in Tracer; as such, team leaders can prioritize and schedule tasks for each team
member removing any ambiguity regarding task priority.

As part of our methodology, we will perform work trend analysis and verify that the right work is
being done (i.e., time is not spent on non-value work). We will also perform quality analysis to detect
rework trends, root-cause analysis, and remediation for undesirable trends. CAl has consistently
" achieved high quality by mandatory quality checkpoints and checklists, and will implement these
standards as well.

We are able to consistently meet scheduled completion dates and labor estimates by utilizing
standard estimating techniques — made easier by their inclusion in Tracer. We use detailed event
tracking to determine how well work is being performed, as well as how quickly that work is heing
completed. We measure user perception of value through customer satisfaction feedback surveys;
and these measurements are evaluated against mutually

agreed upon service level goals and/or requirements. Sl m W.
H H . . . I‘ ety 4 -mﬁamm
By implementing these various continuous improvement / ] e
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The MM engagement cycle covers three phases: Assessment, Transition and Continuous Process
Improvement, as shown in the accompanying figure. Each phase contains specific deliverables and
requirements related to project and process maturity; these phases are described in the following
sections.

ASSESSMENT PHASE

The Assessment Phase focuses on understanding our specific role in your organization. In this phase,
we survey your current support staff in the target application areas to understand both the technical
and procedural environments. We conduct a structured working session with key application
personnel to develop the organizational objectives and service level expectations.

An assessment can last from a few hours up to a couple of days and is extremely important because it
allows us to estimate the level of effort required for the engagement, including identifying potential
SLA targets.

Critical success factors of the Assessment Phase include identifying:

e All systems to be supported

® Key business and IT liaisons

¢ Support tools, documentation, and procedures

e Current support metrics and/or service levels

*  Work breakdown between calf support, incidents, and enhancements
e Current resource allocation and skill sets

More detail on the Assessment Phase can be found in Section 9 (page F-13), as the data received
during the assessment represents the bulk of our due diligence requirements.

TRANSITION PHASE

CAl understands that effective transitioning of knowledge is key to the success of each engagement.
The transition phase manages the transfer of support responsibility and knowledge from the existing
team to our team. This is the most critical phase in any outsourcing engagement. Detailed
information about CAl's approach to transitioning knowledge and support responsibilities is provided
in Section F.2.D: Transition Plan (page F-7).

CONTINUOUS PROCESS IMPROVEMENT {CPl) PHASE

This phase will begin after the Port Authority signs off on the completion of the Transition Phase.
Process improvement is divided into two sub-phases: Stabilization and Optimization. They are
defined as follows:

¢ Stahilization Sub-phase — During this phase, we assume the primary support role, confirming
support procedures and working with your technical personnel and end users to enhance any
processes deemed inefficient or ineffective. Through our tracking process, we identify
recurring problems and examine root causes to determine whether issues are capable of final
resolution.

s Optimization Sub-phase - In this phase, we solidify procedures and continually measure and
track these procedures to identify potential process and system improvements that will result
in an overall reduction of effort/cost required to support these applications.
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Our MM methodology is designed to provide standard defined processes in support of the three
primary events that occur during all support engagements: Work Requests, Incidents and Call
Support.

Work Requests — A work request communicates user requirements for application technical
support from the client to the support team. The request may be for a new application, an
enhancement, or a modification of an existing function within the supported applications.

Both small and large enhancements will be classified as a Work Request. Typically, we
envision small enhancements being handled by the support team. Large enhancements would
be performed by variable staff with involvement of the support team {approved by Port
Authority).

We involve the support team for two primary reasons; first, we can leverage their knowledge
of the existing applications; and secondly, having the support team knowledgeable of the
enhancement will provide for the seamless transition of the enhancement back into the
support team.

Our standard MM processes handle the implementation of smaller enhancements quite well.
For large development work requests, we employ our Construction Management (CM)
methodology.

Incidents — Our team will be responsible for all incidents including defects, production errors,
and emergency problems. Procedures for taking, logging, acknowledging, and following-up
production incidents are established during Transition in keeping with our contracted scope of
work. Callout procedures for after-hours support are instituted as appropriate.

Incidents within the support process are initiated when our Core Support Team is notified
concerning a production problem. Pertinent information associated with the incident is
entered into our tracking system and a ticket is opened. The issue is then scheduled and
assigned to the appropriate resource.

if the incident is related to the operations environment of an application system, the Port
Authority Operations would be contacted. If the incident is an application level incident, our
support team will be responsible for resolution. In this case, the assigned resource is
responsible to analyze the issue, determine an appropriate resolution and implement the
resolution within the production environment. In ali cases, we will adhere to the Port
Authority’s standards for implementing production fixes.

Once the incident has been resolved, we update our tracking system with the appropriate
information. This information is then used as an analysis tool to help us improve our
productivity.

Call Support {Level 2 as defined in RFP) — Calls for support will be directed to a member of the
support team or the Team Leader. We generally strive to accept virtually all calls for MM with
a live technician and handle many of the situations while the caller is still on the phone.
Should a particular call be of such a nature as to render this objective impossible, we record
the caller's name and phone number for future follow-up once we have achieved a resolution.
All support calls are logged and tracked, with support metrics reported routinely. Our call
support services are typically interfaced to our customers' helpdesk to accommodate users'
need for a single help contact.
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The core support team receives support calls daily. The information received from the Port
Authority along with any other pertinent information would be entered into our tracking
system. We would then work directly with the Port Authority to resolve the question at hand.
Throughout the life of the engagement this effort would include providing application
consulting, general application support, and incident resolution.

Once an issue has been resolved, we update our tracking system. All information intrinsic to
call support is then analyzed to assist us in our continuous improvement effort.

Project management and communication are key components of all our MM engagements. Our
Engagement Manager will meet regularly with your liaison to review the support status of the
application(s). A mohthly report detailing the engagement status, SLA performance (see below), and
any outstanding issues will be provided.

An issue may be a question initiated by either party, the logging of a program error, or any other
situation that requires resolution. In order to accurately track and manage issues, we have developed
an on-line issue tracking system. This system allows systematic reporting and querying of issue status
and virtually guarantees that issues are not lost or forgotten.

In addition to the defined SLAs, you will receive detailed tracking of what work is being done, how
long it is taking, what departments it coming from, whether the workload is trending up or down, and
a detailed review of what steps we are taking to drive productivity. CAl will tailor our standard
monthly report to best meet the needs of this engagement.

C. Ensuring High Level Productivity

Productivity, as it relates to programming and quality is a critical success factor for any engagement.
Actual programming hours are tracked against estimated programming hours and an efficiency ratio
is determined for each programmer. These efficiency ratios are provided to the programmers, and
individual scores are compared to team averages to assess individual contribution to the overall
effort. In addition, all rework is tracked.

CAl's expertise in performance measurement allows issues to be addressed proactively. As the Port
Authority and CAl work together to improve the support partnership, additional and/or different
metrics may need to be generated and tracked as appropriate.

D. issue Management

Another key component of CAl’'s MM offering is the management and tracking of issues. An Issue may
be a question initiated by either party, the logging of a program error, or any other situation that
requires resolution. In order to accurately track and manage issues, CAl uses an on-line issue tracking
system within Tracer. This system allows systematic reporting and querying of issue status and
virtually guarantees that issues are not lost or forgotten.

E Quality Controf

Quality control is intrinsic to our MM process. CAl believes strongly that quality is foremost in support
deliverables and that commitment to quality is the cornerstone of the company’s success. We

- consider the quality function to be a vital link in meeting and ultimately exceeding client expectations

for any application,
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F.  Quality Assurance

CAl is a leader in the development of quality assurance methods and believes that quality assurance
can best be provided through an external resource. Although many support engagements have been
successful with quality assurance done within the team, experience has proven that the best
implementation of process and methodology occurs when the quality assurance process is separate
from the support process. Quality assurance ensures that clients receive the support services they
anticipated using best practices.

CAl provides QA oversight frequently and at many levels:

e On a monthly basis, our Delivery QA personnel review the overall quality, productivity,
customer satisfaction and performance of the team against defined service levels.
Additionally, a review is performed to ensure that teams are tracking work properly and
following the defined procedures. Additionally, our Account Manager will seek any feedback
and input from your Engagement Lead that may provide additional insight into the
performance and satisfaction of the team.

s On a quarterly basis, we will conduct a formal quarterly review of our performance and
accomplishments and seek any additional feedback you may have.

o lastly, on an annual basis, we will conduct more formal Delivery QA Audit to ensure that the
contractual obligations are being fulfilled and the team is following the appropriate
procedures.

More information on how CAl ensures productivity gains is provided on page F-5, Ability to Perform.

G. Performance & Monitoring Tools

MM using Tracer differentiates us from the competition. Tracer can be likened to a shop floor
management application collecting data about all aspects of the engagement. Tracer will:

1. Allow workflow to be customized
- Allows the configuration of the department’s support methodology into templates that
can be used for managing enhancement projects and/or maintenance events.
- Includes pre-configured templates based on industry best practices and methodologies.
- Enforces process disciplines to ensure efficiencies.

2. Capture and track detailed time reporting
- Captures and tracks all information related to development and support from inception
to completion — by individual application and individual resource.
- Provides data for trending and root cause analysis leading to continuous support
improvement.
- Collects and reports detailed time data creating a growing repository of empirical data
used for baseline and future estimates.

3. Collect and report support metrics
- Captures and reports both detailed and summary activities involved in maintaining
information systems.
- Tracks response time and time to resolution for support calls and incidents in your
specific environment.
- Reports department-specific data based on customizable reporting features,
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4. Track Service Level Agreement {SLA) goals/penalties

- Collects and tracks incident response time and time to resolution and monitors progress
against SLA goals and objectives.
Tracks work request completion rates in terms of response time, end dates, or task
completion.
Captures progress for any type of event against goals that can be service level
agreements.
Captures customer satisfaction rates and levels.
Provides baseline tracking of estimates versus actual.
Tracks re-work level of effort.
Provides view into achievement percentages against SLA goals for financial penalty
enforcement.

5. Provide standardized estimating
- Builds estimates based on technology factors and historical task performance.
- Provides for Function Point Analysis based on collected data.
- Adjusts estimates based on definable factors.

6. Manage resources and effort

- Manages tasks by resource including estimated hours / actual hours to completion.
Tracks total effort against completion for each task or phase of the effort.
Maintains resource role and assignment history.
Records resource performance data.

7. Measure resource performance
- Measures an individual’s performance against assigned goals, tasks and level of effort.
- Compares individual resource metrics against team averages for task completion.
- |dentifies resource areas for improvement hased on individual to team average
comparison.
- Measures a balance of “How well work is being done” and “How much work is being
done” for greater effectiveness.

8. Manage workload, including backlogs, prioritization, and scheduling
- Tracks ail support and development activities in one view for ease in work prioritization.
- Maintains comprehensive backlog list.
H H . -G T R N
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- Reschedules activities based on approved changes in scope or requirements
- Records each issue and assignment, and tracks issue resolution
- Tracks scope changes and allows for appropriate changes in the overall schedule

By collecting this wealth of data, Tracer provides substantial reporting capability. The accompanying
table presents standard Tracer reports. In addition, we can develop customized reports against the
Tracer database specific to the Port Authority’s needs.

CAl can, and does, give access to Tracer to our clients — although many times our clients choose to
have our Engagement Manager conduct standard and ad-hoc reporting for them.

During transition, CAl and the Port Authority will agree upon all information that should be included
in the standard monthly engagement status report. Other reporting needs and frequencies will be
determined during the Transition phase, as well. Tracer provides superior automated reporting
capabilities. In addition, because we track every hour spent in the engagement, it is easier to handle
internal charge back for our clients.

F.2.F CompLIANCE WITH IT CONTROLS CHECKLIST

CAl will perform all services as required in the RFP and confirms the System complies with the
following:

s [T Controls checklist (Attachment H}:
e Standards & Guidelines for Port Authority Technology {Attachment J); and the
e Port Authority Information Security Handbook.

F.2.G DOCUMENTED APPLICATION MANAGEMENT METHODOLOGY

A major CAl-deliverable of the Transition Phase is the creation of Application Knowledge Transfer
(AKT) notebooks for each application. One of the benefits of AKT creation is enabling seamless
transition of support responsibilities to additional teams at any point during the engagement.
Creating AKT notebooks requires resources from the new and existing support teams. We have found
there to be a 5:1 ratio of time spent by the new support team vs. the existing team on AKTs.

AKT notebooks typically exist in hard- and softcopy formats. CAl also offers a robust Application
Knowledge Capture (AKC) process where data is published to websites. This AKC process enables
support teams (onsite, offsite, and offshore) to readily gain access to application support
documentation.

Application and process information is obtained by reviewing existing documentation and
interviewing Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) via a structured top-down approach to knowledge
transfer. The amount of input required from the SME is dependent upon the quality and accuracy of
existing documentation. Typically, 30 percent of application information is gathered from existing
documentation while 70 percent is gathered from the knowledge stored in the brains of SMEs. Here
are a few of the more than 80 questions used to stimulate conversation and pull application
knowledge from the SME:

* s there non-I/T staff involved in support {for example, Business Analysts)?
e  Who is responsible for testing application changes?
e What security is needed to support this application?
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e What operational tasks are performed in support of this application (one-off report
generation, excel uploads, monthly admin, etc)?

s Are there any utility programs used to support the application?

e What are the 5-10 most common support issues representing 80 percent of the support
needs?

* How is application security administered and who is responsible?

¢ Is there proactive monitoring for this application {review of log files or similar daily, weekly,
monthly to assure proper function)?

¢ What other systems interface with this application?

An AKT checklist is used to verify that each task is completed. AKT information is documented using
standardized templates to ensure effective knowledge transfer.

A few of the 24 section titles in the AKT notebook are provided in the following table.

AKT NOTEBOOK SECTION TITLES (PARTIAL LIST)

Application Overview

Online Navigation

Bateh Job Flows and Processing Schedules
Application Design Overview

Application Special Processing Routines
External Interfaces

Complex and Critical Components

Files, Databases and Component Relationships
Report Formats and Distributions

Failura History {can link to existing hislory logs)
Trouble Areas and Resolutions

Security Administration

Development Utilities

Historical Archiving

Geographically diverse support teams that speak multiple languages complicate the AKT process in
this engagement; further complication is introduced by the fact that multiple external vendors
support applications. CAl will address the language issue by either including needed language skills on
our technical team or by augmenting the team with translators during Transition. Because our AKT
process is so regimented, much of it can be done remotely. CAl also has video conferencing available,
and will travel if needed to ensure a successful AKT.

Once the AKT is finished, CAl's staff will complete several support requests. The objective is to test
their ability to support the application without assistance from the previous team. The AKT notebook
is considered complete only after passing all QA steps, including a detailed review and sign-off by the
SME.

It should be noted that CAIl utilizes similar processes to assist with transferring support
responsibilities for a new application from the development team to the CAl support team. An analyst
on the CAl support team will be resourced to interact with the development team to gain an overall
understanding of the new application and to begin AKT creation. This will allow the support team to
quickly assume responsibility for the application once it is proven to be stable in the production
environment. This same approach is also used for any major enhancements to existing applications.

The information captured during the transition phase will continue to provide value for the duration
of the engagement. The AKT notebooks become a reference point for issue resolution and are
updated with new support incidents, application changes, and infrastructure updates. CAl's MM
methodology identifies the need for a primary and secondary support analyst for every application.
The AKT notebook is a great resource for support analysts as they assume these application
responsibilities. 1t is also a valuable tool to help bring new support resources up to speed with the
current support environment.
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F.2.H DOCUMENTED METHODOLOGY FOR DEVELOPMENT AND ISSUANCE OF ANNUAL CUSTOMER PLANS

Typically, CAl teams conduct planning sessions with the business / IT stakeholders on annual basis to
identify any significant projects/activities for the upcoming year. As an input to these sessions, CAl
prepares a summary of effort and trends by support activities for the prior period. Additionally, CAl
may propose additional projects/activities that will improve the overall technical stability and
effectiveness of the environment,

Output from these annual planning sessions incorporates the base level of support required for the
upcoming period and prioritization of projects/enhancements enabling the engagement stakeholders
to plan activities for the upcoming period.

F.21 EXPERIENCE WiTH COMPLEX IT CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTS

CA! has extensive experience is providihg enterprise services to clients similar to the Port Authority
and on projects of similar scope and complexity. We encourage the Port Authority to contact our
references as planned. As mentioned earlier, the services, scope of work, and complexity of the Air
Products and Chemicals (APCl) engagement demonstrates to the Port Authority our overall flexibility
and capability to deliver based upon the requirements. Additionally, based upan a number of current
initiatives such as the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation and the use of a performance
based contract, we continue to demonstrate our unique abilities in comparison to the competition.
Through the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation contract we additional provide
enhancement work based upon a defined and proven Function Point analysis so that all work effort is
defined, performed on a fixed priced and delivered as planned.

F.3 STAFFING PLAN

CAl is committed to providing each client with the highest caliber project personnel. We have a
recruiting and career development strategy that enables us to select associates who are highly
dependable and properly prepared for the businesses to which they will be assigned. We staff our
project teams with dedicated, technically competent, career-minded individuals qualified to handle
the unique pressures and demands that are characteristic of a development environment. Our
. associates are capable of delivering a consistent, high level of quality service.

In addition to properly staffing projects, we recognize the importance of working closely with client
personnet at the operational and management levels. The knowledge, effort, and cooperation of
client personnel are required to make a strategic partnership successful. Finally, effective project
management is required to plan, schedule, and staff the technical effort, as well as to assign
responsibilities to project team members and track and control project performance. CAl has
successfully used project control techniques in the management of many large, complex
development efforts.

A. Service Failures

In terms of addressing a failure, we will follow the established incident management plan including all
of the following:

e Communicate periodic status updates during incident response

* Maintain detailed incident records

, Compmar Ll im |
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» Provide a quick assessment of criticality, impact to business, risks, and options
® Restore application service
¢ Update user and technical documentation as required

* Plan/execute/document any required remedial tasks necessary, for example: data clean-up,
reprints, and notifications

* Follow appropriate release process for any software modifications

We will also provide a post incident report within a defined number of business days the Port
Authority would desire. Resolving a failure may require changes to code. For these types of changes,
the impact of the failure will determine whether an emergency release is warranted or if the changes
can be included in the next planned release.

We will determine if an interface between Tracer and TrackIT is
required and we will monitor heipdesk(s) requests to keep
appraised of all issues that occur during business hours. We will
track calls through resolution, gathering data on service levels and
root causes of common and recurring incidents so that they can
be eliminated.

We equip and train our personnel to resolve system failures
quickly and efficiently. Our knowledge repository has a
lookup/search function that enables our team to quickly search
for previously related issues. This helps our team to quickly and
easily resolve similar or recurring issues. As part of our transition
and training, we create checklists to assist our resources with
diagnosing issues and incidents that require assistance from
external resources. We also create matrices of external contacts
and processes for interfacing with them.

B. Service Failures (Non-Business Hours)

We typically share on-call duties across the team if it becomes
necessary (although support is planned for normal business
hours). During non-business hours, the on-call team member(s)
will be available by cell phone or other electronic means to enable
the Port Authority operations to have immediate access to the
correct individual. A procedure will also be established to contact Team Leaders and then the IT
Service Manager or their designee. We will resolve incidents based on the contract SLA and report
status frequently. For emergency incidents, such as a disruptive failure to a Budget Pro, we will
inform the Port Authority management on a continual basis until the problem is resolved. Post-
incident reports will become part of the knowledge repository.

These standard escalation procedures will be implemented by the Team Leader and then Service
Manager to provide on-call back-up. Service failures are deait with according to their type:

® For non-critical processes outside normal business hours, escalation to the Team Leader is at
the discretion of the resource
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o If a recovery (restoration of the daily cycle flow) is needed, but cannot be completed during
the rest of the current on-call shift, the resource should escalate to the Team Leader

¢ For a failed critical process that will take more than one hour to fix, the Team Leader should
escalate to the Port Authority sponsor

Note: if needed, the Team Leader will initiate a conference call with all needed participants to resolve
the issue.

F.3.B DEDICATED STAFFING

A team of three dedicated, full-time equivalents are proposed for this engagement. The team will be
supported by CAl's corporate organization.

Our solution represents a staffing mix of that have the propensity to work in a goal-oriented, service
level driven environment. We have approached the solution by matching the prerequisite skill sets
with the desired technology expertise and resource make-up having the cultural and previous
external experience to be successful in CAI's metrics driven business. Thus, all personnel will be
joining CAl with the planned expectation to participate in MM training, Tracer training, and CAl-
funded training for additional Hyperion and Oracle certifications required in order to satisfy Port
Authority requirements (All team members will be certified as requested in the SOW prior to the end
of the Transition period). Additionally, we plan to leverage our existing CAl staff presently committed
to customer engagements that maintain financial and budgeting expertise with Hyperion/Essbhase and
Oracle. This shared communication associated with our deployed MM teams allows for continuous
improvement and an increased level of customer satisfaction. Most importantly, this approach builds
a level of commitment and further demonstrates our ability to attract and maintain quality technical
resources.

As noted earlier, it is our belief that by providing an experienced CAIl service delivery management
organization to work hand-in-hand with the assembled team, the results and performance will be
demonstrated in our metrics and reporting provided to the Port Authority.

A. Staffing Coverage

As outlined in our transition plan, instructor-led MM and Tracer training will be provided to all new
CAl team members. A key benefit of MM using Tracer, is its ease of use for the technical team.

CAl's Team Lead/DBA is responsible for day-to-day operations of the CAl engagement team. Being
dedicated to the engagement, he will work intimately with the Port Authority’s Service Delivery
Manager regarding all aspects of this engagement. Reporting to the Team lead will be two technical
team members.

The CAl Team Leader is responsible for the successful execution of all support activities. This
individual is responsible for the team’s adherence to CAl methodologies and has responsibility for the

~ day-to-day management. He will manage task execution, assign and manage the technical resources,
and monitor progress within the support team on a daily basis. In addition, the team leader will
report problems to management, provide technical assistance and advise team members, and resolve
technical issues within the team’s area of responsibility. All time will be tracked in Tracer (and or
Track-it), including support hours vs. small enhancement hours.

QU
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F.3.C WORK LOCATION

CAl proposes all work performed be onsite at the Port Authority facility. As a background, CAl has five
main service delivery centers: Allentown and Harrisburg, Pennsylvania; Wilmington, Delaware;
Tallahassee, Florida; and Manila, Philippines. We propose using our Allentown center as a backup
facility for this engagement in the event workspace is an issue at the Port Authority facility.

All of our centers are connected together using high-speed redundant communications that allow us
to move work throughout our network seamlessly.

While additional detailed discussion would need to occur with the Port Authority during the final
negotiation period to properly weigh the risk reward balance of a more aggressive onsite/offsite split
for this engagement, we would initially employ a 100 percent onsite resource make-up and consider a
resource split during the life of the engagement.

F.3.D STAFFING SPECIALTY / PRINCIPAL PERSONNEL

CAl has identified capable resources consisting of a number of certifications. Any certifications not
identified will be provided via a training investment to occur prior to or during the transition pericd.
Résumés for the proposed team are provided in the appendices. The following provides a synopsis of
each proposed team members qualifications {the team will be current on certifications by the end of
transition period planned).

¢ Simon Ridge — Simon is a solutions oriented business professional with significant experience
Hyperion systems management and reporting in addition to Hyperion/Essbase. He has
demonstrated communications skills, has been successful at maintaining lasting relationships
with clients and conforms to industry standard best practices in application support and
maintenance of enterprise environments.

Simon will serve as the Team Leader and perform DBA functions as needed. As a Team leader,
Simon has lead teams of people in multiple locations and in various functions to successful
implementation of financial/budget projects. He is hands-on, experienced in software
development, deployment of technology, and extremely competent in IT policy, governance
and industry standards (ITIL).

Simon will be the point person for customer communication and analysis for new
requirements while performing the prioritization of ongoing activities for the duration of the
engagement.

¢ Mary Perpam - Mary has several years of experience in using Hyperion Essbase, Hyperion
Planning, Hyperion Integration Services, Hyperion Reports, and Hyperion Business Rules. Her
experience in Hyperion in addition to her experience with Oracle provide for an excellent
complimentary CAl support team member. She has worked both in an administrative role and
analysis/development role in numerous environments.

Mary has extensive experience in creating monthly / quarterly financial reports using
Hyperion Intelligence, Hyperion Analyzer, Hyperion Reports and Hyperion EssBase
Spreadsheet add-in. Overall, her experience in the entire life cycle of data warehouse design,
development, implementation and testing within a production environment provide the
appropriate mix of skills to meet the operational and maintenance activities of the effort.
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¢ Raj Bhanushali — Raj is experienced in a wide range of Hyperion products including EssBase,
Planning, Integration Services, Reports, Spreadsheet Add-in and Business rules. He is also
experienced with EssBase Database Administration including database backups, performance
tuning, optimization, dense/sparse settings and partitioning. Raj has performed developer
roles, administrator roles and has gained solid knowledge and strong conceptual, business and
analytical skills.

Raj will be a solid contributor to the CAl team in being able to share the maintenance,
analysis, database and development efforts. He is extremely focused on customer satisfaction
goals and will bring his expertise to meet SLA’s as defined by the Port Authority. His
experience in various corporate settings provides for a solid contributor to the CAl team.

F.3.E ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

Page 9: d. describe in detail the Respondent's intended organizational and operational structure to be employed for Contract
management..

The following is our proposed organization chart for the Contract. It indicates key supervisory
personnel to be assigned for the duration of the Contract and their anticipated functions.

Business Mamgement Escalaton Management
Port Authority %
Management A
- ) I Tony Salvapgio

cal CAl
Regional Manager
Engagetnent Manager
Chris Roth - Tom Salvagmo .

Operavonsi Manapentent

o _dl_ .1 €Al Service Dalivary l'
Team Lead ..,.iL *] John Wetsh pr—+1 CAl HR & Admin

Teain Members ! CAl - Transition
Bavid Hondricks

it Carperter

Figure 1: Engagement Organizational Chart

A. Escalation Procedure

Mr. Chris Roth will manage this account with the support of corporate resources. The initial point of
| contact for issues, including non-performance, will be the team lead. If issue resolution is not
satisfactory, the Port Authority can escalate the matter to the Engagement Manager, Mr. Chris Roth;
Region Manager, Mr. Tom Salvaggio; and to the president of CAl, Mr. Tony Salvaggio.

ESCALATION CONTACTS EMAIL PHONE

Simon Ridge, Team Lead (610} 530-5000
Chris Roth, Engagement Manager Chris_Roth@compaid.com (610) 530-5197
Tom Salvaggio, Region Manager Tom_Salvaggio@compaid.com (610} 530-5000
Tony Salvaggio, President Tony_Salvaggio@compaid.com {610) 530-5000
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F.4 MANAGEMENT PLAN

CAl is well versed in addressing a primary concern in transitioning application maintenance to an
external support team. For more than a quarter century, we have successfully transitioned the rapid
and comprehensive transfer of complex application knowledge from our client’s existing support
team to the CAl team without business disruption to the client. We assure the effectiveness of this
knowledge transfer through our MM methodology.

We have partnered with numerous Fortune 500 clients to integrate our MM approach with their IT
organizations. In each of our partnerships, we have successfully transitioned the support effort,
maintained and ultimately enhanced service levels and customer satisfaction, and implemented
continuous process improvement initiatives to provide efficiencies and cost savings. Our
methodology clearly defines roles and responsibilities, establishes performance measurements, and
develops training plans that allow for expeditious and thorough transfer of application knowledge

from your team to ours.

The following table is a partial listing of our MM clients.

21st Century Cable TV, Inc., IL CSC/Scott Paper, PA Mars Information Services, NJ

A.T. Cross, Inc., Rl

Cytec Industries, NJ

Massachusetts Medical Society, MA

Aerotron-Repco Systems, Inc., FL

DelRay Connecting Raflroad Co., Mi

Massachusetts Mutual Life Ins., MA

Air Products & Chemicals, Inc, PA

Depl. of Education, BSFA, FL

MBNA America, DE

Air Products UK,

Detroit Edison Co., Ml

McKinney Products Co., PA

Airline Tariff Publishing Co, VA

Dyncorp, VA

Merck & Co, Inc., NJ, PA

AlliedSignat Inc., AZ, M, NJ,

E.l. Du Pont De Nemours, DE

Miami-Dade County, FL

Allina Commons, MN

Elkay Manufacturing Co., IL

Missionary Oblates of Mary, IL

AmComp Assurance Corp, FL

Empire Kosher Poultry, Inc., PA

MKS Instruments, Inc, MA

America Online inc., VA

Ericsson Communications Ltd.,

Mohegan Sun Casino, CT

American Home Products, NJ

Excellus Health Plan, Inc., NY

National Council Of Comp Ins., FL

American Int! Technology, NJ

Federal Express Corporation, TN

Northeast Utilities

AmeriGas, PA

FedEx Ground, PA

Norwegian Cruise Lines, FL

Analog Devices, Inc., MA

Fiat Services, Inc., PA

Novarlis Pharmaceutical Corp, NJ

Andersen Consulting, DE

Finger Lakes BC/BS, NY

QOracle Corporation, CA

Applica, FL

First USA Bank, DE

Qrtho Clinical Diagnostics, NY

Armstrong Cabinet Products, TX

Florida Dept of Transportation, FL

PA Dept of Agricuiture, PA

Armstrong World Industries, PA

Ft. Worth Star Telegram, TX

PA Dept of Education, PA

Aflanta Journal Constitution, GA

Gateway, SD

Paychex, Inc., NY

Aftorney's Title Ins Fund, Ing, FL

GE Power Systems, NY

Penn Treaty American Corp., PA

Bass Holels and Resorts, GA

Global Crossing, M

POA/UCI/OSCOP, PA

Bausch & Lomb, NY, SC

(Goodyear Dunlop Tires NA, LTD, OH

PPL Services Corp., PA

BellSouth Telecommunications, GA

Group Health, inc., NY

Praxair, Inc., CT

Berk-Tek, PA

Guaran Tec, LLP, FL

PSE&G Co, NJ

Blue Cross/Blue Shield of FL Hannaford Bros. Co., ME Raymond James & Associates, FL
Blue Cross/Blue Shield of NC Harris Interactive, NY Risk Enterprise Mgmt, LTD, NJ
Blue Cross/Blue Shield of TN Harvard Vanguard Medical Assoc, MA Rite Aid Corporation, PA

Boscov's Department Stores, PA

HealthNow NY, NY

Rohm & Haas Co., PA

Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, NJ

Hershey Foods Corporalion, PA

Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd, FL

CAl Europe, Ltd,

HighMark, PA

SCA Hygiene Products, PA

Camden County Municipal, NJ

Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc., NJ

Schering-Plough, NJ

Canadian Tire Corporation Ltd, ON

Holiday Inn Express, PA

Skandia Asset Mgmt , Inc., NY

Capital Biue Cross, PA

HomeTech Information Sys, Inc., MD

Southern New England Telephone, QT

L (YN
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|
Carpenter Technology Comp., PA Honeywell, R State Farm Insurance Co., IL

Central Maine Power Co., ME

IBM Corp., NY

State of Connecticut, CT

Chrysler Corporalion, M)

IBM Cosporation, NY

Tammac Credit Services, PA

Chicago Transit Authority INVISTA S.a.r.l., DE Tosco Marketing Company, AZ
City Of Chicago Johnson Controls Inc, PA Tyco Electronics Group, PA

CIT Group, Inc., NJ

JPMorgan Chase & Co., OH

Unilever Americas 1T, CT

City of Attanta, GA

Kellogg's Company, Mi

University Medical Center, FL

COMSYS Services LLC, MD

Keystone Mercy Health Plan, PA

University of Pittsburgh, PA

Cordis Corporation, FL

Kimberly Clark/CSC, PA

UTC Shared Business Services, CT

County Of Union, NJ

Kimberly-Clark Carporation, TX

Washington Post, DC

CPL Worldgroup, Inc., CA

Lionbridge Technologies, MA

WellChoice, Inc., NY

CSC Corporation, DE Manulife Financial, ON Large Pharmaceutical Company, PA

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY

We have included all documentation required in RFP section C. Financial Information (page 3), in the
appendices.

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Because the transition phase is the most critical phase in an outsourcing engagement, CAl has
resources dedicated to performing transitions, Our Transition Managers work with the Engagement
Manager to ensure a successful transition. Each of our Transition Managers has performed dozens of
transitions.

For this engagement, we have selected our most experienced Transition Manager, Mr. Dave
Hendricks. Dave is a project management consultant in our MM Practice specializing in project
management of Transition Projects. He plans and manages the transition of application and process
knowledge from client resources to CAl resources. Dave has completed over two-dozen transitions
for clients such as Unilever, Air Products and Chemicals U.K., Northeast Utilities, Excellus Health Care,

" TYCO, Chubb Insurance Canada, and Analog Devices Inc.

The balance of the transition team wil! consist of the following:

— Chris Roth
— John Welsh
- Phil Carpenter

¢ Engagement Manager
s Service Delivery Manager
e Transition QA

As planned, once the transition has been successfully completed in the eight week timeframe our
core support team remains in place to provide ongoing quality assurance utilizing a designated
quality assurance analyst. The primary function of this Analyst is to review all work efforts and
deliverables of the delivery process to assure it meets CAl quality standards. CAl has a defined Quality
Process and checklist that complements our overall methodology. CAI conducts Quality Assurance
meetings during the life of the engagement. Our Quality Analysts are MM-, Tracer- and TQA
{Transition Quality Assurance)-Trained individuals, most of whom also have Team Lead experience.

The Support Team will be made up of three experienced individuals containing the necessary skills to
fully deliver upon the requested service levels as defined within the RFP requirements. The structure
of the overall team is as follows:

e
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Figure 2; Engagement Organization

F.4.A OVERALL ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

CAl is organized into three separate régions; within each

region, the area is further divided into Divisions. The Lehigh
Valley Division of Region 1 will wholly own the relationship
and operational delivery for this engagement. The Region 1
organization chart is provided in the accompanying figure.

The CAl account management team consists of the

following:

» CAl's Engagement Manager, Chris Roth, will be the T
primary point of contact for the owverall CAl-Port
Authority partnership throughout the life of this
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engagement. The Engagement Manager leads CAl's
account management team and has overall responsibility for the partnership between our

companies.

PUBLIC SAFETY PRAC O
e Praciau arage

e CAl's Service Delivery Manager (SDM), John Welsh, will be responsible for project strategy
and setup. He is the interface between the CAl Engagement Manager and CAl's corporate
functions {e.g., recruiting, finance/accounting). He is not dedicated to any customer but rather
assists CAl engagement managers for several customers in strategic planning and enables
uncomplicated access to other CAl resources when required.

o CAl's Team Lead, Simon Ridge, will be responsible for day-to-day operations of the CAl
engagement team. Being dedicated to the engagement he will work intimately with the Port
Authority’s key stakeholders regarding all aspects of this engagement,

Building new relationships with clients is always a key focus area. We believe that when you contact.
our referenced clients, you will find that providing exemplary ongoing service to our existing client

base is equally important.

] Q ! —'
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When starting a new business relationship, CAl hopes it will be in one of our primary lines of business.
The scope of this engagement is a perfect fit for our largest business offering, one that we have
successfully performed for numerous fortune 1000 companies over the past 30 years.

F.4.B SuPPORT STRUCTURE

CAl has uniquely assembled the skilled team resources, the processes as defined within our
proprietary Tracer Tool and the methodology to deliver our Managed Maintenance services
(application management services) to the Port Authority. As noted in our response, we plan to
provide constant communication and full visibility to work being performed by the CAl team. In
various capacities, we plan to provide updates as to status of our efforts in meeting service levels,
providing details as to work being performed by team members and monthly reporting to assist in
setting/revisiting priorities most important to the key stakeholders. We anticipate that our adherence
to process and use of the Tracer tool, that the Port Authority will have the vital metrics to fully
manage compliance with the final contract put in ptace with CAL

F.4.C MANAGEMENT AND APPROACH

As provided in the previous sections, CAl provides regular Quality Assurance oversight. Through the
use of our Tracer work tracking tool and Service Delivery Portal, CAl Delivery QA resources and our
Engagement Lead review the engagement metrics on a monthly basis to identify potential
performance issues or other areas for improved performance. Jointly, CAl develops an action plan for
those items requiring a change. These items could take the form of a process change, additional
training, or a recommendation for an enhancement to the application functionality that may reduce
overall support needs. These action items are reviewed on a monthly basis to validate prior action
items have been resolved and open action items are prioritized appropriately. Additionally, monthly
reviews of our performance with Port Authority stakeholders will provide an additional opportunity
for identifying areas of improvement.

On an annual basis, a more formal Delivery QA Assessment is performed to ensure that the team is
. foliowing the defined processes and practices. As a result of this assessment, action item plans are
developed and managed until any identified items are resolved.

F.4.D0 MMWBE PARTICIPATION PLAN

CAl proposes utilizes MWBE firm for the Miscellaneous Tasks planned for Year 1 and Year 2 as well as
any major enhancement work that is determined and approved by the Port Authority during the
contract term. We believe these efforts will satisfy the 12% MBE and 5% WBE goals. The appropriate
approved vendor will be brought in at the time required to perform the work effort requested.

We have included the required form “Procurement M/WBE Participation Plan, PA 3749B/12-11" in
section I.
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G. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA

We acknowledge receipt of the following addenda; a signed copy of each is included in this section.

e Addendum 1: Selection Process dated 04/05/2012
s Addendum 2: Change of Due Date dated 04/10/2012
THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT
TWO MONTGOMERY STREET, 3*” FLOOR
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Date: 4/5/12
ADDENDUM #1

To prospective respondents on the Selection Process Document for Support for the Port Authority’s
Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System

Responses due on April 20, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
Questions due on April 6, 2012, no |ater than 2:00 PM
The following change is hereby made in the Selection Process Document:

1. Section F.3 [Staffing Plan), pg. 9: Add the following as subsection (e} to this Section: “The
Respondent shall also Indicate the sources [e.g. subcontractors, consultants, staff from the
current contractor that provides maintenance of the Authority’s Budget PRO Systern, etc.), if
any, it will utilize to staff the functions required for this Contract. The Respondent shall state
whether such sources have provided such services on similar projects for the Respondent or for
other firms or arganizations, and include a list indicating specific contracts and describing the
business relationship utilized to provide such services, the past experience of key personnel and
their length of service with the firm, and their functions and responsibilities refative to a
comparable contract.

This cornmunication should be initialed by you and annexed to your response upon submission. In case
any Respondent fails 1o conform to these instructions, its response will nevertheless be construed as
though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed.

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

KATHY LESLIE WHELAN, MANAGER
PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION

RESPONDENT’%NAM - _COMPUTER AID_INC
INITIALED: b e 'r\f‘\"f\\\\‘ Chris Roth NYC Division Manager
DATE: April 5.2012

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO JAMES SUMMERVILLE, WHO CAN
BE REACHED AT JSUMMERVILLE@PANYNI.GOV and 201-395-3454
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THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY& NJ
PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT

TWO MONTGOMERY STREET, 3*° FLOOR
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Date: 4/10/12
ADDENDUM #2

To prospective respondents on the Selection Process Document for Support for the Port Authority's
Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System

Responses originally due on April 20, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
Responses now due on April 17, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
The following changes are hereby made in the Selection Process Document:

1. The Due Date for Responses has been changed to April 17, 2012, no fater than 2:00 PM,
2. Replace the words “Praposer” and “Proposal” throughout the Selection Process Document with
the words “Respondent” and “Response,” respectively.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The following information is made available in response to guestions submitted by prospective
respondents to the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey’s {the “Port Authority” or the
“Authority”} Selection Process Document for a Real Estate Lease Administration and Database System.

it addresses only those questions that the Port Authority has deemed to require additional information
and/or clarification. The fact that information has not been supplied with respect to any questions
asked by a Respondent does not mean or imply anything (nor should it be deemed to have any meaning,
construction or implication) with respect to the terms and provisions of the Request for Information,
which will be construed without reference to such questions.

The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the information contained
herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information accurately represents the conditions that
would be encountered during the performance of the Contract. The furnishing of such infarmation by
the Port Autharity shall not create or be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any
reason whatsoever and each Respondent, by submitting its response, expressly agrees that it has not
relied upon the foregoing information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible
therefor in any manner whatsoever. Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no representation,
statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers, agents, representatives, or
employees, orally or in writing, shall impair or fimit the effect of the warranties of the Respondent
required by this Request for Information and the Respondent agrees that it shall not hold the Port
Autharity liable or respansible therefor in any manner whatsoever.

—
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THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ ApRIL 17,2012
SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM PRICE FOAMS - G—4

34. Would it be acceptable to provide a Level 2 See the response to question 14.a, above,
support model that is accessible by an B0O# but
staffed by offshore resources?

This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your response upon submission. In case
any Respondent fails to conform to these instructions, its response will nevertheless be construed as
though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed.

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & N)

KATHY LESLIE WHELAN, MANAGER
PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION

RESPONDENT'S NAME: COMPUTER AlD, INC
INITIALED: g NSO Chris Roth NYC Division Manager
DATE: April 12,2012

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO JAMES SUMMERVILLE, WHO CAN
BE REACHED AT JSUMMERVILLE@PANYNJ.GOV and 201-395-3454
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SUPPORT FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY'S HYPERION-BASED BUDGET PRO SYSTEM PRICE FORMS - H—1

H. ACCEPTANCE OF GENERAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS

CAl accepts your Standard Contract Terms and Conditions.
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ComputerAid Inc. . P TP PP

Con ct ChnsRolh NYC Division Manager « Chris Roth@compa:d com ¢ NY (212) 551-3212 » Cell: (610) 217-0528

Simon Ridge, Team Lead

11.1.1.3 HFM -1230LAP (Plymouth CA} - 2011

UNIX Systems Management and Administration, UCSC (Santa Clara, CA) - 1996 -1997

Novell, UNTX, PC Networking, Computer Training Academy — 1996

Business and Finance, University of Greenwich - Dartford {London, England) — 1992

CADD, De Anza College Materials Fabrication (Cupertino CA) - 1987—1991

Internship NASA Ames Research Center Moffett Field (Mountain View, CA) — 19871989
Oracle 9i DBA Certificate, UCLA Extension (Westwood CA} - 2003

Hyperion Enterprise Administration Certificate { HFM, Hyperion Software Company — 2001, 2004

EDUCATION

CERTIFICATES

Qualifications Summary

s  Solutions-criented senior-level Business Analyst, Technical Lead, Deployment Lead with expertise leading the design,
development, of financial applications and supporting systems. | managed a broad range of next-generation
technology soiutions from industry leaders.

» Advanced level of technical proficiency coupled with highly refined business analysis skills, demonstrated by repeated
success in the analysis, design and management of innovative IT solutions that directly promote intemal and client
business growth.

»  Strategic planner with skill leading IT operaticns, including Hyperion applications design, enterprise system initiatives,
systems analysis and migrations, and implementation efforts.

¢ Demonstrated ability producing detailed Business applications and IT policies, procedures, and performing
changefcenfiguration management, process engineering, and documentation coordination.

¢ Dynamic communications skills; successful at developing and maintaining lasting relationships with key clients, while
fully communicating technical solutions to users and executives at all levels of technical proficiency.

Hyperion 11.1.2.1, 11.1.1.3 Financial reports, HFM, Security, Data Loads, Business Rules, Hyperion
Systems management 11.1.1.2, 9.3.1, HFM 4.1,Bl+ Workspace, Web Analysis, Financial Reporting,
APPLICATION Upsiream / FDOM Mappings and Data Validation, Full Installation Documentation and Knowledge
DEVELOPMENT / Transfer, Hyperion Enterprise Administration 5.5.5 , Reports & Analyzer, HFM Web Forms Excel
SUPPORTY Retrieve HE, and HFM, Upstream / SmartView , BEA Weblogic, SSL , IS ,SQL Server 2000 and
2005,0racle 9i DBA, 10G, JDE, MASS90/200 Analyst /DBA, Rational Rose, MFG Pro 8.5f DBA, ADP-
HRIS Administrator / DBA, Help Desk Management, Network Administrator, Desktop Support

Hyperion Reporting, Crystal Reports X!, Business Intelligence, MS SQL Server Reporting Services
EEE?JEAEEEATION aadl VVriting Data Dictionaries, Project Plans and Deliverables, Process Reengineering, RFP's, RFI's,

PRACTICES SOW's, SLA's, Visio 2007, MS Project , Parasol DBA {Medical Records Systems) , ITIL/ITSM ,
Sarbanes-Oxley Compliance, Change Management, USGAP-IFRS

Assignment History
Ridge & Associates

Assignment: KFR Company / William Scotsman / LightSquared / MFS
(San Francisco / Baltimore!/ Reston / Boston / NYC) Jul 2010 - present
Senior Hyperion Programmer/Analyst
*  HFM 8.31 Systems Administration / FOM 9.3 /Data Management / Planning Training

Development of 11.1.1.2 Planning User Training

Administration Tasks (Task/Data Audits, Tuning, Log Reviews)

Business Rules developmant , Data migration between development and production environments

Security/User provisioning , Troubleshoot / Debug production issues ,Task Flow Management

Support batch and nightly processing ,Support data loading through both FOM and HFM

Maintain FDM mappings ,Database management including indexes building and table optimization

Simon Ridge Page 1 of5
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Contact: Chris Roth, NYC Division Manager » Ghris_Roth@compaid.com  NY- (212) 551-3212 » Cell: (610) 217-0529

»  Develop Hyperion data extracts for loading into a data warehouse
»  Client Facing, Proposals / Project Management

Assignments: University of Connecticut / KFR Company / Mitsubishi Corporation
(San Francisco / Chevy Chase { New York) far 2009 - Mar 2010
Business Systems Analyst
Established and cultivated strong relationships with customers, and Vendors while providing a broad range of financial
application consultative and network engineering support services. Traveling to client facilities and working closely with
customers at all technical levels to identify needs, determine custom solutions, and deliver full-scale technical services and
products, and decumentation.

o Windows 2000 & 2003 server Administration, Vista & Mac OSX workstation support.

Hyperion System 9. 2 and 9. 3 and 11 Test, Development and Production environments

Essbase, Planning, HFM, FDM and Financial Reporting.

Facilitate knowledge transfer to financial IT staff and documented systems configuration.

Work as IT Liaison / Project Manager for various new application deployments and as general IT support for hardware

and software upgrades.

«  Remotely support Hyperion System 9 Migration for 8. 3 Financial reports.Assisted in the developing departmental
specific dashboards. Assisted in development of custom code for Zero Admin Client to mimic functionality of prior
environment.| preduced instructional documentation on dashboards creation.

=  Application Development and Upgrade Requirements gathering and decumentation,

» Business Process Analysis, Development and Reengineering, Change Management

s Architectural Advisory Documentation and Deliverables

Ridge & Associates (San Francisco, Los Angeles, New York) Sep 2006 - Apr 2007
Business Systems Analyst
+ Established and cultivated strong relationships with customers, and vendors while providing a broad range of financial
application consultative and network engineering support services.
» Traveled to client facilities and work closely with customers at all technical levels to identify needs, determine custom
solutions, and deliver full-scale technical services and products, and documentation.

Ridge & Associates, (5an Francisco, Los Angeles, New York) 2003 - 2005

Business Analyst , Profect Manager

» Established and cultivated strong relationships with customers while providing a broad range of consuitative network
engineering and financial application support services, Traveled to client facilities, while working closely with customers
at all technical levels to identify needs, determine custom solutions, and deliver full-scale technical services and
products. Supervised 5-35 member teams in providing network administration, server infrastructure establishment,
system configuration, adminisiration, and support services.

» Implemented 2 Hardware Load Balanced envirenment for HFM traffic and Virtual Addressing.

«  Worked with Senior Accounting and Management as a Hyperien HFM Consultant. Migrated the global accounting
department from using Hyperion HE Excel retrieve to Hyperion HFM Excel Retrieve. This entailed a rewrite of all the
Excel retrieve formulas and a redesigning the Data Grid for the Year End Global Sales Management Report.

*  Successfully established Windows-based network and systems infrastructures for numerous clients throughout New
York, Los Angeles, and San Francisco.

s Prepared and delivered comprehensive training to users at all technical skill levels,

«  Managed full life cycie hardware & software upgrade projects for 21 braches of a iarge financial services company,
supervising groups of 5 to 35 technicians per site.

»  Successfully recovered mission critical data from corrupted disk for high profile author, as well as replacing faulty
hardware to fully recover new work and ensure system operability.

Assignments: Various Clients (NY and CA) 1996 - 2003
Business Systems Analyst
Completed numerous short- and long-term in-house contractual positions, focused on financial applications, network
engineering, systems administration support for industry leaders. Provided network, desktop and technical support resolving
issues with network connectivity, hardware, and Financial Applications. Designed and implemented backup and recovery
procedures Authored and maintained application and server manuals for numerous client projects, streamlining training of
new staff members

Simon Ridge Page 2 of 5
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Chris Roth, NYC Division Manager « Chris_Roth@compaid.com « NY: (212) 551-3212 » Cell: (610) 217-0529

Key Client Projects:

Carrier Corporation Global HQ: Worked with Senior Accounting and Management as a Hyperion HFM Consultant.
Migrated the giobal accounting department from using Hyperion HE Excel retrieve to Hyperion HFM Excel Smatviews.
This entailed a rewrite of all the Excel retrieve formulas and redesigning the Data Grid for the Year End Global Sales
Management Repont.

Pfizer Health Solutions: Successfully ensured reliability and functionality of desklop and network infrastructure,
supporting over 200 users in Windows 2000 and Exchange 5.x environment; concumentiy served as information
security DBA. Analyzed and documented user requirements for medical applications and established user
environments for remote access.

Applied Signal Technologies: Provided comprehensive network design and administration services for 1500-member
POD -telecommunications provider.

USF Logistics: Managed migration to ADP SQL Server for payroll department, as well as coordinating all Y2K
upgrade initiatives.

Fox Sports: Project Management for Y2K upgrades, including migration to Oracle Financials. Supported JOE
developers as our duties coincided during Oracle financials upgrade, Researched and documented all Y2K issues for
networked financial applications and equipment.

GE Diasonics: Managed the migration to MFGPro financial applications / MRP system. Alsa ensured seamless Y2K
rollover, including management of NT Server/Workstations, Novell systems, Exchange, and migration of LAN
infrastructure.

Jeffries and Company: Worked as the office Manager supporting Equity sales, Research and Corporate Finance, and
Trading Floor support. Coordinated end-user support of ILX, Bloomberg, and in-house client accounts applications.
Applied Materials: Applications support, Hyperion 4.3, Oracle 7.0, BBB, S1vb, Lotus Notes 4.1, Rational Rose
Barclays Global Investors: While at GBI | worked in the Networking and Helpdesk support area on the BGI Global
Antivirus Eradication Froject. Worked with bath the San Francisco and the London offices to customize the Global
policies for the San Francisco office environment and right a comprehensive eradication plan document.

Symantec Corporation: Provided desktop support lo the Cupertino Corporate offices, Lotus Notes, Windows and
Financial Applications Support.

Chevy Chase (Houston / Boston) May 2011~ Nov 2011

CSC Hyperion Senior Manager

*

4 4 & a § & 2 % 4 a2 5 % &

Hyperion HFM 8.3.1.2, 11.1.1.3, 11.1.21

Financial Report Development, HFM, HSF,HPCM

Administration Tasks (Task/Data Audits, Tuning, Log Reviews)

Business Rules development , Data migration between development and production environments
Security/User provisioning , Troubleshoot / Debug production issues , Task Flow Management
Pre and Pgst sales application support

RFP and RFI Preparation

Data Analysis

Application Documentation

Smartview Support

Petro Chemical Industry, Cil and Gas

Financial Services

Proposal Development

Site surveys

Client Facing pre sales technical project management

FannieMae (Washington, OC) Apr 2010 - Jul 2010

Business Systems Analyst

Worked as a Business Systems Analyst supporting the FP&A, Business Development & Technology and Capitol
Markets department through their monthly and quarterly forecast and budget process.

Assisted the departments in the re-design and re-engineering of the budget transfer and month end close process.
Worked as a Business Technical Liaison Coordinated the re-design of Hyperion Essbase cube and Hyperion Planning
application functicnal upgrades.
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Hyperion System 9.2 and 9.3 and 11 Test, Development and Production environments

Essbase, Planning, HFM, FOM, HPCM,HSF and Financial Reporting.

Facilitate knowledge transfer to financial IT staff and documented systems configuration.

Work as IT Liaison / Project Manager for various new application deployments and as General IT support for hardware
and software upgrades.

Application Development and Upgrade Requirements gathering and documentation.

Business Process Analysis, Development and Reengingering,

Architectural Advisory Documentation and Deliverables

Change Management, Process and Data Standardization

Oracle Corporation (San Francisco) Apr 2008 - Jul 2008 J

Sr. Principal Consultant

o Traveled to customer sites throughout the United States to installing and configure new Development, Test, and
Production Hyperion 9.3.1 Environments on Windows and Selaris operating systems.
The environments consisted of Essbase, B+ \Workspace, HFM, Planning , FDM, and SmartView.
The backend databases were MS SQL Server 2000 or 2005, and Oracle 9i and 10g.
Produced complete documentation of all installs and facilitated knowledge transfer to the management
Remotely supported customer's environments.

Bank of New York (New York) Apr 2007 — Aug 2007

Hyperion Analyst
¢ Worked as HFM technical liaison: researched, installed, and documented the HFM applications for Mellon / Bank of
New York merger.

o Responsible for synthesizing of all existing repots to a smaller workable sub subset for all users. This included all
refrieves, smartviews, Excel workbooks, and existing, Bank of New York HFM and Mellon Bank Enterprise reports, My
other duties included creating an HFM Tutorial for afl end-users.

s  Business Process Analysis, Development and Reengineering,

e Architectural Advisory Documentation and Defiverables

s Change Management, Process and Data Standardization

Phizer Inc. (New York) Jun 2006 - Sep 2006

Business Systems Analyst , Project Manager

o Worked with Senior Business Management for Pfizer Human Health as a Project Manager.

o  Prepared the Phased Budget Plan RFP, and worked closely with senior management to select the HFM Web forms
development vendor and supervise their activities.

» Liaised with senior corporate managers and migrated “Beacon” the “HP” in house Financial Forecasting application to
the new HFM Forecasting application.

»  Main responsibility was to the Global corporate finance group to manage the implementation of the HFM Phased
Budget a multi currency Market P&L, and Product sales tracking and forecasting application.

»  Application Develppment and Upgrade Requirements gathering and documentation,

» Business Process Analysis, Development and Reengineering,

s Architectural Advisory Documentation and Deliverables

Warner Music Group / Hyperion Analyst / New York Jan 2006 ~ May 2006 J
Senior Accounting and IT management supporl as a Technical Liaison,

» Researched and document the HFM applications development by a third party vendor, and coordinate the applications
integration.

» | managed the daily operation of the Hyperion Environment, User account creation, security ciass changes FDM
Applications Support, Mappings and Data Validation, and network architecture as related to application security.

* Working as an IT Liaison | facilitated the knowledge transfer from the third party vendor and document their efforts and
the architectural design of the server environment.
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s Coordinated efforts to coincide with SAP, JDE and PeopleSoft software development group an compatibility issues,
upgrades and patches. Also | was involved in the SOX compliance, security testing and Audit. Lead Network Security
and Architecture meetings on application fiow, design and security planning for the Hyperion HFM Global deployment.

e  Application Development and Upgrade Requirements gathering and documentation,
» Business Process Analysis, Development and Reengineering,
s Architectural Advisory Documentation and Deliverables
»  Change Management, Process and Data Standardization
Human Resource Administration City of New York (New York] Jul 2005 - Nov 2005

Sr. Administrative Analyst

»  Worked as a Technical Liaison with Senicr Operational and Technical management

»  Instituted long-term structure and strategy for implementation of the MATIS applications support and data management
team. This involved documenting current and future process flows, business rules, writing data dictionaries, project
plans and deliverables, and process reengineering.

s Evaluated all input data and its sources and standardized all data callection types. Developed a new MS SQL 2000
database and designed a robust reporting schedule for Management and Planning. Also using Crystal Reports Xi 1
designed new automated client care reports based on statistical analysis of Medicaid services vendors, and HRA
employee performance.

+ Application Development and Upgrade Requirements gathering and documentation.
» Business Process Analysis, Development and Reengineering,
s Architectural Advisory Documentation and Deliverables
« Change Management, Process and Data Standardization
Smith Bamey Citigroup (New York) Rl Feb 2005 - Jun 2005

Technical Lead
» Established and cultivaled strong professional relationships with retail branch senior staff, in order to facilitate and
organize the timely deployment of NexiGen |V project hardware and software up-grade.
»  Project planning, purchasing, and documentation for 21 retail sales sites in all of the 50 United States.
»  Supervised installation technicians groups varying in size from 5-35 technicians.
o Acted as technical support for the remote sites through the installation process.

Learning Network {Pearsen Publishing) {San Francisco, CA) ALUS 2000 - 2001 J

Business Systems Analyst

»  Performed ongoing systems engineering, network design, and infrastructure administration services, working closely
with cross-functional business and technical teams throughout all phases of large-scale projects to continually improve
netwark operations.

» Managed all aspects of Hyperion 4.3--5,1 Migration, also managed all Hyperion daily operations for executive offices
and financial departments, including application upgrades and user support.

s Produced and maintained concise technical documentation, streamlining operations while clearly articulating network
topography, and applications design.

+ Migrated the finance department to MAS 90, from In-House application.

» Managed the Migration of the HR / Payroll singfe user application to the ADP-HRIS multi-user Cracle based
application.

»  Planned system to manage telecommunications and network assets company-wide.

EMPLOYER  [RYE YEARS J

R&D / Medical Device Development 1989 - 1991/ 1993 - 1996
Baxter Novacor Healthcare - Artificial Heart R&D Technician

¢  Peripheral Systems Group - CADD Design and Drafting R&D , Angioplasty Catheter Research

»  Cybex Systems - R&D Robotics Technician

e LTD Ceramics - Quality Engineer Alumina , IC Manufacturing Engineering
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Mary (Brigit) Perpam, Hyperion Developer

mmelors in Mechanical Engineering, Lakehead University (Ontario, Canada) - 1999

Qualifications Summary

s 7 plus years of IT experience in design, analysis, development and administration of various applications in
Client/Server OLAP environment using Hyperion Essbase, Hyperion Planning, Hyperion Integration Services, Hyperion
Reports, and Hyperion Business Rules.

o Hyperion Smart View Add-In, Hyperion Reports, Hyperion SQR, Hyperion Analyzer, Financial Reporting Studio
environments Scripts, MDX scripts in BSO and ASQ cubes.

¢ Strong experience in system 9.x and 11.x Hyperion suite products such as Hyperion Essbase, Hyperion Planning,
Smart view for office, Web Analysis and Financial Reporting, Interactive Reporting, EPMA & EIS.

e  Experience in developing ESSBASE cubes using Block/Aggregate storage technologies.

» Substantial experience in creating, maintaining and supporting all applicaticn objects including outlines, calculation
scripts, nules files for dimension building and data loading, creation and optimization of transparent partitions, and
security objects through executing calculation, using MaxL, MDX queries, and ESSCMDs for Data Loading.

o Widespread experience in Hyperion Planning Forms, Secuiity, Metadata Maintenance, Business Rules and ESSBASE
Excel Add-In.

s  Hyperion Planning, Enterprise Performance Management Architecture EPMA, Financial Data Management (FDM)
V9.3/11.1 HAL

» Exiensive experience in application designing and development using Oracle EPM system 11.1, Calculation Manager,
Rules Editor, Hyperion Essbase 9.x/7 x/6.x

« Hands on experience in installation, configuration and maintenance of Hyperion Shared services 9.4/11.x, Hyperion
Essbase 9.%/11.x, Administration Services 9.x/11.x,

o Good experience in migrating Hyperion 7.x/8.x to Hyperion 11.1.

o Proficient in dynamically building Dimensions, Attributes using rule files and loading Fact data in an ESSBASE
Applications by means of several build methads such as generation, level and parent-child references.

»  Expertise in performing regular Database backups, Dense/Sparse seftings, Partitioning (using Transparent, Replication
and Linked Techniques) and ESSCMD scripts, MAXL scripts, MDX scripls.

»  Experience in Hyperion System 9 modules (Planning, Capital Expense Planning, Workforce Planning, interactive
Reporting, Financial Reports, and Dashboards).

»  Expertise in building Financial Budgeting and Forecasting OLAP applications with ESSBASE and Planning.

»  Extensive experience in generating monthly/quarterly financial reports (Balance sheet Statement, cash flow statement)
using Hyperion Intelligence, Hyperion Analyzer, Hyperion Reports and Hyperion Esshase Spreadsheet Add-in.

»  Thorough Knowledge of entire life cycle of Dala Warehouse Design, development and implementation and Testing

»  Expertise in Star Schema Modeling in Essbase Integration Services (EIS), E-R modeling for RDBMS Data Sources,
and various tools for automation of OLAP.

»  Good experience in performing several administrative tasks like installing and troubleshooting of ESSBASE
Administrative services, Shared Services and Planning on server machines.

«  Proficient in writing Stored Procedures and Triggers using SQL and PL/SQL on Oracle, SGL Server, DB2 databases.
* Loading Meta data in Planning using Informatica ETL Tool,

»  (Good understanding of coding in PL/SQL and very strong in performance tuning and database design expert level
Qracle 10g/9i/8i 17 .x.

s Ability to meet deadlines and handle pressure in coordinating multiple tasks in a work/project environment. Versatile
team player with excellent analytical, presentation and inter-personal skitls

s Excellent communication skills with proficient expression, transmission and interpretation of knowledge and ideas.
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Hyperion System 11.1.1.x, 9.x (Essbase, Reporting and Analysis, Smart View, Analytic Services),
Essbase 6.x, 7, Hyperion Application Link (HAL) 7.0, Hyperion Planning 3.%/9.x/11.x, Hyperiaon
Reports 3.x/7 x
Hyperion System 9 Bl+ Analytic Administration Services, Hyperion Planning System
WU CELEVIRIVeINE 9.3 1/9,3.0/4.0/3.5.1 and Hyperion suite Hyperion Shared Services 9.3, Web Forms, Hyperion
Esshase 9.3.1/7.X/6.X, Esshase Integration Services 7.X/6.X (EIS), Hyperion System 9 Smart View,
Essbase Excel Add In, ESSCMD, MAXL, MDX, Hyperion Reports 7.2/7.0, Hyperion Financial
Reporting Studio 9.3, HAL 7.3/7.1, Hyperion Analyzer 7.2/7.0, Hyperion Performance Suite, Hyperion
Intelligence 8.3
Web Analysis, Hyperion Analyzer, Hyperion Spreadsheet Add-in, Hyperion System 9 Smart View,
Hyperion Financial Reporting Studio, Hyperion Reports
DATABASES ESSBASE 9 Bl+, Oracle 9i/10g, DB2, Informatica, SQL Server 2000, MS Access, ESP
A Apache Tomcat, WebLogic 8.1.2 , Web Sphere 6.1

LANGUAGES C,C++, SQL, PL/SQL, Java
UYL R Windows 9NT 4.0/XP/2000/2003

Assignment History
Accenture, Affanta, GA May 2011 — present J

Hyperion EssBase developer/ Admin
Accenture It is a global management consulting, technology services and outsourcing company, with more than 244,000
people serving clients in more than 120 countrigs. Combining unparalleled experience, comprehensive capabiliies across
all industries and business functions, and extensive research on the world's most successful companies, Accenture
collaborates with clients to help them become high-performance businesses and govemments. Designed and set up the
580 scripls to handle single sign on for FDM from Hyperion Planning.
o  Created, modified and maintained the BSO and ASO cubes in Essbase and followed the Hour-Glass model for the

dimension order on Dense/Sparse dimensions based on end users' requirement,

Developed outlines, cal scripts, data rules for loading, Ess Cmd Scripts

Created Essbase cutline farmulas and ¢al scripts using advanced cal script functions

Created Business Rules in AAS according to the business requirements

Developed Batch files using MAXL, PERL and ESSCMDs and Rules files to upload data from financial systems

database to Essbase cube.

» Resolved issues with Hyperion Planning not being able to create applications due to configuration issues, by
troubleshooting Shared Services, Works pace, Hyperion Planning and other related DLLs and components.

o Setup 8§80 script to handle single sign on for FOM from Hyperion Planning, and for drill through from Hyperion
Planning to FOM.

»  Configured users and access rights in FDM.

Instalted and configured Hyperion Financial Data Management {FDM), including configuring I1S and Windows Server

2003 group policy.

Set up locations, control tables and import formats, including import scripts for FDM.

Configured users and access rights in FOM,

Extensively involved in performing tuning the Calc scripts, database tuning, and taking the Essbase backups

Involved in performing Administrative tasks like user authentication, creating new users for the Essbase cube using

EAS opticns.

e Involved in doing analysis and gathering the information in migrating from Hyperion Essbase 9.3.1 to Hyperion
Essbase 11.1.1

»  Produced ad-hoc reports by dynamic on-line querying in Analyzer

» Planning and coding complex reports developed in Excel using Visual Basic for Applications and the Essbase API

o Prepared quarterly forecasts, annual budget, ad-hac reporting and management reporting by working with the business
managers

Environment.  Hyperion System 11.1.13/9.3.1, Hyperion Planning 11.1.1.3/8.3.1, Analytical Admin. Services 11.1.1.3/2.3.1,
Analytical Integration Services 11.1.13/9.3.1, Bl+ (Financial Reports, Web Analysis), SQL Server, Windows NT

REPORTING TOOLS
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Standard Chartered, Newark, NJ Jun 2010 - May 2011 |

Essbase Developer
Standard Chartered operates a network of over 1,700 branches and outlets {including subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures. It is a universal bank and has operations in consumer, comporate and institutional banking and treasury services.
Despite its British base around 90% of its profits come from Africa, Asia and the Middle East.

Designed and build centralized standard reporting format that could be used for entire Reporting team to track their
Budgets, Actual and Forecast information in Essbase, The reports produced in financial reporting tool and Smart view.
In this project the manual process was replaced by Essbase cubes with smart view and financial reporting as front end.
Block Storage cube was built to capture the dimensions.

Involved in creating new Esshase cubes and restructure and redesigning of existing cubes.

involved in the perfermance funing and optimization of data files, dimensions and calc scripts for ASO and BSC cubes.
Extensively used MaxL., ESSCMDS for creating automation scripts and batch files. Scheduled these batch files for
complete automation process for nights and weekend's cube refresh and backups.

Prepared Relational Data Sources, Consclidating Relation data & developed the QLAP model & Meta -Outlines,
implemented Star Schema and used EIS to interface with the companies existing Oracle data warehouse.

Extensively involved in designing and medifying the outlines for ESSBASE Cubes.

Developed Calc Scripts, Rule files and Report Scripts for data ipads and dimension builds.

Developed batch scripts using MaxL and ESSCMDs to load data from relational systems database to ESSBASE cube,
Developed the Calc scripts to calculate complex values like Acquisition Cost, Gross Margin / Inverdory Turn, Revenue /
Payroll Hr, Total Head Count, Revenue per QTY, Revenue per Square Foot, Return on Assets, Property, Plant &
Equipment, Cash Cost per User and YTD Commitment & Vanance.

Involved in Performance Tuning to minimize data load time.

Analyzed alt dimensions and members in the ESSBASE outline.

Performed tuning by using the Dense/Sparse settings and developed the required altemate rollups for reports.
Responsible for Pedormance Monitoring, Backup and Recovery of the cube.

Implemented various troubleshocting procedures to recover databases,

Developed the PL/SQL slored procedures for implementing the business logic.

Constructed Oracle Database Triggers and Indexes.

Responsible for Code Reviews and PL/SQL Code Tuning.

Automated the weekly calculation process using batch script file.

Supported users with excel add-in, Essbase databases and data issues.

Involved in performing Administrative tasks like user authentication, creating new users for the Essbase cube using
EAS options.

Environment: QLAP Data Warehousing using Hyperion Essbase 7.1/6.5.4, Hyperion Planning 3.3.1, EIS 6.5, PeopleSoft DBZ,

Hyperion Reports 7.0, Hyperion Analyzer 7.0,0racle 8.1.7, Essbase Excel Add-In, MS- Excel, M3 Access Oracle
Hyperion Essbase 11.1.1, Hyperion Planning 11.1.1, Hyperion Weh Analysis, SmartView, Oracle 10g, Windows
2003 R2 server

Capital One Finangial, Richmond, VA Feb 2008 - May 2010

Essbase Developer
Capital One is a diversified financial services company offering a broad array of credit, savings and loan products to
customers in the United States, UK, and Canada. | extensively worked with a team to provide data to the end users across
the country and to Europe through our Essbase cubes. Developing Perl Scripts, Maxd. scripts, Esscmd scripts and
Calculation scripts depending on the accounting business logic was ane of the various challenges in the project. Intensive
troubleshooting was one of the requirements since the data load was dependent on various processes and the cubes were
supposed to be available to the users 24/7.

Interacted with end user for requirement specifications.

Involved in creating cubes that meet the end user requirements.

Automated the data loads using ESSCMD in both interactive and batch modes

Developed Report scripls, and implemented Calc scripts to calculate complex values

Developed and maintained Rule files, Calc Scripts, Maxl. Scripts & Reports.

Generated Reports related to strategy, fraud, collections and accounts receivables using Hyperion Analyzer 7.0
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Developed the Financial Reports and Sales Reports using Hyperion Reports 7.0.

Involved in Performance Tuning to minimize data load ime

Performed tuning by using the Dense/Sparse settings and developed the required alternate roliups for reports
Responsible for Performance Monitoring, Backup and Recovery of the cube

Implemented various troubleshooting procedures to recover databases

Investigated and resolved consolidation and metadata design issues

Extensively Used Visual Basic API for Essbase to develop an application to export the dimensions and members into
excel files

Environment: OLAP Data Warehousing using Hyperion Essbase 7.1/6.5.4, Hyperion Planning 3.3.1, EIS 6.5, PecpleSoft DB2,
Hyperion Reports 7.0, Hyperion Analyzer 7.0, Oracle 8.1,7, Essbase Excel Add-In, MS- Excel, MS Access

Ford Motor Co. Derait, M| Sep 2006 - Jan 2008

Hyperion Esshase/ Hypetion Planning Developer
The aim of this project is to developed new 12 cube's and migrate cube from old production Essbase server 7.1.3 an
window2000 server to Essbase System 9 version 9.3.1 on AlX environment with the historical data. For cube balancing
pracess creats report scripts to export data in txt files from Essbase cubes to compare with PeopleSoft materialize view and
financial view.
o Developed DIM build rules and Load Rules using flat files.

Generate the control M jobs to build dim and load full and increment data in ASO and BSO cubes.

Prepared report scripts to create flat file to compare the flat file and Informatica extract for cube balance.

Perfermed Optimization using Hour glass design technigue for BSO cubes.

Create documents for smart view installation, stop and restart the all Essbase services.

Support business user to make connection retrieve data in the smart view from the different environment like

Development, testing, Disaster recovery and Production server.

install, configure, and fine-tune Hyperion System § environment, Shared services, Analytical Provider services and

smartview.

Involved in making the Essbase backups and restores of Essbase application.

Developed Load Rules, Calc Scripts, Report scripts and Batch Scripts using Essemd and MaxL.

Create Report scripts to exporl data in file and compare the exported file with the informatica file.

Maintain the user and group in the Shared services.

Refreshed security form shared services.

Create and modify the .Property and .CFG file in the Essbase and Provider services.

Create and Modify report scripts to extract and send the data for cube batancing.

Migrate cubes from Essbase 7.1.3 to System9 using the migration wizard.

Export data in level), Input data and all data in the text file.

Create instances and datasource for the planning application using configuration utility,

Create HAL jobs to load members and data to planning application.

Create web forms, Business rules and sequences for the users.

Prepared Maxl scripts to rename the application and provisioning the users.

Copy and move the exported and extracted data in the different environment.

Load the exported data in the system3 on AIX 5.1 and windows 2000 server.

Environment.  AYX 5.1, Windows 2000, SYSTEM 9 Bl +{9.3), Essbase 7.1.3, M3-Excel 2000 Spreadsheet Add-in, Smart View,
BOXI, Oracle 10g, Tomcat Apache and I1BM Web Sphere , SecureCRT and Winscp

Chicago Tribune, Chicago, IL Mar 2004 - Aug 2006

Hyperion Developer

The Chicago Tribune has more than 40 cubes in some of the cube they have mare than 10,000 members. This project is
mainly for aptimization and performance tuning of different cubes. Profitability and expenses are compared and calculated
depending on sale of NEWS papers made during various Regions, cities, and publications. Sales per quarter, average
budget per quarter was determined. Overheads including salary of employees, damaged goods, total colors used were
taken into account for calculating the yield per year/ quarterf month/day.
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»  Created dimension building load rule and data load Rule for dynamic dimension building, attribute dimension building
and data ioading in Essbase.
Involved in instaliation of EIS, configuration and Migrating from Essbase version 6.5t0 7.1,
involved in performing DBA activities like create users, password setting, group and filters,
Invoived in making the Essbase backups and restores of Essbase application, Implemented robust data-access
security and user management.

¢  Performed Optimization using Hour glass design technique, during Data Loads and while calculating.

¢ Perormed Performance tuning by using the dense/spares settings and developed the required altemate rollups for

reports.
Environment:  Hyperion Esshase 6.5.1, EIS 7.0, Microsoft Excel 2000, Oracle 8, PL/SQL, SQL*Loader, MS SQL Server 7.0,
Windows NT 4.0
\
|
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Raj Bhanushali, Hyperion Developer

Bachelor's in Commerce, Mumbai University

Qualifications Summary

«  Over 6 plus years of IT experience in design, analysis, development and administration of various applications in
Client/Server OLAP environment using wide range of Hyperion products including Essbase, Planning, Integration
Services, Reports, Spreadsheet Add-In and Business Rules.

» A Good know-how on Hyperion System 9 EPM Suite of products.

» Experience with Essbase Database Administration including Database backups, Performance tuning, Optimization,
DensefSparse settings and Partitioning.

«  Fairly experienced with Hyperion Data Relationship Management in creating Version, Hierarchies and Nodes and
adding properties respectively. .

» Hands on experience in creating, maintaining, and supporting application objects including outlines, calculation scripts,
rules files for dimension builds and data loads, Error and Variance Reporting and transparent partitions.

» Good experience in developing MAXL, ESSCMD and windows Batch scripting.
+  Knowledge of Ctri+M

s Proficient in Data Modeling Techniques using Star Schema, Snowflake Schema, Fact and Dimension tables, OLAP
models, RDBMS, and Physical and Logical data modeling for Data Warehousing and Data Mart.

s Expertise in using Reporfing togls like Hyperion Visual Explorer, Hypericn Web Analysis, and Hyperion Financial
Reporting.

»  Skilled in developing and populating planning applications using Hyperion System 8 Planning, Hyperion Application
Link, MS Access and Hyperion System 9 Planning Desktop.

» Responsible for security groups and access for the users in Hyperion Reports and System 9 Planning and Shared
Services.

»  Strong conceptual, business and analytical skills.
s Highly motivated team player with immense ability to grasp new concepts and apply them,

Hyperion Essbase 11/ 9/7.x/6.x Hyperion Shared Services 11/9, EAS 11/9/7.x, Hyperion Planning
11/9/4.x, Hyperion Workspace, Hyperion DRM 11.x, Smart View for Hyperion, Financial Reporting,
MS Excel Spreadsheet Add-in {Hyperion System 9}, Hyperion Performance Scorecard 11/ and
Hyperion Visual Explorer

HYPERION TOOLS

Hyperion Essbase 6.x/7.x/9.x, Hyperion Analyzer8.5, Hyperion Reports 7.2, SQL Server 7.0, Cracle

DATABASE SYSTEMS 8i, 9i, 10G, Hyperion Planning 4.x & 9.x

Hyperion Reports 7.x, Web Analysis, Workspace, Hyperion Essbase 6.x/7.x/9.411.x, EAS6.5/7.0,

Al A £/55.5/7.0, Smart View, Excel Spreadsheet Add-In

LANGUAGES MDX, MaxL, Java, ESSCMD, Perl, SQL, PL/SQL Scripting, C, C++, SQL

OPERATING SYSTEMS MS Windows NT /XP/2000/98/95, UNIX, Linux

Bimensional Modeling, Star-Schema Modeling, Snow-Flake Modeling, Fact and Dimensions Tables,

MODE .
DATAMODELING Physical and Logical data medeling

e DM EI I Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Access, Qutlook, Stat graphics

Professional References

COMPANY
CONTACT PHONE
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RELATIONSHIP EMAIL
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

COMPANY
CONTACT PHONE

RELATIONSHIP EMAIL

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Assignment History
C&S Wholesale Grocers, Keene, NH Jul 2011 — present

Sr. Hyperion Essbase and Planning Consultant
C4&S is the largest wholesale grocery supply company in the .S, and the lead supply chain company in the food industry.
At C&S, | support production applications both Essbase and Planning by loading the data with rule files and MAXL scripts
from difterent sources into Esshase cubes as a part of daily maintenance. Also solving user tickets and developing new
cubes for business needs and managing user security.

Participated in gathering requirements from the users with the Business Analyst during the inception stage.

Translated end user requirements into application design specifications.

Created and maintained Planning applications.

Migrated Metadata from one version to another using Hyperion DRM,

Created numerous Planning web forms in Hyperion Planning Workspace.

Wrote Hyperion Business rules for Budget, Actual and rolling Forecast and Design; build, enhance and support web

based data entry forms within the Hyperion planning application.

Created Business Rules in ASQ according to the business requirements,

Migrated application from Essbase v 9.3.1 tov 11.1

Managed development and designing of Planning application and Essbase cubes using Essbase Integration Services.

Managed system upgrades and client installations based on user's requirements.

Developed Balch files using MAXL and ESSCMDs and Rules files to upload data from financial systems database to

Essbase cube.

e Handied performance tuning, weekly back-ups and monthly consolidations of data and automated
monthly/quarterty/annual report generation.

¢ Developed Analyzer OLAP views and sophisticated what-if scenarios for the end users.
Documented and issued procedures pertaining to Essbase applications.

»  Provided business analysts with advice and options on opportunities to leverage the tool and increase usage.

Environment; Hyperion System 11.1.2.1/9.3.1, Hyperion Planning 11.1.2.1/9.3.1, Analylical Admin. Services 11.1.2.1/9.3.1,
Hyperion DRM 11,1.2.1, Analytical Integration Services 11.1.2.1/9.3.1, Bl+ (Financial Reports, Web Analysis},
SQL. Server, Windows NT

Verizon Communications, Irving, TX m 2010 - Jun 2011 }

Hyperion Admin
»  Developed Planning Workflow and task flows.
Supported Loading of Metadata.
Developed Planning Web Forms.
Supported several Business rules for Allocations, eliminations, drivers and other calculations.
Managed Essbase reporting cube on top of planning cube.
Defined and setup the application security in Hyperion Planning, Hyperion Essbase, and Essbase Integration Services.
Developed OLAP Model, Meta-outline for building various Essbase cubes,
Analyzed all the dimensions and members in the Essbase database using Esshase Administration Services.
Setup automated scripts for weekly backup of the application.
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Computer Aid, Inc. o sl Prores ond Proguri ch
Contact: Chris Roth, NYC Di

» Created and automated aggregation scripts in ESSCMD and MAXL to run at the specific times that the business
required.

Provided technical guidance and suppert to end-users by developing the documentation required.

Performed unit testing and USER ACCEPTANCE TESTING (UAT) the final step before Rolling out of the Application.
Worked with Hyperion Support on a number of issue resclutions.

Developed the documentation required to transfer knowledge for the users and support.

Environment:  Hyperion Essbase 11.1.1.3, Hyperion Pianning 11.1.1.3, Hyperion workspace 11.1.1.3, Hyperion Shared
Services 11.1.1.3, DIM, BEA Weblogic 8.1/9.1, Essbase Excel Add-in, Smart View for Hyperion, Oracle 10g

BMC Software, Boston, MA MLUSE Jan 2010 - Jul 2010 l

Essbase Developer
BMC offers a comprehensive approach and unified platform that helps IT organizations cut cost, reduce risk and drive
business profit. BMC offers solutions across entire IT organization - mainframe o distributed systems, physical to virtual,
operations to support. Developed tool for BMC Finance depariment known as BRM Tool set that builds cubes for analyzing
the data using Hyperion Essbase. The Essbase interface takes the data from different data sources like Mainframe, Cracle
elc. and builds the data cubes. .

Analyzed userfbusiness requirements to design and develop new Essbase applications,

Automated varicus processes (i.e. load and calc) using Essbase scripts.

Participated in the design, development and support of muttiple applications.

Simplified data analyze process for users by developing screens using VBA.

Implemented MaxL., EssCMD, Report and Calc Scripts.

Responsible to manage the monthly financial consolidation process of the company and coordinate data load process

using various ERP systems.

Reduced calc time by using appropriate Performance tuning method.

Partitioned cubes/database to improve data retrieval efficiency.

Responsible for the administration of Essbase and Maintaining Essbase Databases.

Successfully generated reports using Essbase Report Analyzer.

Created users and security level and filter for each user.

Environment: ESSBASE 7.x, SQL Server 7.0 MS-Access, Load rules, Essbase Report Analyzer, MS-Excel VBA, and Windows
NT

Wels Fargo, San Francisco, CA Apr2009-2009 |

Hyperion Essbase Developer

» Responsibilities included developing and optimizing outlines, calc scripting, rule files creation, data load and extraction,
data testing, validation and database settings optimization.

o Translaled end user requirements into application design specifications.
Assured optimal match between cube design and report specifications.
Optimized structure and calculations through appropriate dense and sparse settings of dimensions, storage allocations
and by dynamic calculations and debugging.

s Managed system upgrades and client installations based on users requiremeants.

s Extensively worked with Hyperion reports and Analyzer; Developed reports for forecasting monthly expenditures,
expense management and contrel, comparing actual vs. planned expenditure, efc.
Responsible for taking weekly backups.
Involved in the upgrading Hyperion tools from 6.0t0 6.5.4

Environment:  Hyperion Essbase 6.5, Hyperion Reports 2,3, Essbase Excel Add-in, SQL*Plus, and SQL"Loader in Oracle 9i,
Windows 2000

Blue Chip Corporation, Mumbai, india WIS Oct 2006 - Feb 2008

ﬁaj Bhanushali Page 3 of 4




Computer Ald, Inc. S vl i T e s i Ftothee L
Contact. Chris Roth, NYC Division Manager = Chris_Roth@compaid.com » NY: (212} 561-3212 « Call: (610) 217-0529
Esshase Developer

Bhee Chip Corporation is a leading emerging I T hardware technology provider of verfical business management solution
serving Transcend in distribution technology.

Invoived in Qutline modifications, optimization, creation of batch scripts, scheduling runs, developing report scripts and
calc scripts.

Designed and created cubes for OLAP in Hyperion Essbase using rule files.

Created cubes and automation of data loads using batch scripts.

Called the batch processes, stored procedures and script commands.

Developed and maintained Rule Files, Calc Scripts.

Responsible for Performance Monitoring, Backup and Recovery.

Handled and completed change requests for various aready functional cubes.

Environment:  Hyperion Essbase 6.x, Oracle 8i, Windows XP/2000

Trigyn Technologies, Mumbai, India Apr 20056 - Sep 20(ﬂ

Programmer/Analyst

Developed the billing transaction and integrated with the order processing system which includes order confirmation,
deliveries, goods issued and billing.

Involved in coding of slored procedures and Functions.

Developed various reports to display the sales orders, deliveries pending bills from customers shipped orders and
outstanding dues.

Involved in writing source code using SQL, PL/SQL.

Worked on Oracle and SQL Server databases.

Worked on PL/SQL for writing Stored Procedures, Packages, Functions and Database Triggers.

Developed PL/SCIL scripts for back end validation/ updates.

Environment. Oracle 7.3 Forms 4.5, Reports2.5, PL/SQL and Win NT
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Appendix

Financial Capability

The following documents are included in this section in response to RFP page 3, C. Financial information.

A. Certified Financial Statements

B. Statement of Work which CAl has on hand, including any work on which a bid and/or response
has been submitted, containing a description of the work, the annual dollar value, the location by
City and State, the current percentage of completion, the expected date for completion, and the
name of an individual most familiar with CA{'s work on these jobs.

C. CAVs Banking Institution provided below with all required information.

Wells Fargo Bank, NA

NAME & ADDRESS OF BANKING Stabler Corporate Center
INSTITUTION 3701 Comporate Parkway, Suite 210
Center Valley, PA 18034

Charles Pulver, Vice President
{610) 791-6912

CHIEF BANKING REPRESENTATIVE

FEIN
DUN & BRADSTREET 07-372-7919
CREDIT SERVICE None

Proprietary &
Confidential
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Concannon,, Miller CROPRIEY ARY

Certified Public Accountants Business Consutants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Stockholders
~ Computer Aid, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Computer Aid, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then
ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opuuon on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, ds well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentanon We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated ﬁnanclal statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Computer Aid, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December
31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Bethlehem, PA

July 29, 2011
2-
1525 Valley Center Parkway, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18017-2285
_ Phona 610-433-5501 Fax 610-433-5001 Web www.concannonmiller.com
CONFIDENTIAL
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS CONFIDENTIAL
PROPRIETARY
December 31,
ASSETS 2010 2009
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $12,949616 3 7,318,651
Investments 383,371 193,290
Investments — other 20,983 21,514
Accounts receivable, net 46,508,111 42,736,793
Notes and other receivables 357,752 321,042
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,133,718 2,574,184
Total Current Assets 63,353,551 53,165,474
OTHER ASSETS
Notes and other receivables 31,143 53,517
Property and equipment, net 14,272,336 13,036,118
- Goodwill, net 3,393,572 3,393,572
Total Assets $81,050,602 § 69,648,681
LIABILITIES STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable ~ current portion $ 316141 % 297,549
Notes payable — line of credit 11,786,476 7,619,048
Capital lease obligations 334,124 420,739
Accounts payable 17,569,313 20,029,007
Cash overdraft 5,329,978 435,797
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,596,476 1,810,363
Accrued compensation 3,405,818 2,443,041
Payroll tax liabilities 169,496 21,920
Total Current Liabilities 40,507,822 33,077,464
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable 7,518,801 7,834,942
Other long-term liabilities 600,000 800,000
Capital lease obligations 0 366,230
Total Liabilities 48,626,623 42,078,636
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $.002 par value, 500,000 shares authorized,;
98 shares issued and outstanding 100 100
Nonvoting common stock, $.002 par value, 4,500,000 shares
authorized, 4,802 issued and outstanding 10 10
Additional paid-in capital 203,987 203,987
Minority interest 405,933 384,569
Noncontrotling interest in VIE 105,121 387,289
Retained eamings 31,423,093 26,998,457
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities 13,845 (4,580)
Cumulative interest rate swap loss (306,700) (254,169)
Cumulative foreign currency hedge gain 685,443 180,233
Cumulative translation adjustment (106,853) (325,851)
Total Stockholders' Equity 32,423,979 27,570,045
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $81,050,602 $ 69,648,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
CONFIDENTIAL 3-
PROPRIETARY




COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS CONFIDENTIAL
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PROPRIETARY
Years Ended
December 31, |
2010 2009

REVENUE $252,338,602  $244,275,550
COST OF REVENUE 188,630,812 182,678,809.
GROSS PROFIT 63,707,790 61,596,741
OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative 48,195,592 47,726,425

Research and development 3,538,102 4,378,579

Bad debts 60,045 183

Depreciation and amortization 1,864,315 1,988,089

Total Operating Expenses 53,658,054 54,093,276

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 10,049,736 7,503,465
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Interest income 123,972 28,534

Interest expense (920,532) (1,005,542)

Other income 241,555 112,256

Total Other Income (Expense) (555,005) (864,752)

NONCONTROLLING INTEREST IN INCOME OF

CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES (560,670) (524,142)
MINORITY INTEREST IN INCOME OF CONSOLIDATED -

SUBSIDIARIES (70,471) (34,436)
NET INCOME $ 8,863,590 $ 6,080,135

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

NET INCOME $ 8,863,590 § 6,080,135
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)

Unrealized gain on marketable securities 18,425 78,362

Increase (decrease) in fair value of interest rate swap (422,862) 167,122

Increase in fair value of foreign currency hedge 452,679 683,366

Cumulative translation adjustment 218,599 488,167

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

$ 9,130,831 §$ 7,497,152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
CONFIDENTIAL e
PROPRIETARY




COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS, JANUARY 1

NET INCOME

DISTRIBUTIONS TO STOCKHOLDERS

RETAINED EARNINGS, DECEMBER 31

CONFIDENTIAL
PROPRIETARY

CONFIDENTIAL
PROPRIETARY

Years Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
$ 26,998,457 § 23,592,484
8,863,590 6,080,135
(4,438,954) (2,674,162)
$ 31,423,093 § 26,998,457

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

" Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on disposition of property and equlpment
Noncontrolling interest/VIE
Minority interest in subsidiary
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Notes and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Cash overdraft
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Accrued compensation
Payroll tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

" Acquisition of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment
Purchase of investments, net
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in line of credit
Payment of notes payable
Net decrease in capital lease obligations
Distributions to stockholders
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
‘NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , JANUARY 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
6
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Years Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
$ 8863590 § 6,080,135
1,864,315 1,988,089
(1,760) 362
(282,168) 1,000,445
21,364 (69,097)
(3,771,318) 2,397,767
(14,336) 32,139
(541,561) 756,018
(2,007,015) 2,339,320
4,894,181 (4,689,921)
(213,887) (106,813) -
962,776 (150,064)
147,576 (60,885)
(200,000) (389,342)
9,721,757 5,128,153
(3,207,224) (1,008,085)
90,478 7,000
(171,125) 70,016
(3,287,871) (931,069)
4,167,428 (1,428,571)
(297,549) (381,405)
(452,845) (396,021)
(4,438,954) (2,674,162)
(1,021,920) (4,880,159)
218,999 488,167
5,630,965 3,805,092
7,318,651 3,513,559
$ 12949616 $ 7318651 -




COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES ~
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) CONFIDENTIAL

PROPRIETARY
ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Years Ended
._ December 31,
2010 2009
" INTEREST PAID | $ 914073 $ 995493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONFIDENTIAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OROPRIETARY
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1  Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries, CAI Canada, Compworks, Inc., CAl
Asia Pacific, CAl APAC Singapore and Professional Resource Group, Inc., its
majority-owned subsidiary, CAI Europe, its 50% owned joint venture CAI — STA
Philippines, Inc., CAI-STA Systems, and Ridgeview Limited Partners and TCS
Systems, Inc., variable interest entities. All material intercompany transactions
have been eliminated.

Business Operations

Computer Aid, Inc. (the "Company"), a Pennsylvania corporation, was
incorporated on August 24, 1981. The Company is a full service information
technology consulting firm specializing in strategic outsourcing to Fortune 1000
organizations. Its service offerings are divided into the following areas: strategic
information technology consulting, application development, legacy systems
outsourcing, information technology help desk services, systems integration and
implementation, and staff augmentation. The Company operates throughout the
United States and internationally from 23 locations which are aligned into four
operating regions,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company
considers cash on hand and deposits in banks as cash and cash equivalents. Cash in
bank consists primarily of cash held by regional banks in money market sweep
arrangements and business checking accounts.

Valuation of Investments in Securities at Fair Value

. The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, effective January 1, 2008. Under ASC 810, fair
value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability (i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. ‘

ASC 810 establishes a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair
value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when
available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
Company. Unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s assumption about the inputs
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the
best information available in the circumstances.

CONFIDENTIAL 8-
PROPRIETARY



COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

; CONFIDENTIAL
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) GONFIDENTIAL
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1  Description of Business and Summary of Sigﬁiﬁcant Accountin‘g Policies
(Continued)

E Valuation of Investments in Securities at Fair Value (Continued)

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to =ccess.
Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 securities.
Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in
an active market, valuation of these securities does not entail a significant degree of
judgment.

Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active
or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant
to the overall fair value measurement.

Revenue Recognition -

Revenue related to professional services rendered under time-and-materials
' type contracts is recognized as the work is performed. Revenue from maintenance
contracts is recognized proportionally, each month, over the contract period.

Accounts Receivable

The Company uses the reserve method to account for potentially uncollectible
receivables. The balance in the reserve at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was
$1,266,643 and $1,273,277, respectively. -

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets which is typically five to thirty-nine years. Depreciation on
buildings under capital leases is provided on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the leases.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of companies acquired over the fair
value of their net assets at date of acquisition. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the
gross carrying amount of goodwill was $3,575,404, and accumulated amortization
was $181,832 for each year.

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and
Others, the Company tests the goodwill value on an annual basis. The Company
has determined the goodwill has not been impaired; therefore, no impairment loss
has been recognized. '

CONFIDENTIAL -G
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONFIDENTIAL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) propRIETARY
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

. NOTE1  Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
; (Continued)

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
‘Income Taxes

‘ The Company has elected to file in the United States as an S Corporation for
federal tax purposes. Therefore, no provision for federal income taxes has been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements as the tax effect of its activities
accrues to the stockholders. The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, CAI
Canada, is subject to Canada’s federal income tax as well as provincial taxes.
These income tax expenses are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.
The Company files tax returns in numerous states. In certain states, the Company

~ has elected to file as an S Corporation and, accordingly, no provision for income
taxes for these states has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements,
Income tax expense for those states in which the Company has not elected S
Corporation status is insignificant and is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company implémented the accounting guidance
for uncertainty in income taxes using the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740,
Income Taxes. Using that gnidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in
the consolidated financial statements when it is more-likely-than-not the position
will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions
initially and subsequently need to be measured at the largest amount of tax benefit
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and relevant facts.
The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income tax positions
taken and that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based
on an assessment of many factors including experience and interpretations of tax
Jaws applied to the facts of each matter.

The adoption of ASC 740 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. The Company has concluded that there are no
significant uncertain tax positions requiring disclosure, and there are no material
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits.
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. '

Derivative Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. ASC 815, requires that all derivative
instruments be recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value as either
assets or liabilities. The Company reports the fair value of its foreign currency
hedges on the consolidated balance sheet and unrealized gains or losses are reported
in other comprehensive income.

Concentrations

For the year ended Decémber 31, 2009, 18% of the Company's sales were
from one customer. The Company does not expect that the revenue from these
customers will be lost in the near term. There was no such concentration of sales to
any one customer for the year ended December 31, 2010.

"The Company occasionally maintains deposits in excess of federally-insured
limits, FASB ASC Topic 275, Risks and Uncertainties, identifies these items as a
concentration of credit risk requiring disclosure, regardless of the degree of risk.
The risk is managed by maintaining all deposits in high-quality financial
institutions. At times the amount on deposit at the bank exceeds the insurance
limits of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Uninsured cash balances were
approximately $6,948,300 and $4,595,000 at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively,

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was $16,543
and $3,565 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

-11-
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 201¢ AND 2009

CONFIDENTIAL
PROPRIETARY

NOTE2 Investments

The Company classifies its investments in marketable securities as available
for sale securities and reports them at fair value, determined by quoted market
prices, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as a
separate component of equity. Based upon a fair value hierarchy, in accordance
with ASC 820 (see Note 1), all investments held at December 31, 2010 and 2009
are considered Level 1 instruments.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the cost, estimated fair value and unrealized
gains and losses on marketable securities are as follows:

December 31, 2010
Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Value
Equity Securities $ 369526 §___ 13843 § 383371
December 31, 2009
Unrealized Fair
—Cost _ Losses __ Value
Equity Securities § 197870 § (4,580) §___193.290

Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market
and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the value of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE3 Property and Equipment

December 31,
2010 2009
Land $ 1,217,895 $ 1,217,895
Land improvements 601,874 601,874
Buildings ' 8,098,542 8,191,037
Leased buildings 3,109,084 3,109,084
Leaschold improvements 3,069,109 3,101,408
Computer equipment 11,904,178 16,129,340
Transportation equipment 382,603 330,232
Office furnishing and fixtures 1,950,514 2,901,270

30,333,799 35,582,140
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization (including $2,875,872 and
$2,564,964, respectively, of accumulated
amortization of leased buildings) (16,061,463} _(22,546,022)
§ 14272336 § 13,036,118
Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 was $1,864,315 and $1,988,089, respectively. Included in this

amount for both 2010 and 2009 was capital lease amortization of approximately
$310,900. - :
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  proPRIETARY

CONFIDENTIAL

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 4 Line of Credit

i The Company has a line of credit with a bank in the amount of $19,857,143
with interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus 1.75% (2.0106% at December 31,
2010). This line is structured into two components, Tranche A and Tranche B.
| Tranche A is a revolving line in the amount of $12,000,000. Tranche B consists of
| _ advances already made to the Company in the amount of $7,857,143. Principal
payments made against Tranche B cannot be reborrowed. The line of credit is
secured by accounts receivable and is payable on demand. The outstanding balance
at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, was $11,786,476 and $7,619,048.

Subsequent to year end, the Company renegotiated the Tranche A component
of the line of credit which increased the maximum borrowings to $22,000,000 and
lowered the interest rate to LIBOR plus 1.5%. In addition, the Company converted
the remaining principal balance of the Tranche B component into a separate
1 o promissory note in the amount of $5,595,238 with an interest rate of LIBOR plus
1.75%. An interest rate swap agreement is related to this note. Please see Note 5 —
Term Debt for further details. Both the line of credit and promissory note mature
December 31, 2011.

NOTES  Term Debt

December 31,
2010 2009
Note payable, interest at LIBOR plus 1.0%
(1.2606% at December 31, 2010), secured by real
; estate, due February 2016, due in varying monthly
: installments $ 7,834,942 § 8,132,491
Less current portion (316.,141) (297.549)

$.7518.801 § 7.834,942

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows-:

2011 $ 316,141
2012 334,571
2013 354,551
2014 380,366
2015 403,959
Thereafter 6,045,354

$_ 7,834,942

These loan agreements contain certain covenants to maintain specific financial
ratios and to meet certain non-financial requirements. As of December 31, 2010,
the Company was not in compliance with one of the non-financial covenants, The
bank has waived those requirements at December 31, 2010.

CONFIDENTIAL
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DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTES  Term Debt (Continued)

The Company uses variable-rate debt to finance its operations. The debt
obligations expose the Company to fluctuations in interest payments due to changes
in interest rates. Management believes it is prudent to limit the variability of a
portion of its interest payments, and to meet this objective, entered into interest rate
swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flow. Under the swap agreements,
the Company receives variable interest rate payments and makes fixed interest
payments, thereby creating the equivalent of fixed rate debt.

The Company is a party to an interest rate swap agreement for interest rate risk
exposure management purposes. This interest rate swap agreement effectively
converts $9,020,292 notional amount and involves the payment of fixed rate
(6.00%) amounts in exchange for floating interest rate (LIBOR plus 1.0%) receipts

. over the life of the agreement which matures in 2016.

In 2008, the Company entered into another interest rate swap agreement for
interest rate risk exposure management purposes. This interest rate swap agreement
effectively converts $10,000,000 notional amount and involves the payment of
fixed rate (4.58%) amounts in exchange for floating interest rate (LIBOR plus
1.25%) receipts over the life of the agreement which matures in 2015. This
agreement is related to the line of credit disclosed in Note 4 — Line of Credit.

FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, requires that at inception,
and on an ongoing basis, the Company assess whether the derivatives are expected
to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value hedged items. If and when
a derivative is no longer expected to be highly effective, hedge accounting is
discontinued. Hedge ineffectiveness, if any, is included in current period earnings.
The Company’s ineffective amounts, which represent the present value liability of
terminating the agreements using short-term treasury rates, were $306,700 and
$254,169 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

NOTE6 Commitments

In accordance with the Company's Key Employee Stock Sale and Redemption
Agreement, the Company has an obligation to repurchase stock from minority
stockholders in certain circumstances. Payment shall be made, at the sole discretion
of the Corporation, either in cash or a promissory note payable in monthly
payments, including interest at prime plus 1%, over a period not exceeding 24
months. At December 31, 2010, the aggregate purchase price would have been
$1,810,216.
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COMPUTER AID, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONFIDENTIAL

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Commitments (Continued)

The Company leases certain equipment and its executive and operating offices
under capital and operating leases (see Note 7 for leases with related parties).
Minimum future lease payments are as follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2011 : 3 857379  § 3,615,071
2012 0 4,660,589
2013 0 3,489,992
2014 0 2,781,458
Thereafter _ 0 8.981,196
857,379  $25,528,306
Less amount representing executory costs (505,143)
Less amount representing interest . (18112)
Present value of minimum lease payments 334,124
Less current portion ' 334,124
Noncurrent Portion p __ 0

Rent expense for all property and equipment was approximately $1,346,311
and $1,43l,500 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

Through December 31, 2007, the Company leased property from Tecport
Partners Limited Partnership, a partnership 50% owned by the majority stockholder,
members of his family and several employees of the Company, at an annual rate of
$855,192 plus costs. This lease had been capitalized. In December 2007, Tecport
Partners Limited Partnership sold this property to an unrelated third party. As a
condition to the property’s sale, the Company extended the term of the lease
agreement for an additional ten years. In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 840,
Leases, the Company will continue to account for the lease as a capital lease
through the original term date of the lease, October 2011. Afier that time, the lease
will be accounted for as an operating lease. -

TecPort Solutions, Inc. (TecPort) is a corporation that provides consulting and
subcontract work to the Company. The majority shareholder of the Company owns
35% of TecPort. During 2010 and 2009, the Company purchased services from
TecPort valued at $133,427 and $38,320, respectively. In addition the Company
contracts with TecPort to provide administrative and marketing support,
subcontractor services and office supplies. Total revenues for these services were
$1,344,624 and $1,203,589 for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

-15-
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NOTE7 Related Party Transactions {Continued)

A summary of notes and other receivables due from related parties is as

follows:
December 31,
2010 _ 2009
Notes and other receivables — employees and :
other related parties $ 240634 § 247,076
Less current portion 213884 _ 208,297
Noncurrent Portion _ $ 26750 $ _38779

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, $65,015 and $80,766,
respectively, of accounts payable represented amounts due to related parties.

NOTE S8  Pension and Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan. The 401(k) feature is
available to all employees upon employment and after attaining 18 years of age.
Participants may elect to contribute up to 30% of their total gross pay. Additional
catch up contributions may be made subject to annual IRS limitations. The profit
sharing feature of the Plan is available only to salaried employees who are 18 years
of age and have completed one year of service. Vesting in the Company’s
contributions is based on years of continuous service with participants becoming
fully vested after five years of credited service. The Company did not elect to make
a contribution for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

-Computer Aid, Inc. has a self-insured medical expense reimbursement plan
which covers those employees of the Company who meet the participation
requirements described in the Plan. Under the Plan, the Company is responsible for
$175,000 per claim for eligible participants and has stop loss insurance to cover any
expenses exceeding the $175,000 limit. Expense related to the Plan was $5,764,095
and $7,168,094 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had prepaid expenses related to the .
Plan of $1,984,353 and $1,580,275, respectively. These amounts are included in
other assets. Plan assets are maintained in a Trust established on January 1, 1990 to
fund future medical benefits as defined by the Plan. Accrued expenses related to
the Plan at December 31, 2010 and 2009 were $452,614 and $526,502, respectively.

NOTE9  Variable Interest Entities

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidation, certain entities
known as "Variable Interest Entities” ("VIE") must be consolidated by the "primary
beneficiary" of the entity, The primary beneficiary is generally defined as having the
majority of the risks and rewards arising from the VIE. For VIEs in which a

. significant (but not majority) variable interest is held, certain disclosures are
required.

CONFIDENTIAL
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DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Variable Interest Entities (Continued)

The Company is a beneficiary in Ridgeview Limited Partners (Ridgeview),
which owns and operates commercial real estate and is the owner of the Company's
main office facility. The Company is a co-borrower on the debt of Ridgeview.
Based on the guidance in ASC 810, the Company concluded that Ridgeview is a
VIE and the Company is the primary beneficiary of Ridgeview’s expected cash
flows. Accordingly, the Company has included Ridgeview's financial results in the
consolidated financials,

At December 31, 2010, the consolidation of Ridgeview increased the
Company’s consolidated assets by $8,880,046 and consolidated liabilities by
$8,884,963, prior to eliminations. Ridgeview’s 2010 net income of $531,758 was
recorded as noncontrolling interest and included on the consolidated statements of
operations. : ' :

At December 31, 2009, the consolidation of Ridgeview increased the
Company’s consolidated assets by $9,245,838 and consolidated liabilities by
$8,939,674, prior to eliminations. Ridgeview’s 2009 net income of $508,735 was
recorded as noncontrolling interest and included on the consolidated statements of
operations.

The Company is also a beneficiary in TCS Systems, Inc. (TCS), which owns
and leases computer equipment and automobiles, the majority of which are used by
the Company. The Company has loaned funds to TCS to acquire these assets.
Based on the guidance in ASC 810, the Company concluded that TCS is a VIE and
the Company is the primary beneficiary of TCS’s expected cash flows.
Accordingly, the Company has included TCS’s financial results in the consolidated
financials.

At December 31, 2010, the consolidation of TCS increased the Company’s
consolidated assets by $206,762 and consolidated liabilities by $96,724, prior to
eliminations. TCS's 2010 net income of $28,912 was recorded as noncontrolling
interest and included on the consolidated statements of operations.

At December 31, 2009, the consolidation of TCS increased the Company’s
consolidated assets by $194,939 and consolidated liabilities by $113,813, prior to
eliminations. TCS’s 2009 net income of $15,407 was recorded as noncontrolling
interest and included on the consolidated statements of operations.

-17-
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DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 10 Foreign Currency Hedge

The Company has a forward foreign currency exchange contract in Philippine
pesos to manage foreign currency exposure on intercompany transactions. The
Company accounts for this financial instrument in accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. As such, this forward contract specifies a
fixed U.S. dollar forward rate that is applied on a monthly basis to a quantity of
Philippines pesos, as noted in the contract. The Company then receives or makes
payments based on the difference between the fixed U.S. dollar forward rate and the
actual exchange rate on the monthly valuation date.

At December 31, 2010, the fair value of the forward foreign currency contract
asset was $685,443 of which $190,941 and $494,502 have been classified as current
and non-current, respectively. The change in fair value of the forward contract
during 2010 was a gain of $505,210 and is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income.

At December 31, 2009, the fair value of the forward foreign currency contract
liability was $180,233, of which $126,771 and $53,462 was classified as current and
non-current, respectively. The change in fair value of the forward contract during
2009 was & gain of $683,366 and was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income.

NOTE 11 Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition
or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements through July 29; 2011. Except
as described in Note 4 — Line of Credit, no events or transactions occurred
subsequent to this date” that would require recognition or disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.
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’ Lsiness Consuants ‘

Certified Public Acountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

- To the Stockholders
Computer Aid, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Our report on our audit of the consolidated balance sheets of Computer Aid, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of
operatiogs and comprehensive income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended
appears on page 2. The audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The following supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information has not been sﬁbjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audits of the consolidated financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on

it.

Bethlehem, PA
July 29, 2011
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PRICE FORMS

1A. One-Year Base Period; Fixed Price {Lump Sum)

Description Total Prices hased on Respondent’s Govt. Contract -- Yes ar No? And
' identify the Government Contract and the Contract #
1} Operation Support Hourly rate based upon Metra-Narh Railraad Tntormalion Technology Consulling Services
{)0p PRO 3 153,648.00 |Master Agreement #00000 70816, Category 14-Hyperion Developer. Total based upon
1940 hrs
(2) Application S
Maintenance and 153,648.00 |Hourly rate based upon Metro-North Raitroad Information Technology Consulting Services
Master Agreement #00000 70816, Category 14-Hyperion Developer.Total based upon
Support 1940 hrs
(3) Database $ 252 200,00 | Houry rated based upon GSA Advantage, Computer Aid, Inc. (GS-35F-0256N)
Administration P51 Data Base Administrator rate of $130.00/our. Team Lead and DBA role.
TOTAL 3 5589.496.00

18.  Miscellaneous Tasks

{see note 3):

Category of Total Hourly W Total Prices based on Respondent’s Govt.
Personnel Estimated Rate Contract -- Yes or No? And identify the
Hours Government Contract and the
Contract #
Trainer 40 x | $ 80.00 | = $ 320000 | Trainer / Transition Manager 380Mour, CAl rate
Application Specialist | g4, x |$ 79200 = $ 39.600.00 | Yes. as noted above
Project Manager 60 x |$ 13000 | = $ 7,800.00} Yes, as noted above
[ Total S
50,600.00
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Disaster Recovery Tests; Fixed Price (Lump Sum}): Cost to participate, as needed, in disaster recovery

1C.
tests, in accordance with Section 3.8 of Attachment C, Scope of Work. Assume no more than three (3) tests per
year
Year | Price perTest | x | Three Tests per Year | = | Total Prices based on
Respondent’s Govt.
Contract -- Yes or No? And
identify the Government
Contract and the Contract
#
One $ 6,921.80 X 13 = 5 20,764.80 Pricing based on CAl team rates for
each of the three rasources i+
1D.  Transition Costs; Fixed Price (Lump Sum):
Total one-time cost for an orderly transition from the existing vendor: $ 38,400.00

Timeframe: &

1E.

Sections 1A+ 1B+ 1C+1D=5

weeks

———

Total cost for base period

669,260.80

2. One-YEAR OPTION PERIOD
2A, One-Year Option Period; Fixed Price {Lump Sum)
Description Total Prices based on Respondent’s Govt. Contract -- Yes or No? And

identify the Government Contract and the Contract #

(1) Operation Support S

Hourty rate based upon Metro-North Railroad Information Technology Cansulting Ser\.'ices_4

Administration

247,000.00

150,480.00 | Master Agraement #00000 70816, Calegory 14-Hyperion Developer. Total based upon
A000 be
(2) Application S 1
Maintenance and 150.480.00 | Hourly rate based upon Metro-North Railroad tniormation Technolegy Consulting Services
' Master Agreemant #00000 70816, Category 14-Hyperion Developer.Total based upon
Support 1900 hrs
{3) Database )

Hourly rated based upon GSA Advantage, Computer Aid, Inc. (GS-35F-0256N)
Data Base Administrator rate of $130.00/hour. Team Lead and DBA role.

TOTAL
L

<N

547.960.00
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2B, Miscellaneous Tasks  (see note 3):

’_Category of Total Hourly Rate Total | Prices based on Respondent’s Govt. Contract
Personnel Estimated -- Yes or No? And identify the Government
Hours Contract and the Contract #
] Trainer / Transition Manager $80/hour, CAl rate
Trainer 40 x [$ 8000 = 320000
Application | 500 x |$ 7920 = ggp000 Y5 35 noledin1A
Specialist
Project | 60 x 5§ 13000 = 780000
Manager
50,600.00

2C. Disaster Recovery Tests; Fixed Price (Lump Sum): Cost to participate, as needed, in disaster recovery
tests, in accordance with Section 3.8 of Attachment C, Scope of Work. Assume no more than three (3) tests per
year

Year Price per Test | x | Three Tests per Year | = Total Prices based on Respondent’s
Govt. Contract - Yes or No?
And identify the Government
Contract and the Contract #

One s X = $ Pricing based on CAl team rates for each
M 20.764.80 of the three resources (Estimated 24 hougy

2D.  Total cost for Option period

Sections 2A + 2B +2C=5$__ 619,324.80

3. TOTAL COST OF THE CONTRACT

Sections 1E+2D= § 1,268,585.60

4. ASSUMPTIONS & NOTES

Provide assumptions or notes to clarify or explain the cost structure submitted. Use additional sheets/pages if
necessary.
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Attachment I Contractor's Assumptions/Notes/Clarifications

SAMS: Basele OptionT!
BT S ol AT of 3
: Pi‘?‘hiéﬂd@g 4

Base and Option pricing will remain consistent.
No increase for year wo.

;| Transition to begin in mid-May, 2012 and be completed in early July, 2012,
Planned to occur over a six-week period while team is supporting the production environment.
Transition Manager and suppor staff to provide delivery of fransttion activities with team ($80/hour for two resources for six

weeks)

.| Disaster Recovery effort is estimated at 24 hours per person per test - based upan hourly rates for CAl team resources

¢| Rates established are consistent with team in place.
Trainer and Transition Manager rates are $80/our.

Major enhancements will be handled as desired by the Port Authority.

Ei A ? ""5
10.be corpn%%siﬁaw.‘ ;
Efar ho t'sH ;tf&

Ix
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Zanett Response to NY & N! Port Authority - B Zanett

BudgetPro Support Selection Process Document ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

A. Letter of Transmittal

April 17, 2012

The Port Authority of New York & New Jersey
Procurement Department

2 Montgomery Street, 3" Floor

Jersey City, NJ 07302

"Thank you for allowing Zanett to provide the Port Authority of NY & NJ (“Port Authority”) with our response to
Hyperion Application Management Services for the overall BudgetPro System.

Zanett, a highly innovative leader in the Public Sector industry and the Oracle consulting services market,
commits to addressing the Port Authority’s Hyperion application management needs. We bring with us, our vast
experiences from a wide variety of previous Hyperion engagements, key to our success at the City of
Indianapolis. Our unique combination of public sector experiences and deep Hyperion expertise ensures that
our customers achieve sustainable value from their Oracle Hyperion investments.

Over the course of reviewing NY & NJ Port Authority's Process Selection Document and Capabilities Discussion
onsite with the Port Authority, Zanett has gained an appreciation of the intricacies, challenges and opportunities
this statement of work and service level agreements mean to the Port Authority. As a result, we have
assembled the Hyperion Application Management Services for the BudgetPro System that combines our Public
Sector industry knowledge with our expert team of Zanett's Hyperian certified consultants, with specific focus
on the following key service areas:

¢ Operational Support
s Application Maintenance and Support
o Database Administration

For Zanett’s response to the Port Authority’s Hyperion Process Selection Document, please find below
requested information for this transmittal letter.

a. Name, physical address, and URL address of the Respondent and an original signature on the Letter of
Transmittal by an authorized representative on behalf of the Respondent;

Kevin Teder

Sr. Vice President — Zanett
635 Madison Ave., 15" Floor
New York, NY 10022

b. Name(s), title(s), email addresses and telephone number(s) of the individuals{s) who are authorized to
negotiate and execute the Contract;

Executive Management Sales Leadership Delivery Leadership
Chuck Deskins Kevin Teder Darrell Barr

President Senior Vice President - Sales Executive Director
chuck.deskins@zapett.com kevin.teder@zanett.com darrell.barr@zanett.com
{248) 739-0414 {317) 250-1536 336-918-4985%
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Zanett Response to NY & NJ Port Authority — B Zanett

BudgetPro Support Selection Process Document ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

¢. Name, title, email address and telephone number of two contact persons {primary & backup) to which
the Port Autharity can address questions or issues related to the Selection Process Document;

Darrell Barr Nancy Rich
Executive Director, Hyperion — Zanett Director, Public Sector — Zanett
darrell.barr@zanett.com nancy.rich@zanett.com

{(336) 918-4985 (239) 285-1964

d. Name and address of proposed subcontractors, if any;

Cenosystems, Inc. (MBE) Infinity Tech Group lnc. (WBE)
82-59 172" st 292 Main Street Suite # 6
Jamaica, NY 11432 Hackensack NJ 07601

e. If a corporation: (a} a statement of the names and residences of its officers, and (b} a copy of its
Certification of Incorporation, with a written declaration signed by the secretary of the corporation, with
the corporate seal affixed thereto, that the copy furnished is a true copy of the Certificate Incorporation
as of the date of the opening of the Responses;

Chuck Deskins Dennis Harkins

President — Zanett Chief Financial Officer — Zanett
45685 S Lake Dr. 635 Madison Ave., 15" Floor
Novi, MI. 48377 New York, NY 10022

Please see Selection Process Document — Attachment 1: Supporting Documentation for Zanett's
Certification of incorporation.

Zanett is financially capable of performing the contract resulting from this Selection Process Documentation.
Zanett exemplifies our financial stability by providing the following information, as requested by the Port
Authority.

A. Certified Financial Statements, including application notes, reflecting the Respondent’s assets, liabilities,
net warth, revenues, expenses, profit or loss and cash flow for the most recent year or Respond most
recent fiscal year.

Please see Selection Process Document — Attachment 1: Supporting Documentation for Zanett’s
Finoncials Statements {2008 — Sept. 2011).

B. A statement of work which the Respondent has on hand, including any work on which a bid and/or
response has been submitted, containing a description of the work, the annual dollar value, the location
by City and State, the current percentage of completion, the expected date for completion, and the
name of an individual most familiar with the Respondent’s work on these jobs,

Please see Selection Process Document — Attachment 1: Supporting Documentation for Zanett’s
Statement of Work.
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C.

The name and address of the Respondent’s banking institution, chief banking representative handling
the Respondent’s account, the Respondent’s Federal Employer Identification Number (i.e., the number
assigned to firms by the Federal Government for tax purposes), the Respondent’s Dun and Bradstreet
number, in any, the name of any credit service to which the Respondent furnished information and the
number, if any, assigned to such service to the Respondent’s account.

Banking Institution FEIN Number Dun and Bradstreet Number

PNC Bank, N.A. Ex.1 79-672-9155
350 East Devon Avenue '
Itasca, IL 60143

Bettom line, Zanett feels confident we have the most comprehensive application management services for the
Port Authority of NY & NJi's BudgetPro System. Zanett will make sure that we maximize the business value of
your Hyperion application while ensuring that the Port Authority of NY & NI’s service levels agreements are met,
quite possibly, exceeded.

We thank you for the opportunity to share our information and the potential to work with you.

Sincerely,

t
! ) A

o

Darrell Barr - Executive Director

Zanett
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B. Executive Summary

"The Zanett Enterprise Performance Management {EPM} practice is made up of an elite team of consultants and
leaders with substantial business depth and technical skill. Qur team consists of consultants with an average of
12 years of direct BI/EPM experience and brings a “been there, done that” level of experience and knowledge to
every project. Our team size will typically be smaller than our competitors, which also typically contributes to
lower total costs. Regardless of title or leadership level, hands-on skills with real world experience characterize
our team,

Zanett's Hyperion application management services revolve around our EPM capabilities with Public Sector
experience and strategic focus on our clients’ ROI, described as follows:

» Enterprise Performance Management. Zanett is a leading provider of Oracle Hyperion, Essbase, and
OBIEE solutions as an Oracle Platinum Partner.

s Public Sector Experienced Team. Zanett's Hyperion application support and maintenance team
combines actual Public Sector experiences and Oracle Hyperion design, implementation, optimization
and support public sector client successes.

s Return on Investment Realized Through RE (Real Enterprise Value). Zanett takes very seriously the
need for our clients to realize tangible ROI as a result of these types of projects. Our REV™ approach
has been hailed by Oracle as THE GOLD STANDARD APPROACH for ensuring true measurable ROI results
from our client’s Oracle initiatives.

VTM

We showcase our exemplary level services with our key Public Sector reference, City of Indianapolis:

" City of Indianapolis. Modernized the City’s manually intensive and error

f“ prone planning and budgeting process with streamlined models to evaluate
W and project the impact of employee compensation and benefits, capital
\j projects, and revenue forecasting, delivering enhanced analytics and

X I reporting capabilities to the Office of Finance and providing capabilities to
lndIGnOpO IS the City never previously available,

Our budget and planning solution and follow-on application support services inciuded:

e |Installed and implemented a High Availability solution centered upon Oracle’s Hyperion Enterprise
Performance Management Public Sector Planning and Budgeting System.

e 11.1.x Integrated with PeopleSoft Financials and HCM 9.1 utilizing Zanett’s hosting capabilities through
its Managed Services arm to provide all physical infrastructure, system administration, high availability
architecture for the next three years,

s Leveraged Zanett’s Accelerator solution to deploy Oracle Hyperion Public Sector Planning and Budgeting
provides to support position and employee budgeting, capital expense planning, and revenue
forecasting models across all agencies.

s Modernized the City’s manually intensive and error prone planning and budgeting process with
streamlined models to evaluate and project the impact of employee compensation and benefits, capital
projects, and revenue forecasting.

» Delivering enbhanced analytics and reporting capabilities to the Office of Finance and Management
providing capabilities to the City never previously available.
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Core Capabilities by the Port Authority’s Requirement Categories

Zanett has gained a clear understanding of the Port Authority’s Application Management Service requirements.
We believe to meet and exceed these requirements with our core capabhilities shown in Table 1 below.

Table 1. Core Capabilities by NY & NJ Port Authority’s Requirement Categories.

Core Requirement Category

|1|i Zanett Capability & Experience

Operational Support, includes:
Production Support, Security, Computer
Operations and End User Support

Zanett consultants have worked with hundreds of large organizations,
including local governments and transit authorities, to design security,
implement production suppoert protocols, provide praduction support on an
ongoing basis, assist with computer operations and provide end user support
across Windows, Unix and Linux environments.

Application Maintenance & Support

Zanett consultants have significant experience ensuring system integrity by
quickly grasping application designs and details. Priority is on responsiveness
in providing fixes for data integrity (data loads, calc scripts, formulas, business
rules) and/or process control {batch control scripting.

Database Administration

Zanett consultants understand the data architecture and performance
characteristics of both OLAP (Essbase multidimensional, BSO and ASQO) cubes
and relational databases. Disciplined administration is a core strength and
focus of our support services.

Troubleshooting

Zanett consultants are experienced troubleshooters with depth of expersience
in complex, distributed environments with data integration across multiple
platferms. We have helped many large organizations create, test, and
maintain operational support and recovery approaches.

Capacity Management

Zanett consultants have worked with monitoring, tuning, and upgrade
forecasting in both large and small operations to ensure that adequate
capacity exists in current systems with a roadmap to avoid bottlenecks as
data requirements and the overall user base grows over time.

Change Management

Zanett consultants have a track record of helping large organizations manage
version releases and change management on Hyperion and Essbase
platforms.

Application System Documentation

From original requirements, through design, build, testing and ongoing
support, Zanett has a reputation of providing clear and thorough
documentation for all supported systems.

Coaching & User Assistance

A key philosophy in engaging clients is that of ongoing, real-time knowledge
transfer for system administrators, developers, and end users. Zanett
consultants have provided user assistance coverage for domestic and
international operations with experience in remote and cross-cultural
support.

Simply stated, Zanett strives to consistently deliver high quality services to meet our clients Oracle Hyperion
design, implementation, optimization and support requirements — exemplified by our City of Indianapolis
reference. Specifically, as it relates to the Port Authority’s Hyperon application management requirements, we
will commit to deliver on with the capabilities indicated above and focused throughout aligning the Port

Authority’s service levels.




Zanett Response to NY & M) Port Authority - B Zanett

BudgetPro Support Selection Process Document ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE MAMAGEMENT

C. Agreement of Terms of Discussion

The Respondent shall submit a copy of the “Agreement on Terms of Discussion,” signed by an authorized
representative of the Respondent, which is included as Attachment A and shall be submitted by the Respondent
without any alterations or deviations. Any Respondent who fails to sign the Port Authority’s "Agreement on
Terms of Discussion” will not have its response reviewed. If the Respondent is a joint venture, an authorized
representative of each party must sign the Agreement.

Zanett’s Response:

“An image of the executed Agreement on Terms of Discussion is shown below. A PDF copy or hardcopy with
original signatures can be supplied upon request. .

ATTACHMENT A: AGREEMENT ON TERMS OF DISCUSSION

The Port Awtbaority's receipt or discussion of any information {including infasmation contained inany response,
presentation, vendar quaiification, ideas, models, drawings, ¢f other material communicated or exhibited by
us or on our behall) shall nat impose any obligations whatsoaver on the Port Ausherity or entitle us Lo any
compensation iherefos {except 10 the exten: specifically prowided in such written agreement, if any, as may be
entered imio between the Port Authority and us), Any such information given 1o the Port Authority before,
with ar after this Agreement on Terms of Discussion {“agreement”], ether arally or in writing, is not givenin
configence, Such information may be used, or disclosed to others, far any purpdse at any time without
obligation or comgensation and withaut liability of any kind wimtsoever. &ny stazement which is inconsistent
with this Agreement, whether made as part of or in connection wilh this Agreerment, shail be void and of no
effect. This Agreentent is sot intended, however, W grant 10 the Port Authority righis to any malter, which is
the subject of valid existing or potentlal leziers pateat. The foregoing apolies to any information, whether or
not given al the invitation of the Autharity.

Notwitnstanding (he abere, s06 without assuming any legal cbligation, the Port Authority «All employ
;easonable effons, sublect 1o the provisions of the Port Authority's Freedom of Information Policy and
Procedure adopted by the Fort Autharity’s Roard of Commissioners on November 20, 2008, which may be
found on the Part Acthority website at: hitp /e ww.panyni.gov/corperate-infonmation/pdffFreedom-of-
lnformation-Policy-and frocedurs, paf. not io disclose 10 #ny campetitor of the undersigned, infomation
submitted which zre trade secrets of is maintained for the regulation or supervision of commercial enterprise
which, if disclased, would cause substantial injury te the competitive position of the enter prise, and which
infarmaztion is ldentified b the Respondent as proprietary, which may be disclosed by the undersigned to the
Port authorily as part of ©f in connection with the submission of 2 responss,

_Zen ST Commecial S ochion 5
l‘\‘ Tcumpany)

\A%MW e n

(sigWaare) ——

e The. SO e

{Title} .
3] /208,

{Date}

ORIGINAL AND PHOTOCOPIES OF THIS PAGE ONLY.
DO KOT RETYPE.
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D. Certifications With Respect to the Contractor’s Integrity Provisions

The Respondent, by signing the letter of Transmittal, makes the certification in the “Contractor’s Integrity
Provisions,” included as Section 37 of Attachment B to this Selection Process Document. If the Respondent
cannot make any such certifications, it shall enclose an explanation of that inability {“Certification Statement”).

Zanett’s Response:

Zanett makes the certification in the “Contractor’s Integrity Provisions” by signing the Letter of Transmittal.




k4 zanett

Zanett Response to NY & NJ Port Authority —

BudgetPro Support Selection Process Dacument ENTERPRISE PERFIORMANCE MANAGEMENT

"E. Documentation of Respondent Prerequisites

Using Attachment D, the Respondent shall submit documentation to demonstrate that it meets all prerequisites
included herein.

Zanett’s Response:

The following tables provide the required references for this response, Additional references can be made
available upon request. The non-governmental references listed were chose based on relevance to proposed
resources covering the required continuous timeframe with attention to availability of reference contacts as

“current employees of their respective firms.

# Government Entity | Description of Services Contract Contract Contact Information, Name,
& Contract # Provided Commenced | Terminated | Email Address, Phone #
(MM/YYYY) | (MM/YYYY)
1 City of Indianapolis | Hyperion Planning design 09/2011 Active garpn :/l.]!iootd
and implementation as a;?;enchogjc ?r:d o
rimary support vendor. aaron.hood@indy.£ov
primary supp 317-327-3502
# Client Description of Services Contract Contract Contact information, Name,
Provided Commenced | Terminated | Email Address, Phone #
(MM/YYYY) | (MM/YYYY)
) . . . . Priti Pat
1 Rady Children’s Hyperion Planning design 09/2011 03/2012 Budset M
Hospital (San Diego) | and implementation as ualge rchsgaogrer
rimary support vendor. ppa|@rchsd.org
P y supp 858-518-5164
. . . Ann Kotz
2 MISO Energy Hyperion Planning design 08/2009 12/2011 \ .
{indianapolis, 1N} * and implementation as Sinltor Appllcatuons Manager
. @ gy.Oorg
primary support vendor, ;1‘; zagmslsec;ener oL
(Mark Haddad) -243-5622
3 | GMACInsurance | Hyperion Planning design | 02/2007 03/2010 gfa'gtj °h"f .
Personal Lines * and implementation as IrE(.: oro i
primary support vendor, %@W
{now Ally) (Darrell Barr) -

Please note, the clients marked with an asterisk {*) above represent pre-Zanett experience for the Zanett EPM
team members indicated in “Description of Services Provided”,

10
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F. Response

1. Cost Response

Zanett’s Response:

The contract pricing is cantained in the tables below per the instructions provided in the RFP.

1A. One-Year Base Period; Fixed Price {Lump Sum)

Description Total Prices based on Respondent's Govt. Contract - Yes or No? And
identify the Government Contract and the Contract #
{1} Operation Support | 5 461,760 |Yes - * City of Indianapolis {see reference section)
{2} Application
| Maintenance and

Suppart 5 461,760 |Yes *

{3} Database

Administration S 230,880 |Yes ™

TOTAL $ 1,154,400

18. Miscellaneous Tasks

Category of Personnel  |Total Hourly Total Prices based on Respondent's Govt.

Estimated Rate Contract - Yes or No? And identify the
Hours Government Contract and the Contract #

Tralner a0 X |5 195.00) = | 7,800 |ves - * City of Indianapalis (see refs)

Applitation Speciatist S00 5 19500 = |5 37,500 |Yes*

Project Manager 60 X |& 20500 = |5 12,300 |ves ™

TOTAL 5 117,600

1C. Disaster Recovery Tests; Fixed Price (Lump Sum)

Year Price per Test Three Tests Total Prices based on
Respondent’s Govt,

Per Year Contract - Yes or No? And

identify the Government
Contract and the Contract §

One S 11,840 X 3] = |5 35,520 [ves- ™ City of Indianapalis (see refs}

1D. Transition Costs; Fixed Price {Lump Sum}
Total one-time cost for orderly transition from the existingvendor: 5 59,200

Timeaframe in Weeks: 2

1E. Total cost for base period

Sections 1A +18+1C+1D= S 1,366,720
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2A. One-Year Base Period; Fixed Price {(Lump Sum)

Description Total Prices based on Respondent’s Govt. Contract - Yes or No? And
identify the Government Contract and the Contract #
{1} Operation Support [ $ 461,760 {Yes - * City of Indianapolis {see reference section]

{2} Applicatian
Maintenance and
Support

S 461,760 |Yes *

(3} Database
Administration

) 230,880 [ves ™

TOTAL S 1,154,400

2B. Miscellaneous Tasks

Category of Personnel |Total Hourly Total Prices based on Respondent's Govt.
Estimated Rate Contract - Yes or No? And identify the
Hours Government Contract and the Contract #

Trainer 400 X |S 195.00 = | S 7.800 [Yes - * City of Indianapolis {see refs]

Application Specialist SO0 % 1S 19500 = | S 97,500 Yes ™

Project Manager 60 X |$ 20500 = |S 12,300 |Yes*

TOTAL s 117,600

2C. Disaster Recovery Tests; Fixed Price {Lump Sum}

Year Price per Test Three Tests Total Prices based on

Respondent's Govt.

Per Year Contract - Yes or No? And

Identify the Government

Contract and the Contract #
One S 11,840 X 3| = [ S 35,520 |Yes- > City of Indianapolis {see refs)
20. Total cost for bhase period
Sections 1A +18+1C+10= S 1,307,520
3. TOTAL COST OF THE CONTRACT
Sections 1E + 2D = ) 2,674,240
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Section/Topic Contractor's Assumptions/Notes/Clarifications

SAMS: Base & Option Peripds The base year pricing for Support and Application Maintenance and Support {SAMS} is
calculated using 40 hour waeks for each of three onsite resources to be charged at the
inclusive rate of $185 per hour. This pricing is consistent with that conveyed during our
earlier capabilities meeting. The optlon year fs calculated at the same rate (no increase)

Transition Transition casts were catculated by applying the hourly support rate for all three support
resources plus the Zanett project manager for two full 40-hour weeks each. Even if the
current vendor cannot be made available for a full two-week transition, this pricing

Disaster Recovery Disaster recovery pricing is based on two weekend days (16 hours total) per test with
invalvemant of all four team resources {three full-time support resources plus the Zanett

Miscellaneous Tasks Miscellaneous tasks are calculated at slightly higher rates than support rates as fisted |
nthe pricing forms above. Please note that while the project management task is
cateulated at the requested 60 hours far comparison purposes, the Zanett staffing model
calls for an average of 24 hours per week for project management, quality assurance and
oversight. Application enhancement and training tasks will be charged based on actual

Other {including tasks to be No attitional tasks have been identified at the time of this proposal other than those

compensated thai are not already estimated herein. If such tasks are identified, Zanett will charge the actual time

specitied herein) spent perfarming such tasks at the application specialist rate documented in the pricing
forms above.

© ASSUMPTIONS FOR LIQUIDATED DAMAGES ON SERVICE LEVELS — Zanett understands the purpose of the Port
Authority’s use of financial penalties to underscare the importance of responsiveness to documented problems,
However, we believe it is important to recognize (and allow for) the possibility that technical or scheduling
circumstances sometimes render it impossible to meet the resolution target timing for a problem of any severity
type. One example would be a bug found in Hyperion Planning which keeps users from completing a needed
task (perhaps by crashing the system upon repeated attempts). In this case, while Zanett team members may
be entirely responsive and involved, the resolution may require reporting of the problem to Oracle subject to
the priorities and service level targets of Oracle Customer Support. Another example would be the discovery of
an issue with and Essbase database indicating the need to reboot the Essbase server. While being properly
attentive to the problem, it may be heyond Zanett’s control to ensure that such a server reboot can be
accomplished during the required times due to other production availability requirements for that server.

Possible reasons for such exceptions include {but are not limited to) the following:
+ Software bugs for which an Oracle Service Request (SR} must be submitted
«  Fixes which require a scheduled reboot of one or more servers
» Fixes which require a scheduled stop/re-start of any or all Hyperion services
»  Acceptance of short-term workarounds until more complete resolution can be accomplished
Fixes legitimately require a level of work effort that exceeds the normal resolution time target

-Reason codes should be developed that allow problems to be closed or downgraded (e.g., from High to Medium
or Low severity) based on a timely assessment as to whether or not a resolution is possible in a particular time
frame. It is requested that the Port Authority agree to maintain a list of acceptable conditions and protocols
under which liquidated damages are waived. The intent of this request is not to aveid responsibility to good
customer service; rather it is to address reasonable exceptions to service level policy in a manner that is fair to
any support vendor.

I R ER
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2. Technical Response

A. Adescription of the Respondent’s experience in implementation, using, and supporting Hyperion

Zanett’s Response:

The Zanett BI/EPM practice is made up of an elite team of consultants and leaders with substantial
business depth and technical skill. Our team consists of consultants with an average of 12 years of
direct BI/EPM experience and brings a “been there, done that” level of experience and knowledge to
every project. Our team size will typically be smaller than our competitors, which also typically
contributes to lower total costs. Regardless of title or leadership level, hands-on skills with real world
experience characterize our team. We have strong references for both project implementations and
ONgoing support services.

Zanett's Hyperion application management services revolve around our Enterprise Performance
Management (EPM} capabilities with Public Sector experience and strategic focus on our clients’ ROI,
described as follows:

e Enterprise Performance Management. Zanett is a leading provider of Oracle Hyperion, Esshase,
and OBIEE solutions as an Orgcle Platinum Partner.

s Public Sector Experienced Team. Zanett’s Hyperion application support and maintenance team
combines actual Public Sector experiences and Oracle Hyperion design, implementation,
optimization and support public sector client successes.

B. lIdentification of the processes/tools that will be used to measure performance regarding the Service
Levels stipulated in the Scope of Work;

Zanett’s Response:

Zanett stands ready to adapt to any accepted approaches or taols currently in use for this purpose by
the Port Authority or the existing Budget Pro support vendor. We assume that your IT call center and
support operations include a ticket tracking system. Whether or not this is the case, as the Zanett team
accepts support work from Level 1 triage, all items will be tracked in an Excel database to include the
following information which is critical for managing to expected service levels:

e Unique Item Identifier (as assigned in PA systems or added by Zanett)

s Reporting/requesting person and contact information

»  SLA Status: High, Medium, or Low

¢ Time stamps for problem Open and Close

e Acceptance or Reason Codes for closure or withdrawal of items

e Short description of the problem

e Detailed description of the problem {w/references to supporting docs or images)

* Traffic Light Alerts for Green/Yellow/Red flagging in terms of Zanett team performance against
contracted service levels

e Booking of liquidated damages amounts as applicable with comments

Zanett team project management and assigned coordinators to actively track open items with daily
review and weekly reporting to the Port Authority.

e
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See additional comments on managing this in assumptions section below.

C. A detailed description of the Respondent’s ability to provide the Authority with maximum flexibility in
terms of services provided;

Zanett’s Response:

As can be seen in the staffing and management plans in Section | below, the Port Authority will benefit
from the consistent onsite presence of three expert Hyperion resources with the half-time involvement
of an experienced Zanett project manager to ensure quality results and timely performance. The entire
team stands ready to respond to critical needs remotely outside of business hours both during the week
and on weekends.

Since the overall team intludes two resources based in the NYC area, the flexibility exists to respond
onsite if the need should arise over any given weekend. Beyond this, the identified Port Authority team
from Zanett is back up by a significant set of consulting service resources from which additional
flexibility and richness of experience can be provided under extreme circumstances such as in true
disaster management and recovery.

The Zanett approach to project management allows increased flexibility by involving three managing
resources who will work in tandem to provide consistent communications and coordination for a
rotating schedule of onsite and offsite backup leadership support. This approach adds depth and
responsiveness to Zanett's support of the Port Authority’s priarities and needs.

D. A transition plan for beginning and ending the assignment described in the SOW. The successful
Respondent (i.e., Contractor) shall implement the Transition Plan for entering the engagement within the
first week of execution of the Contract;

Zanett’s Response:

The ideal transition plan for beginning the assignment would provide two weeks of parallel onsite time
with the outgoing support vendor with the entire Zanett team present. Priorities during this time will
include:

e Current systems technical review for :
o Hyperion Planning applications by Plan Type
o Stand-alone Esshase databases
o Standard reporting in HFR, web forms, and Excel
o SDR
o |dentification and review of all system documentation
¢ Support items:
© Review recent history including service level performance
o Review and assist with active open items
s Application enhancements:
o Review all three enhancements executed last year
o Discuss upcoming requirements
o Review methodologies in play and adapt for Zanett takeover

In the event that the timing of Zanett onboarding will not allow two weeks (or any} transition time in
parallel with the current support vendor, an equal amount of time will still be utifized in full by the
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entire Zanett team to examine current systems and prepare the way to take over support based on the
above considerations.

In terms of outgoing transition, the same coverage as noted above will be provided “in reverse” to
benefit the next service provider.

E. A documented methodology for the activities described in the SOW. The methodology shall include
mechanisms for improving the performance of said activities;

Zanett’s Response;

Zanett employs our proven Real Enterprise Vialue™ (REV™) Methodology, which creates alignment
between your measurable business objectives and your technology investments. REV™ is more than just
a methodology; it defines how we think about the business value of technology.

Please reference Section H below for more information on Zanett’'s REV™ Methodology Overview.

F. A description (confirmation} on how the System complies with the IT Controls Checklist (Attachment H),
Standards & Guidelines for Port Authority Technology (Attachment 1), and the Port Authority Information
Security Handbook (http://www.panynj.gov/business-opportunities/pdf/Corporate-information-Security-
Handbook.pdf);

Zanett’s Response:

Zanett's priority is to ensure compliance with all Port Authority IT Controls per published Standards
and Guidelines. The aim of Zanett’s operational management approach is to monitor and verify that
all aspects of the EPM System are operational and in compliance. The EPM System support and
implementation project team will focus in on the following testing and monitoring areas as applicable
to performance, capacity, disaster planning and recovery and overall system testing and acceptance:

s System Monitoring & Testing - The execution of all standard business processes, following the
typical order of workflow across functional areas. Business processes will be tested from
beginning to end, ensuring that the entire process waorks as anticipated.

s Integration Monitoring & Testing - The execution of interface processes that receive or send data
hetween internal modules and external systems. This testing confirms that the interface data )
processes through PeopleSoft v9.1 successfully.

» Security Monitaring & Testing - The validation of the 9.1 system security configuration by
logging onto the application as a user in each security group. Verification of access to specific
pages {screens), ahility to execute processes, and run reports wiil be included.

s Performance Monitoring & Testing — This testing ensures that system performance metrics
are defined and achieved.

+ User Acceptance Testing — When Application Enhancements are developed, this approach
(coupled with necessary user orientation and training, shows EPM System users how their
business processes have changed and gets them familiar with the new environment in order to
approve functionality that meets documented requirements.

Steps
« Develop a Testing Plan
Perform System Test
¢ Perform Integration Test
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+ Perform Security Test

s Perform User Acceptance Test

* Perform Performance Test

» User acceptance and sign-off testing

Task Deliverables
* Monitgring Summaries
Test Plans
Test Scripts {as applicable)
* User Acceptance and System sign-offs {as applicable)

Hyperion Security & System Control

Hyperion authenticates users based on their network security identification. Hyperion Planning security is
hased on establishing security classes and assigning users and group access to each class, as follows:
» A security class is a set of dimension members (Account, Entity, Scenario, and/or Version) and
data entry forms that an assigned user can access,
» Users will be defined as the Active Directory structure with Port Authority Technology
» Groups will be maintained within Shared Services.
» Each application will have specific security associated when the application has progressed and
the Port Authority has provided a list of each user to each application.
s Any reports written against each application will be synchronized with the Port Authority’s
security policies and directives already in place.

G. A documented application management methodology for recording changes made, new programs,
documenting modifications, enhancements, upgrades, fixes and updates made to the application or
underlying software, managing the development/production/ secondary environment, putting new
applications or new software into production and keeping users of the application and/or software
informed,

Zanett’s Response:

The purpose of Application Change Management as part of any project is to facilitate and enhance
end-user acceptance of process changes/improvements as well as system changes. Full collaboration
with key Port Authority process owners and system managers is requested and anticipated

Change Management is a key component of our project management methodology and is weaved
throughout all project phases and across all project team members. Project managers perform
numerous activities related to implementation of the EPM System and, along with Port Authority
approved participants, provide important inputs into change management processes, including
without limitation farmal and informal knowledge transfer, conference room pilot processes that
facilitate end-user acceptance of the EPM System, and management of testing.

The goals of Change Management activities are as follows:
» ldentify challenges associated with change and minimize their impact
* Periodically compile and distribute appropriate project related information {process and/or
system changes) across the enterprise
s Obtain and address both positive and negative feedback obtained from the user community
throughout the EPM System implementation project lifecycle

v
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Support end-user training initiatives

Specific Change Management tasks will include the foilowing:

Provide guidance and leadership for Application Change Management to Port Authority
change management resource(s)

Direct development of or review and revise change management materials

Assure the quality of deliverables and their completion on time and on budget

Execute formal status and management milestone reviews

Facilitate change enablement workshops and team-building sessions

Set priorities as it relates to change management activities in coordination with Port Authority
resources

Track and resolve change management feedback issues

Develop and manage readiness assessment survey processes and results reporting

Document issues, activities, and communication improvements and challenges

Create appropriate change management deliverables

Integrate change management objectives in core EPM System implementation project team
Provide periodic status repert of activities and results

The following summarizes typical Change Management deliverables:

Communication Strategy and Action Plans

Periodic Project Announcements in coordination with the Port Authority resources
Change Readiness Assessment

Executive and Leadership Interviews

EPM System implementation project team and User Community Interviews
Change Readiness Survey Report (initial, plus follow-up)

Change Enablement Workshops in coordination with the Port Authority resources
Team Building Sessions

Feedback Issue Summary and Related Resolution

H. A documented methodology for the development and issuance of annual customer plans. These plans
will be used to determine the viability of software and hardware use of the Budget PRO System. The
Authority will use such plans during its annual Budget process, for establishing both the Authority’s
corporate user expense budgets; and

Zanett’s Response:

The following shows how Zanett uses a top down business definition approach to identifying and
managing detailed requirements and to defining the detailed scope which becomes the basis for both
the ongoing suppart plan Blueprint as weli as interim Application Enhancement Blueprints.
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Define Business Areas to be
included
P &

Listthe key Business Functions for -
each Business Area and the » Project scope to be revievsed and approved

respeclive business user oles by Key Project Stakeholders

+ The detailed Project Scope Definition will be
usad to create the project Blueprint

ListKey Procasses foreach
Businaess Function, and intaractions
with otherl(ey Processes

Listdatailed Business Scenarios for .
sach Key Process PrOje(.:t
H Blueprint

Listothar raquirements and
exception cases

[

"

Detailed Project

Scope Definition

This section describes our approach in managing our client’s Hyperion design and implementation
projects. The methodology is comprised of teaming with our clients to achieve the overall project goals
and objectives, meeting deliverable requirements, and completing project milestones. For the purposes
of this proposal, the framework will be used to drive the assessment, planning, and execution of the
Port Authority’s annual software and hardware needs.

Zanett's Methodology. Zanett takes very seriously the need for our clients to
realize tangible ROI as a result of these types of projects. Our Real Enterprise
vatue™ (REV™) approach has been hailed by Oracle as THE GOLD STANDARD
APPROACH for ensuring true measurable RQI results from an QOracle Hyperion
design and implementation. Bottom line, we will make sure that you maximize

- the business value of the design and implementation and also ensure that the
project objectives are achieved.

The result, a scorecard will be provided that tracks and measures the success of the either apglication
enhancement projects or ongoing support including the results of service level tracking.

Zanett's industry-best Oracle Hyperion project management and functional and technical professionals
use Zanett's Real Enterprise Value™ [REV™) methodology — it provides the necessary proven approach,
structured phases and proven tools to exceed our customers’ business objectives — it’s the Zanett
Methodology for supporting, optimizing, implementing and upgrading Oracle’s Hyperion application
suite. REV™ creates alignment between our clients’ business goals and technology initiatives through:
Understanding, Aligning and Realizing.

1 L
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REV™ Methodology Stage - Understand

Understand — Associated with Strategy and Assess delivery phases: Zanett strives to understand client
business objectives at both a strategic and tacticai level. Specifically, developing an understanding of how a
project ultimately supports the client’s overall business goals and objectives is paramount to generating real
value, Beginning with discovery and assessment activities, and moving through the formulation of a strategic
direction, Zanett establishes the foundation for project success through a deep understanding of your needs.

" Objectives - ‘ Checkpoints

s Requirements Definition — business-focused ¢ Documented client’s business objectives and business

approach to gathering requirements, sets drivers {captured and supported hy requirements

stage for user acceptance analysis, system/process flow and/or fit-gap
s Gap Analysis — recognizes the out-of-box deliverables)

capabilities and maps these to requirements | s Initiated draft of REV delivery scorecard, completing
e Define Business Drivers — based on business goals and target performance criteria

strategy, regulatory inputs » Incorporated business objectives and business drivers
e Creation of a REV Scorecard — the scorecard into project plan and project charter

is used to ensure that the strategic goals are
identified and then met in a quantifiable
manner,

* Requirements Definition — business-focused

approach to gathering requirements, sets
stage for user acceptance

s Gap Analysis — recognizes the out-of-box
capabilities and maps these to requirements

REV™ Methodology Stage — Align

Align - Associated with Design and Build delivery phases: Zanett consistently aligns its activities to best
support client needs. Upon achieving a deep understanding of our client’s business objectives, Zanett delivers
the best solution through the right combination of people, process and technology. Truly understanding the
project’s business impact facilitates continuous alignment of design and development activities with client
objectives, further building the foundation for success.

. Objectives A Checkpoints

e Sponsorship — executive sponsorship is critical to ensuring business | »  Validated client’s business

alignment and organizational acceptance objectives and business drivers
* Role Definition — define roles and provide support for affected documented to date
individuals, sets understandable expectations s Refined REV delivery scorecard as
» lIterative Checkpoints — Incremental development and input is a needed
central part of our delivery methodology providing multiple ¢ Incorporated business objectives
Conference Room Pilots and early project involvement , and drivers into solution design

* Validated successful incorporation
of business objectives and drivers
into solution build during testing

i
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REVTM Methodology Stage - Realize

Realize — Associated with Deploy and Optimize delivery phases: Zanett is committed to ensuring clients realize
their business objectives following every engagement. Zanett's approach is focused on validating and

“confirming that project solutions effectively deliver targeted business value. Moreover, checkpoints throughout
the lifecycle of the engagement ensure our efforts are consistently focused on realization of client objectives.
The result is the successful deployment and optimization of a solution that delivers Real Enterprise Value.

 Objectives Checkpoints

* User Adoption — involve business users early, identify key o Confirmed project deliverables
concerns and communicate plan for addressing reviewed during client sign-off

o Deploy Software Components — experience and best-practices fulfilled business objectives
ensure that deployment is done right and performance measures | ¢  Incorporated feedback during
are met lessons learned and overall

» Validation - QA processes throughout project lifecycle, not just at opt.imization ac.tivities into _
the end; end-user involvement in testing process delivered solutions as appropriate

e Training - Timely and appropriate training for users and support | ® Initiated completion of actual
team performance data in REV delivery

scorecard

e Established approach to follow-up
on actual performance data as
appropriate
The end product is enhanced
organizational effectiveness,
flexibility to respond to changing
business dynamics and delivery of
an on time and on budget
project.

In summary, the primary focus of the Zanett methodology is geared toward supporting our professionals with
the objective of successfully delivering solutions. Our methodology provides proven approaches, templates, and
testing plans. Throughout our engagements we employ disciplined project management to strategize/assess,
design, build, deploy and optimize systems. This effort, coupled with business solutions, maximizes business
value to the client and allows for control over project scope, risk, timeline, and budget.

[l
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I
i

i, A statement of the Respondent’s ability and prior experience in working with complex IT corporate
environments,

Zanett’s Response:

All members of the proposed Zanett EPM support team for the Port Authority has significant experience
implementing and support Hyperion applications for large organizations including city governments,
large utilities, and many Fortune 500 companies. The staffing and management plans provided below
show specific resources planned for this project along with a summary of experience and certification
levels. Detailed resumes are provided as separate attachments.

3. Staffing Plan

Zanett’s Response:

The core support team proposed by Zanett will be made up of the following three full-time, onsite
resources.

Resource Name Role Experience Certification

Ex.2.B

Please reference Attachment 3 for the resumes of Zanett’s proposed core support team.

All resources listed above have or have pending certification for the latest Hyperion Planning and
Essbase "implementation specialist” roles. Oracle grants this certification after passing “expert” level
developer and architect tests. Where certification is pending, it is an update to existing equal
certification at the prior Hyperion 9.3 level.
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4, Management Plan/Structure:

Zanett’s Response:

Zanett will provide lead project management and guality assurance coverage by Zanett practice lead,
and Senior Consultant, acting in a direct managing consultant role. The following
table shows experience levels and capabilities for these resources.

Resource Name Role Experience Certification

EX.2.B

All resources listed above have or have pending certification for the latest Hyperion “implementation
specialist” roles listed. Oracle grants this certification after passing “expert” level developer and
architect tests. Where certification is pending, it is an update to existing equal certification at the prior
Hyperion 9.3 level.

Project management is planned for an average of 24 hours per week (onsite) which includes the priority
tracking and resolution of open support items to ensure that the Port Authority’s required service levels
are met,

The following chart highlights the working relationships for the Zanett team in the above roles.
Escalation protocols and contacts are listed on the next page.

-Managing Consultant Project Director

Project Architect & Principal Developer Senior Developer
Technical Lead
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The EPM system support project Management Task is performed concurrently with the other project
tasks. The tasks and activities around Project Management include:

s Provides quality assurance to overall project by performing assessments during key project
milestones.

» Working with the Port Authority and Zanett project teams in order to complete all project tasks
in a timely and fiscally responsible manner.

» Working to resolve project issues that may arise from time to time and which may impact the
successful completion of the EPM System implementation project.

» Coordinating the timely delivery of Port Authority and Zanett resources.

e Striving for a successful on-time and on-budget project completion.

Steps
+ Task management
+ Risk mitigation and issue reporting and resolution
+ Status reporting
» Resource planning
» Project plan maintenance
¢+ Budget management

Task Deliverables

* Updates to Detailed Project Dashboard
» Detailed Project Plan input/Updates
¢ Project Status Reports

Escalation Procedures

Should the Port Authority need to address any special requests, concerns, or issues relative to the
Zanett team and/or the services being provided under this contract, the following order of escalation is
recommended:

Ex.2.B

‘S"":":“":*-"?‘-“l"‘]l
1]
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G. Acknowledgement of Addenda

If any Addenda are posted or sent as part of this Selection Process Document, the Respondent shall complete,
sign and include with its Response the addenda form(s). In the event any Respondent fails to confirm to these
instructions, its response will nevertheless be construed as though the Addenda had been acknowledged.

Zanett’s Response:
Please reference Attachment 2 for Zanett’s signed Addendums, as follows:

= ADDENDUM #1
e ADDENDUM #2
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H. Acceptance of General Contract Provisions

-The Port Authority has attached to this Selection Process Document as Attachment B, “General Contract
Provisions” governing the Contract, The Respondent is expected to agree with these General Cantract Provisions.
However, if the Respondent has any specific exceptions, such exceptions should be set forth in a separate letter
included with its response to this Selection Process Document. After the Response Due Date, the Respondent will
be precluded from raising any exceptions unless such exceptions are justified by and directly related to
substantive changes in the business or technical requirements and are agreed to by the Respondent and the Port
Authority.

Zanett’s Response;

Zanett has no exceptions to the proposed General Contract Provisions.
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I. M/WBE Plan

The Respondent shall submit an M/WBE Plan in accordance with the M/WBE Subcontracting Provisions
herender.

Zanett’s Response:

‘Zanett understands the Port Authority’s requirement of MBE 12% - WBE 5% participation. We intend to engage

the following M/WBE IT Consulting Services firms: Infinity Tech Group, Inc. and Cenosystems, Inc. — both are
Port Authority certified MBE vendors. Cenosystems is MBE and Infinity Tech Group is MBE/WBE.

A brief description of each’s capabilities is provided below.

Infinity Tech Group headquartered in NJ is a leading IT services provider
creating, implementing and integrating software applications for their
clients. Infinity is focused on helping enterprises leverage technology to
achieve their business goals. Their portfolio includes: IT consulting,
Systems integration, Package implementation, Application development
and maintenance, IT infrastructure outsourcing.

INFINITY TECH
GROUP lNC

The Cenosystems headquartered in NY brings their experience to assist
organizations in addressing mission-critical project deployment. They
o " employ an experienced team of consulting professionals who utilize
(’LL‘]][] 5"']‘)5°[L‘,]]]5' ;(_h][,. proven best practices to provide powerful solutions in Project
) ' Management, Relocation Initiatives, Risk Management, Forensic,
" Whe Souree’ Be! . x vianas

~ Accounting/Valuation, IT Governance and Financial Infrastructure. They
understand the risks and challenges of the current business climate, IT

environments and the use of emerging technologies.

!

Based on the Port Authority’s Hyperion application management service requirements to and Zanett’s “good
faith effort” to fulfill the required M/WBE participation, Zanett has developed the M/WBE plan shown on the
next page.
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M/WBE Plan
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Please note, the above M/WBE plan is also provided in Attachment 1 — Supporting Documentation.




Zanett Response to NY & NJ Port Authority —
- BudgetPro Support Selection Process Document

k4 zanett

ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE MANAGEBMENT

ATTACHMENT 1: Supporting Documentation

Zanett has included the following supporting documentation in this ATTACHMENT 1:

1.

2
3.
4

Zanett’s Certification of Incorporation
Zanett's M/WBE Plan
Zanett’s Financial Statements {2008 - Sept. 2011)

Zanett’'s Statement of Work
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-ATTACHMENT 2: Addendums

Zanett has included the following in this ATTACHMENT 2:

s Signed ADDENDUM #1
s Signed ADDENDUM #2
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ATTACHMENT 3: Resumes for Core Support Team
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Statement of Confidentiality

The material contained in this Response represents proprietary, confidential information pertaining to
Linium, LLC (“Linium”) methods. By accepting Linium’s submission of this Request for Response, The Port
Authority of NY & NI (“Port Authority”) hereby agrees that the information in this Response shall not be
disclosed outside of the Port Authority and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed for any purpose
other than to evaluate this Response. If, however, a contract is awarded to Linium for this Response as a
resuft of, or in conjunction with, the submission of this information, the Port Authority will have the right
to duplicate, use or disclose the material contained herein to the extent provided for in the resulting
controct. This restriction does not limit the Port Authority’s right to use information contained in this
Response if it is obtoined from another source.

© 2012 Linium, LLC. All Rights Reserved

linium
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The Port Autharity of NY & NJ
Procurement Department

2 Montgomery Street, 3rd Floor
Jersay City, NJ 07302

RE: Support for the Port Authority’s Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to The Port Authority of NY & Ni's (“Port Authority”) Request
for Response (RFP). Linium, LLC {“Linium”) offers to provide managed services support for the Port
Authority's Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System to meet the requirements in the RFP document.

Linium focuses on high quality results delivered with each of our Enterprise Performance Management
solutions that are purposely built to be the most efficiently operating and most readily owned solutions
- for our customers. We are uniquely qualified to achieve these goals for the following reasons:

* Commitment to Customer Success — The Linium Oracle practice is a world class consulting group
that has delivered hundreds of customer successes. Linium provides a proven methodology for
ensuring customer success and empowering our customers through enterprise class Performance
Management solutions. We understand the benefits of having an extremely reference-ahle
customer base and approach each project with the customer’s needs in mind.

s Experienced Resources — Our consultants AVERAGE 9 vears solely dedicated to working with the
Oracle Hyperion product suite. A majority of our consultants come from functional Accounting and
Finance backgrounds and have warked in a variety of industries. They possess both the technical
and functional skills to work efficiently with client Finance and IT project teams. The leader of the
practice was the very first Hyperion Planning since its inception.

World-Class Infrastructure Team - Linium employs the top technical talent to deliver our Oracle
EPM solutions, including Eric Helmer who is currently the only infrastructure Qracle Ace Director in
the United States. in our experience, a successful software installation is one of the main drivers for
a successful deployment.

-

+ Local Presence — Linium has approximately fifty {50) US-hased consulting resources on its Oracle
Hyperion practice team. Many of our consultants, including our Executive Management, are local to
the Port Authority. Due to the close proximity of our consultants to the Port Authority, all travel-
related expenses have been included as part of the bid. In addition, all resources assigned to the
project will be Linium employees and not subcontractors.

As requested, Linium has included our Articles of Incorporation as Appendix A to this response. |, Jaseph
Burke, declare the copy furnished is a true copy of the Certificate of Incorporation as of the date of the




opening of the response.

Linium’s officials and principal owners, along with their residence are as follows:

Joseph Burke
Managing Partner and CEO
Ex.1

David Howard
Chief Technology Officer

Should you have questions regarding the Response, please reach out to Marialana DeRossi, Vice
President of Public Sector Business Development, directly. Marialana’s contact information is

518.281.9276 or marialana.derossi@linium.com.

in the event that Mariaiana is unavailable, please

reach out to Don Brandt, Senior Vice President for Sales, 518.209.8296 or don brandt@linium.com.

As to the authorization of commitment by Lintum, |, Joseph Burke, am that individual.

We look forward to working with the Port Authority on this important project.

Sincerely,

sgph Burke
Managing Member and CEO

VISIT US ONLINE AT WWW.LINIUM.COM
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B. Executive Summary

Based upon conversations Linium has had with the Port Authority of NY/NJ {PANYNJ} as part of the
vendor selection process for this engagement, and upon a thorough review of the RFP, Linium
understands that PANYN/ seeks to partner with a company who will provide managed services for the
BudgetPro system. We understand that PANYNJ needs a partner like Linium that has a deep,
experienced technical bench of consultants who will “own” support and enhancements for the
BudgetPro system. We know that PANYNJ does not seek a staff augmentation arrangement with a
company who simply recruits and offers resumes of consultants to provide support in an unmanaged
fashion, putting the onus on PANYN/ to coordinate the consultants.

Linium’s response will demonstrate that Linium is unigquely qualified to provide PANYN! with the
managed services it requests. We highlight below some Linium differentiators that are especially
important for a managed services engagement with PANYNY:

e - Linium has over 50 Oracle Hyperion consultants located throughout the United States with
many located on the east coast, in close proximity to PANYNJ

¢ All Linium Oracle Hyperion consultants are Linium employees
Linium also certifies our consultants both through Oracle, and internally through our national
training program on new features, and functionality testing.

¢ Linium consultants are all well-versed in Linium’s implementation methodology for Hyperion
support and enhancements, and work together as a cohesive team. The team meets regularly
to discuss current projects, challenges, successes, best practices, and lessons learned. Sharing a
common methodology and the ongoing exchange of information among our consultants forms
the basis of continual service improvements for the Linium delivery team translating into
MAXIMUM FLEXIBILITY AND CONSISTENCY in the support we will provide to PANYNJ. Qur team-
centered approach preserves the value and expertise that our consultants bring throughout this
support engagement and is especially useful when there is a need to backfill consultants due to
iliness, vacation, or uncontrolled absence.

s Linium consultants follow a proven methodoiogy for managing scheduled, unscheduled and
emergency changes,

+ Linium consultants communicate effectively both orally and via the written word

s Linium consultants are both Hyperion experts and subject matter experts. Because most of our
consultants have had several years of operational experience in budgeting, planning and finance
prior to joining the consulting ranks, they understand the business tasks that BudgetPro is
meant to address as well as how to support the BudgetPro tool itself. Such experience will
provide PANYNJ with a more valuable support experience and potentially lower the cost of
support required for the BudgetPro system by reducing the iterations required to properly
translate business requirements into technical requirements. Our broad perspective resultsina
richer experience for PANYNY's Management and Budget departments when defining desired
enhancements and process changes to the BudgetPro system during the support period.

Finally, Linium is aware that SAIC, the current support vendor for BudgetPro is withdrawing from its
business in New York State {“NYS") government. When SAIC made the decision to cease its business
operations with NYS, the Albany, NY division of SAIC chose Linium to receive its consultants, who were
providing services to Albany-based NYS agencies, and the contract vehicles via which those consultants
were providing services. This action was approved by the appropriate governing entities in NYS and
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allowed uninterrupted services to the customer agencies, resulting in service continuity, retention of
institutional knowledge and costs that did not increase.

Linium is very willing to consider entering into a similar agreement with the consultants that SAIC
provided to PANYN) if PANYNJ seeks to maintain the services of those consultants. It would be Linium’s
goal to add these consultants to Linium's delivery team and as a resuit, they wouid be trained in
Linium’s delivery methodology, benefit from being part of a larger group of Hyperion experts, and
continue to provide services to PANYNJ.

Please note that it is Linium’s policy to finalize the resources assigned to an engagement only upon
receipt of a customer PO, or a Statement of Work.

C. Agreement on Terms of Discussion

Please see the attached signed “Agreement on Terms of Discussion,” signed by Linium’s authorized
representative without any alterations or deviations.

D. Certifications with Respect to the Contractor’s Integrity Provisions

By signing the Letter of Transmittal, Linium confirms the certifications in the “Contractor’s Integrity
Provisions,” included as Section 37 of Attachment B to the Selection Process Document.

linium ,




ATIACHMENT A: AGREEMENT ON TERMS OF DISCUSSION

The Part Authority's receipt or discussion of any information (including information contained in any response,
presentation, vendor qualification, ideas, models, drawings, or other material communicated or exhibited by
us or on our behalf) shall not impose any obligations whatsoever on the Port Authority or entitle usto any
compensation therefor (except to the extent specifically provided in such written agreement,if any, as may be
entered into between the Porl Authority and us). Any such information given to the Port Autherity before,
with or after this Agreement on Terms of Discussion { "Agreement”), aither orally or in writing, is not given in
canfidence, Such Information may be used, or disclosed to others, for any purpose at any time without
obligation or compensation and without liability of any kind whatsoever. Any statement which is inconsistent
with this Agreement, whether made as part of or in connection with this Agreement, shall be void and of no
effect. This Agreement is not intended, nowever, to grant to the Port Authority rights to any matter, which is
the subject of valid existing or potential letters patenl. The foregoing applies to any information, whether or
not given at the invitation of the Authority.

Notwithstanding the above, and without assuming any legal obligation, the Port Authority will employ
reasonable efforts, subject to the provisions of the Port Authority's Freedom of Information Policy and
Procedura adopted by the Port Authority's Board of Commissianers on November 20, 2008, which may be
found on the Port Authority website at; hitp://www.panynj.gov/corporate-information/pdf/Freedom-of-

Information-Policy-and-Procedure.pdf, not to disclose to any competitor of the undersigned, information

submitted which are trade secrels or is maintained for the reguiation or supervision of commercial enterprise
which, if disclosed, wouid cause substantiai injury to the competitive pasition of the enterprise, and which
Information is identified by the Respondent as proprietary, which may be disclosed by the undersigned to the
Port Authority as part of or in connection with the submission of a response.

(Cgmpany)
OV

(Sighatyre)

i fdsen

/12(20/7

(Date){

ORIGINAL AND PHOTOCOPIES OF THIS PAGE ONLY.
DO NOT RETYPE.
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2. The Respondent shall have had at least five {5) years of continuous experience immediately
prior to the date of the submission of its response as a business actually engaged in
providing application management services for Oracle/Hyperion/Essbase Systems.

The Respondent may fulfillthis prerequisite if itcan demonstrate that the person(s) or entity{ies)
owningand controlling the Respondent have had a cumulative total of at least the same number of
vears of experience in the provision of similar services immediately prior to the submission of its
response or has owned and controlled other entities that meet the requirement.

The University of Nevada, Las Vegas (UNLV)

Name

The University of Nevada, Las Vegas (UNLV) is a comprehensive research
university of approximately 28,000 students and 2,900 faculty and staff.

Hyperion products

Hyperion Planning v11.1.2.1
Hyperion Public Sector Budgeting & Planning v11.1.2.1
Cracle Data Integrator

Term

January 2012 to present

Federal Reserve Bank - St Louis

Name Federal Reserve Bank
St Louis, MO

Hyperion products Products: Hyperion Planning 11.1.2.1
Oobl11.1.15
OBIEE 11.1.1.5

Term 2010 to present

University of Pennsylvania Heaith System

Name The University of Pennsyivania Health System's,
The Hospitai of the University of Pennsylvania
Hyperion products Hyperion Planning v11,1.2.1
Oracle Data Integrator
Hyperion Reports vi1,1.2.1
Hyperion Essbase
Term July 2010 to present

Wichita Public Schools USD 259

Name Wichita Public Schools USD 259
Wichita, KS

Hyperion products Oracle Hyperion Planning version 11.1.1.3
Workforce

Term December 2008 to July 2011

Federal Reserve Bank - Richmond
Name Federal Reserve Bank

Richmond, VA

Hyperion products

Hyperion Planning

linium
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Federal Reserve Bank - Richmond

Capital Planning module
Employee Planning module
Operating Expense module

Term

2008 to present

Name

Liquor Control Board of Ontario
Liquor Control Board of Ontario (LCBO)
Pubiic/Private Liquor
Toronto, Canada

Hyperion products

Essbase

Hyperien Planning 11.1.2.1

Financial Reporting

Term

2008 to 2011

BAE Systems
Name

BAE Systems

(1) BAE - Platform Solutions, Johnson City, NY & Rochester, UK
{2) BAE - Information Solutions, Herndon, VA
{3) BAE - Electronic Solutions, Nashua, NH
{4} BAE - Land & Armaments, York, PA

{5) BAE — US Combat Systems, Minneapolis, MN

Hypericn preducts

Planning v11
Esshase v11

Hyperion Planning/Budgeting - Fully integrated Income Statement &
Resource Planning

Term

2006 to present

3. Respondents are encouraged to provide at least three additional references from firms
{public or private) to which the Respondent provides support of their Hyperion-based

products:
Client Description of Contract Contract Contact Information, name,
# Services Provided Caommenced Tarminated | email address, phonetf
(MM/YYYY) (MM/YYYY)
1 Federal Reserve [Hyperion 2008 to present imberly Fretwell

Pank
of Richmond

Planning/Budgeting
.0 Implementations
and Support Services

anager of Financial Management
nformation Systems
04-697-3782
Kimberly.Fretwell@frit.frb.org

linium
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Client Description of Contract Contract Contact Information, name,
Services Provided Commenced Terminated | email address, phone#
(MM/YYYY) (MM/YYYY)
niversity of mplementation of;  Jluly 2010 o present David Honma, CPA
Pennsylvania Hyperion Planning Director - Finance & Systems
Health System p11.1.2.1 267) 414-2249

Oracle Data Integrator
Hyperion Reports
b11.1.2.1

Hyperion Essbase

Mavid.honma@uphs.upenn.edu

3 Liquor Contrel  pmplementation of:  December 2008 August 2011  Flaine Lee

Board Hyperion Planning Financial Analyst, Financial Planning
pf Ontario 11.1.2.1 116-365-5915
Essbase plaine.lee @lcbo.com
Financial Reporting
4 PepsiCo Remote application to present Steve Cioffi

nfrastructure support
for the Oracle
Hyperion Financial
anagement and
lanning Application

Genior Application Manager
[914) 253-2451
Eteven.cioffi@pepsi.com

[August 2011
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1. Cost Response
Linium has provided its cost information on the Attachment E, located in Appendix C to this document.

2. Technical Response
A. Description of the Respondent's experience in implementing, using, and supporting Hyperion:

Linium understands the business of implementing software solutions and standardizing for businesses.
Linium’s strong track record makes us uniquely positioned to partner with the Port Authority. Linium has
heiped clients deploy numerous multi-product solutions requiring cross-functional resources to ensure
the highest RO! from the technology investment. This, coupled with a long history of providing technical
and application support for implementations and on-going Hyperion platform engagements, makes
Linium the highest value, lowest risk provider of Oracle Hyperion services and support.

Linium has a mature EPM/B) practice that has achieved certification status with the Oracle product
suite. We provide professional services, managed services, strategic planning, educational training, and
complete IT outsourcing solutions. As a vendor certified partner, we have completed over 200 successful
Hyperion projects across a wide array of organizations - primarily Fortune 1000,

Linium’s experienced consulting staff has produced a collection of automated tools, templates, and
reusable knowledge assets that have proven to enhance the delivery of packaged solution
implementations. For the client, these proprietary tools enable speed and value with reduced project
risk.

We believe the only way to achieve our vision is to create synergies among talented people who thrive
on meeting challenges and aim for continuous improvement. At Linium, we employ experienced
consultants who are subject matter experts in their field of expertise, ranging from enterprise
performance planning to |T asset management to business process re-engineering.

Linium is both a legacy Oracle partner and a Hyperion specialized partner with experience in a variety of
Oracle enterprise product applications and reporting tools, including third party enabling products.
Linium consultants are adept in migrating non-Oratle legacy systems to Hyperion, intluding Excel
spreadsheets. The methodology for any type of migration from a fegacy system to Hyperion follows the
same principles,

Linium Provides Services to Align People, Process & Technology

Analyze ' Define . Execute Assess

ERENTIFY, ALIGN. ENVITION. LAk, PROCESS, ORGANIZE., BUILE, TRAIN, ROLL-OUT. REWIEW, PERFECT. INNOVATE.

arvi ions ani i
Interviews/Session Planning & Bud.get'.ng instatlation & Configuration User Surveying
Business Requirernants Team Sourcing , i i
R Data Migration Application Acceptance

Functional Requirements Process Refinement )

Goal Definition Industry Alignment Custom Integration Future Enhancements
User Acceptance Testing Upgrade Planning
l - & -
nium ,
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Analyze . Define: Execute: Assess

DENTIFY, ALIGN. ENVISION, F;LAN. PROCESS, QRGANIZE. BUILD. TRAIN, ROLL-OUT. REVIEW. PERFECT. INNOVATE,

Technology Selection Data Organization Application Training Technology Road Mapping
Praject Scoping Application Management

Linium’s Product Expertise for Qracle Hyperion Performance Management
Applications

We work with our customers to implement best-of-breed software for consolidations, financial
reporting, financial planning, and performance measurement.

Linium’s Enterprise Performance Management practice offers consulting services that will take your
project from start to finish. Linium is a Certified Oracle Hyperion Partner with a focus in Enterprise
Performance Management, Business [ntelligence and Data Integration. Our consultants are certified
practitioners in the implementation of Oracle Hyperion products. Linium has over a decade of
experience and refined delivery methodologies.

Linium’s Product Expertise for

Oracle Hyperion Performance Management Applications

Financial Management Public Sector Planning & Budgeting
Financial Data Quality Management Profitability and Cost Management
Planning Hyperion Strategic Finance
Esshase Oracle Financial Analyzer (OFA}
Capital Expenditure {CapEx} Oracle Data Integrator

workforce Planning Hyperion Performance Scorecard

Our consuitants average a minimum of 9 years of experience per their expertise focus area. Our
consuts’ backgrounds are in finance, accounting, technology, and software vendors. All consultants are
required to continue their learning and development through Oracle University and accredited
professional organizations. Linilum consultants associated with the Oracle Hyperion practice are Oracle
and/or Hyperion certified. Oracle certifications are industry-recognized benchmarks of experience and
expertise.

We have consulted on hundreds of EPM engagements. Our proven repeatable methodology for
impiementing business solutions spans from requirements analysis, through solution implementation
and rollout support — the complete project lifecycle and beyond. Linium personnel have also performed
hundreds of upgrades of Hyperion applications to various Oracle Hyperion releases across many
different technical environments. We know the infrastructure and application issues that must be
considered and can get you to your new environment quickly and efficiently.

Hyperion Practice Background

¥ Leader in EPM Solutions focused around Oracle Hyperion
v Leaders of Oracle Practice were 1% Original Customer of Hyperion Planning
v 1% Customer Migration of OFA to Hyperion

linium | .
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v Member of Oracle Customer Advisory Board
v Member of Hyperion SIG
v" Member of Oracle Beta Development Team
v Experienced Consultants (100’s of Implementation)
v Dozens of Certified Hyperion Consultants
¥ CPA's, CMA's, PMI's

Linium Offers On-going Client Education

Linium knows the importance of educating the user community. We take valuable time from our billing
hours to provide seminars, webcasts, blogs, and whitepapers. All of this to provide useful information
to help users make the best decisions for their organization.

Linium's EPM Leadership

Sean Bernhoit, Linium’s Oracle Practice Manager and Senior Vice President is a well-known and often-
sought speaker on Planning and Essbase solutions by Oracle Applications User Group (OAUG), Oracle
Developer and Tools User Group (ODTUG) and Quest. Sean Bernhoit has over 10 years of experience
working with QLAP applications and managing financial reporting, analysis, modeling and planning
systems. His comprehensive experience spans Hyperion Essbase, Hyperion Planning, Hyperion Analyzer,
Hyperion Pillar, Hyperion Financial Management, System 9 Bi+, Essbase Integration Server, Hyperion
Reports, Hyperion Web Analysis and Hyperion Application Link. He has completed over 100 Oracle
Hyperion Planning implementations for large multi-billion dollar clients across multiple industries
including software vendors, healthcare, manufacturing, and financial services in addition to over 25
System Implementations.

Sean is a member of the Customer Advisory Board for Hyperion Planning and is involved in the Beta Test
group for Hyperion Planning, Hyperion Reports, and Hyperion Analyzer and is a frequent guest speaker
at national conferences (Oracle Open World, Hyperion Solutions and IE Group’s Financial Forecasting
and Planning Summit). He is a certified Hyperion Planning Professional and his consulting experience
covers the complete project cycle from project management, requirements gathering, design,
installation, implementation, deployment and training.

In addition to Oracle-Hyperion certified resources, Linium offers Program Managers / Project Managers
and Portfolio Managers that are ITIL® certified and PMI PMP Certified.

Linium’s Eric Helmer, “2*Oracle ACE Director

Eric Helmer, Vice President, IT  Services, Oracle Worldwide Practice is an
Oracle ACE Director. The Oracle ACE program formally recognizes advocates of Oracle technology with
strong credentials as evangelists and educators, Oracle ACE recipients are chosen based on their
significant contributions and activity in the Oracle technical community. Candidates are nominated by
anyone in the Oracle Technology and Applications communities. The program currently has two levels:
Oracle ACE and Oracle ACE Director. The baseline requirements are the same for both designations;
however, Oracle ACE Directors work more closely and formally with Oracle in terms of their community
activity.

To qualify for the Oracle ACE award, candidates meet as many of the following qualifications as possible.
®  Technical proficiency

llnlurn 9
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= Oracle-related blog

=« Oracle discussion forum activity

*  Published white paper(s) and/or article(s)
* Presentation experience

= Beta program participant

= Oracle user group member

*  QOracle certification

In addition to making ongoing contributions to the community, Oracle ACE Directors are willing to work
with Oracle more proactively to engage in opportunities to advocate QOracle Technofogy and
Applications via publishing and event presentations. Oracle ACE Directors are also expected to provide
constructive feedback to Oracle product teams.

Beyond the baseline Oracle ACE requirements, the gqualifications include: Track record of major
contributions to the community, technical and/or community-oriented

»  Good communication skills
s Ability to commit to participation in an honorary (non-compensated) capacity for 12 months

In addition to those of Oracle ACE status, benefits include:

2 Direct communication with Cracle product teams
= Annual briefing at Oracle HQ

Linium Innovations

Linium is an industry leader with innovations originating from understanding internal/external business
demands and requirements. We understand tight timelines. We understand companies have specific
procurement processes that sometimes to do not align with project deadlines. Linium LaunchPad is a
temporary development offering that gives clients access to their Hyperion application to enabie project
inception while procurement acquires the appropriate hardware. LaunchPad keeps your project
milestones on target. Upon client purchase of software license, we can proceed toward creating
environment availability.

llmum 10
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1

&l launchpad

your apps anfwhe.rc’ adytime

An Oracle Hyperion specific temporary environment solution
s Short term environment for Hyperion application builds

= Quick easy access to hardware
* Hardware / application installation in days
= Ready when you are

Deliverables
2 Development hardware environment for up to 10 concurrent users

*  Environment available within 10 business days of contract execution and proof of software license
= Hyperion and third party software installation
* lLaunchPad Development Environment

B. _ldentification of the processes/tools that will be used to measure performance regarding the
Service Levels stipulated in the Scope of Work:

Linium will document all our application maintenance, and support using weekly status reports, action
logs, issue logs, project plan, as well as use our managed services integrated process to manage all after
hours escalations.

C. A detailed description of the Respondent's ability to_provide the Authority with maximum
flexibility in terms of services provided:

To provide maximum flexibility, Linium will provide two to three dedicated resources for the duration of
the project to support the Level Il support for the application from a functional and technical support
perspective.

D. A transition plan for beginning and ending the assignment described in the SOW. The successful

Respondent (i.e. Contractor} shall implement the Transition Plan for entering the engagement within
the first week of execution of the Contract;

Linium will analyze the current environment landscape for one to two weeks in order to understand
both the functional and infrastructure foundation of the environment. Linium will document its analysis
for the environment in order to monitor and manage the application according to Level Wt support
standards.

linium 11
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Transition Plan

1. Shadow Support
In this phase, Linium team will focus on the following activities:

¢  Participate in the support activity in “shadow’ support.

¢  Analyze, resolve and simulate a minimum number {to be decided with Port Authority) of
support requests of each type covering ail the functionalities in the test environment.
This is referred to as mock or shadow support.

s Document all suppart points of the system

s Compare mock actions with those carried out in production by the Port Authority team.

*  Start acting as the secondary support team.

*  Liniurm wili start handling non criticat incidents, issues, business requests.

Port Authority Team:
s Will assist in support during this phase and will be available for consultation on
incidents/issues taken up by the Linium team.

Deliverables:
s  Shadow suppart report detailing the support requests handled by Linium team

2. Primary Support
In this phase Linium team will focus on the following activities:
»  Perform all operational support activities required for support without Port Authority
team supervision.
¢+  Take ownership on incident tracking tools usage.
o  Actas 2nd line support and take accountability of support.

Port Authority Team:
s  Will act as 3rd level support team.
. Will oversee the Linium team’s suppart, contribute to knowledge base gaps and finalize
steady state reports.

Deliverables:
e Primary support report; documenting Linium performance during the Primary support

3. Steady State
e Linium will take accountability of the HFM application Infrastructure support

e Baseline all SLAs in discussions with Port Authority.
»  Start working on support optimization using technigues like preventive maintenance,
Incident reduction, Knowledge management, and Cross training

4. During transition pianning and on-boarding
e  Provide inputs to finalize the detailed transition plan and schedule.

] Provide reasonable access to key Port Authority resources for infrastructure, interviews,
approvals and reviews.

hmum_ 12
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s Provide on-boarding support (IDs, workstations, application access etc.).

5. During Transition
. Provide detailed KT including overview sessions, guidance on relevant documentation,
ticket analysis.
s  BIS SME’s would be required to spend 8 to 10 hrs per week for transition activities.
e« Frequent Senior Management checkpoints to review KT progress.
e  Review and sign-off of the System Appreciation documents.
e  Facilitate timely issue resolution,

6. Governance

¢ Linium has an account manager who will be responsible for ensuring that Linium delivers
exceptional Services. They will partner with Port Authority Leadership team. Linium
onsite teams will report to this role.

e  Linium and Port Authority will have a daily review of activities over the prior 24 hour
period

«  Linium and Port Authority will have monthly reviews after sach close cycle to review
service levels

e Linium will also have an executive team that will be responsible for maintaining executive
relationships with Port Authority executives. The account manager reports into this
team. Bi-yearly reviews will be conducted by this team to review services levels and
expectations.

E. A dacumented methodology for the activities described in the SOW. The methodology shall
include mechanisms for improving the performance of said activities:

we will consistently monitor and manage the applications, design performance enhancements, and
improvements that will be provided on a weekly status report, and be discussing during management
meetings with Port Authority personnel. Linium’s methodology is more fully described in section G.

F A description_(confirmation) on how the System complies with the IT Controls Checklist

{Attachment H), Standards & Guidelines for Port Authority Technology {Attachment J), and the Port
Authority infarmation Security Handbook {http://www.panynj.gov/business-
opportunities/pdf/Corporate-Information-Security-Handbook. pdf);

As Hyperion has already been instalied, implemented, and configured, during the initial transition work,
Linium will monitor the current security process within shared services for user provisioning, and data
security within the Hyperion applications, as well as in the workspace, and replicate the current security
process being used to ensure that the application security standard are maintained. We will also
provide standard security out of the box reports from shared services for security controls.

linium
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G. A _documented application_management methodology for recording changes made, new

programs, documenting modifications, enhancements, upgrades, fixes and updates made to the
application or underlying software, managing the development/production/secondary environment

tting new applications or new software into production and keeping users of the application and/or

software informed;

Linium’s proven methodology for implementing business solutions, depicted below, spans the entire
project lifecycle, from requirements analysis, through solution implementation and rollout support.
Listed below are the ten milestones that our Hyperion implementation projects may typically go

through:

identify

M1 -Design & Assessment Methodology M2 - Hardware Sizing and besign

M5 - Application
Development

M3 - Installation M4 ~ Migration Steps

M6 - Testing

Innovate

M7 - Production M8 - Performance M9 - nd User

Migration Testing/Tuning Training M10- Go-Live

Inception

® M1 - Requirements Gathering

* M2 - Hardware Sizing & Design
Build/Test

= M3 - Software Installation — Development & Test

* M4 - Baseline Testing

= M5 - Application Migration & Upgrade - Development and Test

= M6 - Post-Migration Testing
Transition

= M7 - Go-Live Preparation

' MB& - Performance Testing
linium y
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M9 - Gap Training, Documentation & Final Knowledge Transfer

M1D - Go-lLive, Post-Support, Transition & implementation Review

INCEPTION

The purpose of this phase is to ensure that both parties have a thorough understanding of the project’s
scope, objectives, and administration. In addition, a project plan will be developed and agreed upon by

Port Authority and Linium. The overall strategy is to provide Port Authority with services to establish
and document requirements, associated hardware and software design, testing and transition strategy.
The following milestones witl be reached during this phase:

M1 - Requirements Gathering

Linium will conduct requirements gathering and design session’s necessary to understand functional
goals & objectives for the application. This will include the development of a detailed project plan

including any staged upgrade approach requirements.

Linium Activities:

Pre-kickoff planning and agendas

Facilitate kickoff meeting

Analyze and make recommendations for Hardware and Software requirements

Facilitate GAP workshops discussing the following items and process improvement:

= Hyperion Planning

= Current Application Design and Process

*  Financial Reports

*  Current Pain Points

& Discuss Future Feature Enhancements
Document requirements and design using GAP Analysis Approach
Develop detailed project schedule for migration
Review project budget and revise if required

Stgn-off on project plan and GAP Analysis Documentation

Port Authority Activities:

Assembie project team based on project roles

Schedule kickoff meeting

Pravide contact infarmation for project team

Attend GAP meetings

Review design documentation and gap analysis document

Signoff an the migration plan

linium
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M2 - Hardware Sizing & Design

In this milestone, Linium will confirm the appropriate hardware sizing and design. This will include
interviews with appropriate parties within the (T organization to design or modify the current
infrastructure solution.

Linium Aclivities:

= |dentify any new software that may be required to upgrade to v11.1.2.X If new enabling
software; vendor to make recommendations best suited for Port Authority - Example: VMware
vs. Oracle vM 2.1

* |dentify and document any "new" third party or other Oracle software that will required for
upgrade to v11.1.2. (Example: VMware, Informatica, WeblLogic, etc.)

»  Confirm compatibility of existing RDBMS Hyperion repository & datasource versions and identify
additional requirements for new Production environment repository.

* Deliver hardware and software infrastructure diagrams

s Deliver Pre-Installation Checklist

Port Authority Activities:
= Review hardware and software design documentation

BUILD/CONSTRUCTION

Based on Port Authority requirements, this phase focuses on activities required to install the application
software and upgrade/migrate the Port Authority application environment. Testing will be used to
confirm proper functioning of the solution. Following is an overview of this phase. The following
milestones will be reached during this phase:

M3 - Software Installation

'n this milestone the initial setup of the application software will take place. Software binaries will be
downloaded from Oracle's E-Delivery website and software installation and configuration will be
completed,

Linium Activities:
= Application Soﬁware Installation
=  Software Configuration
Port Authority Activities:
=  Hardware Setup & Server Configuration
*  Operating System
s Backup Process
"  Antivirus
* Relational Database Installation

= Complete Pre-instatlation Checklist
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M4 - Baseline Testing - Development & Production

In this milestone Linium will confirm the software installation to ensure that all application components
are working properly prior to the migration.

Linjium Activities:
s Create test applications in Planning
= Create test reports for Smartview, Planning, and Essbase Connections
» Test security provisioning

» Test aperation of client components such as SmartView, EAS, and Financial Reports

M5- Application Migration & Upgrade - Development

In this milestone Linium will migrate all applications and associated software to development and
complete the initial upgrade process.

Linjum Activities:
= Complete upgrade of all components to DEV {Planning, Essbase, Reports)

»  Migrate reports, and data source connections to DEV

=  Migrate data to DEV

= Migrate security to DEV

= Make updates to accommodate required changes in DEV
Port Authority Activities:

= Migrate Application Relational Repositories

= Migrate any custom relational tables and views

» Migrate applications and security from DEV to PROD.

M6 - Past-Migration Testing — Test & Production

in this milestone the application is tested to ensure the environment is functioning properly. This phase
ends with the signoff of a post-migration checklist. This testing also aliows a select group of users to test
against Port Authority requirements for usability, visual accuracy, and process conformity. Based on the
results obtained during post-migration testing, the solution is readied for the transition to a production
environment,

Linium Activities:
= Not Applicable, all testing will be done by Port Authority

Port Authority Activities:
» Perform post-migration testing and validation in DEV and PROD

liﬂlum 17




The Port Authority of NY & NJ RFP for Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System 4/17/2012

TRANSITION

During this phase, the application will be transitioned from a migration and testing phase to a “Go Live”
application. Linium will provide gap training to ensure end-users are prepared for any changes that may
impact them. The training will enable Port Authority end-users and system administrators to efficiently
utilize and maintain the system. The following milestones will be reached during this phase:

M7 - Go-Live Preparation

In this milestone an implementation plan is prepared tc ensure a smooth transition from Development
to the Test and Production environments. The application is successfully migrated from Development to
Test and Production before productive use of the applications begins.

Linium Activities
*  Assist Port Authority in Validation of Components in Production using Lifecycle Management

*  Assist Port Authority in Migrating 555 Objects, and make token, and configuration changes
pointing to new environment

Port Authority Activities:
* Migrate applications to PROD,
¥ Communications Plan is developed and communicated to the user community

* Update client software

M8 - Testing

In this milestone an implementation plan is prepared to ensure a smooth transition from Development
to the Production environment. The application is successfully migrated from Development or
Testing/QA to Production and productive use of the application begins.

Linium Activities:
= Test application upgrade in Prod

= Validate Environment/Performance Settings in Prod

Port Authority Activities:
» Conduct final testing on the production environment to ensure adequate performance prior to
go-live
»  Support troubleshooting & issue resolution

= Prepare test plan in coordination with Linium to validate all components are functioning as
intended

M9 - Gap Training, Documentation & Final Knowledge Transfer

In this milestone, training documents are completed and end-users are trained and prepared to use the
system. Also in this step, documentation detailing the system processes and procedures for the
functional administrator to maintain the application will be updated. Knowledge transfer sessions will
be conducted to ensure that Port Authority administrators are readied to maintain and support the
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application environment,
Linium Activities:
= Systems training

» Conduct Application Administrator Training — Knowledge transfer to the functional system
administrator is completed.

=  GAP Training on changes to the system

Port Authority Activities:
= System Administration Guide updated

= Knowledge Transfer Sessions are attended

M10 - Go-Live, Post-Suppeort, Transition & Implementation Review

In this milestone the applications are released for productive use. Linium will provide support for
system administrator and end users and ensure that Port Autharity can support the application and
users going forward. An implementation review will also be conducted to analyze lessons learned and
discuss successful aspects of the engagement.

Linium Activities:

= Provide Post Support once Upgrade is completed

Port Authority Activities:

=  Communicate cutover to the end-user community

®=  (Ongoing support activities are activate
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H. A documented methodology for the development and issuance of annual customer plans.

These plans will be used to determine the viability of software and hardware use of the Budget

PRO System. The Authority will use such plans during its annual Budget process, for establishing both
the Authority's corporate user expense budgets:

As part of Linium’'s implementation plan M1 to M10, when performing the GAP analysis, Linium will also
conduct an analysis before any major requirements change. Alternatively, Linium will meet with
PANYNJ each year for one week and review any Gaps within the current system to determine the
changes that are required as part of business requirements or system issues.

L._A statement of the Respondent’s ability and prior experience in working with complex IT corporate
environments:

Case Studies

1. Themas Jefferson University Hospital {TIUH)

TJUR was trapped using a system that was not intended for budgeting purposes and was encumbered
by an Excel-based process that required first loading budgets that were created in Excel. Budgets details
were disparate and lost between the various departments since the higher level of detail was only
provided to finance. The reporting from this system did not allow “clean budget to actual variance
reporting” in a meaningful manner. Finance was then left with had no insight to any trending in the
departments and remained clueless when it came to revenue vs. expenses.

Linium designed and implemented a comprehensive Hyperion Planning/Essbase/Reports/Web Analysis
process for collecting, consolidating and reporting on budget data through an interactive dashboard
process. The dashbeard process in Web Analysis is now used in manthly VP reviews with the CFO/COO0.
The analysis now includes accurate the actual/budget/statistical data in trending modes, graphs,
revenue vs. stats, expenses vs. stats etc. LIVE on the system. Information that was not available or
accurate with the previous system.

Insightful, accurate financial information greatly benefitted TIUH almost immediately. The new system
reduced their first year post-system implementation budget cycle time by about 8 weeks. By the second
year the total reduction was 12 weeks from open to board reports. The Web Analysis system has
revolutionized their monthly VP meeting process by providing invaluable accurate information for VPs -
enabling them to work closely with their CFOs and to spot important business trends criticat in their
business decision making through the enhanced data visualization graphic features.

2. Liguor Control Board of Ontario {LCBO)

LCBO chose to partner with Linium to implement Oracle Hyperion Planning in order to deliver a
company-wide planning and analytics solution replacing the current combination of Excel templates and
Oracle Financial Analyzer (“OFA”). To meet LCBQ’s commitment to streamlining the budgeting process
and improving the ease of which users are able to revise and analyze their budgets, the Financial
Planning Department purchased Oracle Hyperion Planning and the Workforce & Capital Planning
Modules and engaged the professional services of Linium, LLC. The Linium team worked collaboratively
work with LCBO in order to understand the current business process, design and implement a solution
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based the current LCBO best practice as well as industry best practice with the foliowing objectives
achieved:

* Replace the existing Oracle Financial Analyzer (OFA) budgeting application and the numerous Excel
budget templates

s Deployed an integrated currency planning, forecasting and analysis system to approximately 200
users supporting revenue, expense, labor, capital planning, and Financial Statement consolidated
planning including Income Statement and Balance Sheet

¢ Interfaced with multiple systems including Oracle General Ledger, Project Accounting, Fixed Assets,
and other custom systems

s Shortened the budgeting cycle by eliminating the effort and time needed to develop and maintain
Excel budget templates, as well as allow users to easily revise their budgets and quickly determine
the impact of their revisions at a Divisional and Corporate level

» Improved communication and distribution of budget data

* Generated reports at both a summary level and a detailed level by Account and Cost Center

» (Created calculations for driver based planning, allocations, and aggregations

During the Requirements Phase, Linium assessed current-state inputs, and documented the current
state and to be budgeting and planning processes with the results written as a Design Document
outlining the details of the development.

High Level Scope Deliverables were set as:

» Develop Requirements/Design Document and Project Plan

» Assist in the Installation of Development and QA Environments

» Develop Planning Application for Revenue, Capital, Workforce Planning, and Consolidation/Financial
Statements

+ Develop Dsta Integration with flat files

e Develop Testing/Test Scenarios for Conference Room Pilots and UAT along with LCBO

s Develop Training Plan for Train-the-Trainer Approach

s Provide Post Support for Solution

e Deploy Solution ta 200 Users

3. Wichita Public Schools
The WPS Budgeting Department was committed to streamlining the budgeting cycle and improving the

process by which users were able to revise and analyze data utilizing the Hyperion Planning solution. In
order to deploy this solution, WPS engaged the professional services of Linium. The Linium team worked
in coltaboration with WPS in order to design and impiement a budgeting system incorporating key
business processes and using current best practices.

WPS partnered with Linium to achieve the following:

» Deploy an integrated planning, reporting and analysis system to approximately 25 users.

» Interface with multiple systems: Oracle Financials, PeopleSoft HR, eSIS (School Enroliment data} utilizing
flat files and a staging area to obtain the data.

¢ Reduce the current budgeting cycle by eliminating the time and effort needed to develop and maintain
Excel budget templates, as well as allow users to easily revise budgets and quickly determine the impact
of revisions.
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Reduce time coordinating and processing data and increase time analyzing proposed budgets, and
conducting critica! “what-if’ scenarios.

Simplify the multiple version process used to produce the budget iterations.

Provide improvements for communication and distribution of budget data.

Provide a formal etectronic approval and tracking process for the budget.

Generate reports at both a summary level and a detailed level by Account, Fund, Program, Department,
Building and State Code. Specifically, a budget book is produced at the end of the process which is
comprised of a series of reports. Ideally, this book will consolidate all account justifications entered to aid
in the budget approval process.

Provide mentaring, knowledge transfer and documentation throughout the project for the WPS Budget
team to effectively maintain the system after ‘go live’,

Deliver project on time, and on budget.

Project Scope
During the Requirements Phase, Linium assessed current-state inputs, and documented the current

state budgeting and planning processes. The result of the Requirements Phase is this Design Document
outlining the details of the development to be performed during this phase of the project.

High Level Scope Deliverables

Provide a Requirements/Design Document and Project Plan

Install Hyperion software an the Test/Production Environment and provide mentoring so that MiS can
replicate the process for production installation activities.

Develop Planning Application for Revenue, Expense and Public Sector Planning for HR Planning

Develop Reporting Application (native Essbase) that initially loaded with 1 years of Historical Actual and 1
year of Budget data as well as the current year's Actual and Budget data.

Develop Data integration with flat files and create a repeatable automated process for metadata and data
updates.

Develop Testing/Test Scenarios for Conference Room Pilots and UAT in collaboration with WPS.,

Develop and provide a training manual to be used in training the budget team (25 users), which may also
be suitable for future training as more users are identified

Provide an on-site training session on Hyperion Planning, Smartview and Hyperion Reports for 25 users,
Develop and provide detailed documentation of the Planning and Reporting applications so that MIS and
Budget Administrator can maintain the applications.

linium "




The Port Authority of NY & NJ RFP for Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System 4/17/2012

3. Staffing Plan

If a consultant becomes sick on the project, Linium will provide a remote consuitant, generally within 2
to 4 hours. Linium will ensure that both the IT and Functional resources will be able to understand each
other’s support requirements Linium will discuss with the Port Authority any vacation schedule, and
coordinate so that not more than one resource is on vacation at a time, and provide the appropriate
additional resource to swap in during the vacation schedule.

Linium will work Monday to Thursday 8 to 5 EST onsite, and Fridays remotely 81to 5 EST. We will assume
20 hours of after hours support per month.

Please refer to Appendrx D for Resumes.
E_.Consultan Narmie' ) LTt

o Project; R'oleﬂ

Note: Linium provides the following slote of employees to be dedicoted to Port Authority as specified in
this Response. However, Linium reserves the right to make resource assignment substitutions based on
the actual project start date and any unforeseen personne! situgtions that may arise (between Response
submission and project start) that prevent any of the listed employees from performing on the project.
Substitutions will be of equal or better skills.

4. Management Plan
Management Plan: The Respondent shall describe in detail its experience, including relevant contracts
performed during the last three years its financial capability and management structure, and other

supporting_documentation demonstrating _its _ability to perform and manage the work. The
‘Management Plan shall: :

a. Describe the Respondent's overall organizational structure and how such structure will be
employed to manage the work performed under the contract:

Linium'’s is structured to allow maximum flexibility in its support of its customers. The organization is
mature enough to have a formal reporting structure and a deep technical bench while remaining agile
enough to react quickly and make decisions efficiently. This benefits both our employees and our
customers. Below is a chart of the key players who will be involved in supporting Linium’s relationship
with PANYNJ and the role of each within Linium’s arganization. This chart also defines the escalation
path within Linium that Linium & PANYNJ would follow in the event of an issue that the onsite support
team can’t adequately address.
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Linium Organization Chart
Key Players for PANYNJ) BudgetPro Managed Services
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b. Describe the support structure in place to administer application management services contracts

and describe the management tools and techniques used to manage and control such contracts;

The organization chart referenced in the previous section outlines the management structure in place to
suppaort the Linium team members assigned to the managed services contract with PANYNJ. The on-site
consultants would be members of the Financial Technology Solutions delivery practice. One consultant
would be responsible for day-to-day Level 2 support including operational support, application
maintenance and database administration. The other consultant would play a more senior role of lead
developer and technical team manager. He or she would perform any required BudgetPro application
enhancements and would augment the efforts of the operational support consultant as required. This
senior person would be Linium’s main point of contact for PANYNJ's BudgetPro support team members
(Technology Services, Management & Budget, etc), would create status reparts for and conduct weekly
status meetings with the BudgetPro suppoert team, and would facilitate creating the annual budget
estimate for BudgetPro support required from Linium in the following year.

Should additional technical resources be required during the year, Linium will provide, with PANYNJ pre-
approval, one or mare consultants from its Financial Technology Solutions team to supplement the two-
person team. Issues of any kind can be escalated via the reporting paths outlined in the organization
chart. Any technical issues will be escalated to the VP of Financial Technology Solutions. Any non-
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technical issues will be escalated to the VP Public Sector Sales who is also responsible for managing the
business relationship between Linium and PANYNJ,

c. Include organizational charts, descriptions of project management and quality assurance programs
and other relevant material to demonstrate the Respondent's management and approach;

Refer above Section a.

d. Include the Respondent's M/WBE Participation Plan.

Linium has attached the appropriate M/WBE Participation Plan as Appendix E to this document.
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G. Acknowledgement of Addenda

Please find the attached signed Addendum #1 and #2 pertaining this this RFP.
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THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ
PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT

TWO MONTGOMERY STREET, 3*° FLOOR
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Date: 4/5/12
ADDENDUM #1

To prospective respondents on the Selection Process Document for Suppart for the Port Authority’s
Hyperion-Based Budget PRO System

Responses due on April 20, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
Questions due on April 5, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
The following change Is hereby made in the Selection Process Document:

1. Section £.3 {Staffing Plan), pg. 9: Add the following as subsection (e} to this Section: “The
Respondent shall also indicate the sources (e.g. subcontractors, consultants, staff from the
current contractor that provides maintenance of the Authority’s Budget PRO System, etc.), if
any, it will utilize to staff the functlons required for this Contract. The Respondent shall state
whether such sources have provided such services on similar projects for the Respondent or for
other firms or organizations, and Include a list indicating speclfic contracts and describing the
business relationship utilized to provide such services, the past experience of key personnel and
thelr length of service with the firm, and thelr functions and responsibllities relative to a
comparable contract,

This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your response upon submission. in case
any Respondent fails to conform to these instructions, its response will nevertheless be construed as
though this communication had been so physically annexed and initlaled.

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

KATHY LESLIE WHELAN, MANAGER
PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION.

~
RESPDNDENT'SNAME:/A_.VQ‘ \; /LK/\
mviaLED: xWYb (7 ? -
DATE: _YIh|Zen="

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO JAMES SUMMERVILLE, WHO CAN
BE REACHED AT JSUMMERVILLE @ PANYNI.GOV and 201-395-3454



http://ATJSUMMERVlLLEtSPANYNJ.GOV

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY& NJ
PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT

TWO MONTGOMERY STREET, 3*° FLOOR
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Date: 4/10/12
ADDENDUM #2

To prospective respondents on the Selection Process Document for Support for the Port Authority’s
Hyperlon-Based Budget PRO System

Responses originally due on April 20, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
Responses now due on April 17, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM
The following changes are hereby made in the Selection Process Document:

1. The Due Date for Responses has been changed to April 17, 2012, no later than 2:00 PM.
2. Replace the words “Proposer” and “Proposal” throughout the Selection Process Document with
the words “Respandent” and “Response,” respectively,

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The following information is made available in response to questions submitted by prospective
respondents to the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey’s (the "Port Authority” or the
“Authority”) Selection Process Document for a Real Estate Lease Administration and Database System.

It addresses only those questions that the Port Authority has deemed to require additional information
and/or clarification. The fact that information has not been supplied with respect to any questions
asked by a Respondent does not mean or imply anything (nor should it be deemed to have any meaning,
construction or Implication) with respect to the terms and provisions of the Request for Information,
which will be construed without reference to such questions.

The Port Authority makes no representations, warrantles or guarantees that the information contained
herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information accurately represents the conditions that
would be encountered during the performance of the Contract. The furnishing of such information by
the Port Authority shall not create or be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any
reason whatsoever and each Respondent, by submitting its response, expressly agrees that It has not
relied upon the foregoing Information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible
therefor in any manner whatsoever. Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no representation,
statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers, agents, representatives, or
employees, orally or in writing, shall impair or limit the effect of the warranties of the Respondent
required by this Request for Information and the Respondent agrees that it shall not hold the Port
Authority llable or responsible therefor In any manner whatsoever.




‘Questions / Requests

Answers

1. Regarding the Port Authority’s intention to

contact the Respondent’s references:

a)  WhatIs the time-frame contact will be
made to the references?

b} Canyou provide us with the email address
that will be used so that we can be sure
that your message does not get caught in
SPAM blockers?

c) Wil references be required to complete a
questionnaire? If so, how extensive will the
questionnalre be?

a) The Authority may contact the references provided in
the Responses shortly after recelpt of the Responses.

b) jsummervilie@panynj.gov

¢} The Authority intends ta contact the references by
email and request responses by emall,

Is there @ mechanism for rate
increases/renewal at the end of contract
extension year? New bid?

For support of the Budget PRO System after the expiry of
the Contract’s aption period, if exercised, the Authority
will conslder the acquisition of such support In the option
period of the Contract,

Provide data relating to volume and number of
issues by category {calls, incidents, defects and

enhancements) by yaar available within Track It
tool (from origination to closure).

The information is not available in the requested format
(calls by incidents, etc.).

Conflrm MBE (12%) and WBE (5%) interest and
participation level as noted in SOW?

The selected Respondent Is expected to “use good falth
effarts to provide for meaningful participation by the
Port Authority certified M/WBEs as defined in” the
Setection Process Document, “in the purchasing and
subcontracting opportunities assoclated with this
contract, inciuding purchase of equipment, supplies and
labor services” (Section E, pg. 4 of the Selectlon Process
Document}. “The Contractor [i.e. selected Respondent]
shall use good faith efforts to achieve participation
equivalent to 12% of the total Contract price for MBEs
and 5% of the total Contract price for WBEs” (Section E,
pg. 5 of the Selection Process Document).

Based upon the current staff's extensive
experience in supporting the present Budget
PRO environment working for the incumbent, is
the Incumbent aware that their resources may
be needed to help execute a quick transition to
a new vendor?

The Authority will communicate the need expresséd in
the referenced question to the current Budget PRO
Support Vendor's {current contractor’s) staff,

Provide the number of application
enhancements {> 100 hours of work)
completed for each of the last 2 years?

Over the last two years, there have been three major
application enhancements (defined as enhancements
requiring more than 100 hours of work).

How many application enhancements (> 100
hours of work) does the Authority anticipate
for the upcoming year?

The Authority anticipates approximately one major
application enhancement (requiring more than 100 hours

of work) in the upcoming year.
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8. Provide the aliocation {in percentage) of the
existing team’s work effort for the prior year
for the primary support areas: Operational
Support, Application Maintenance and Support,
and Database Administration?

Operational Sypport: approximately 40%
Anplication Maintenance & Support: approximately 40%
Datahase Administration: approximately 20%

9. What has been the Authority’s primary
concerns or “pain points” with BudgetPro
support in the past year?

There have not been any “primary concerns” or “pain
points” with Butget PRO support provided to the
Autharity in the past year.

10. Does the Authority expect "application
enhancements” per Section 3.2 to be priced In
the category "Application Maintenance and
Support” in the pricing forms?

Major Application Enhancements {requiring more than
100 hours of work) shall be priced according to the hourly
rates in Sections 1.B and 2,B of the Selection Process
Document’s Price Forms (Attachment E), as accepted by
the Authority.

Minor Application Enhancements (requiring less than 100
hours of work} shall bé included in the “Application
Maintenance and Support” fleld of Sectlons 1.Aand 2.A
of the Selection Process Document’s Price Forms
{Attachment E), as accepted by the Authority.

11, Regarding certifications:

a. TheQ £ e 11.1.2 implementation
Specialist is granted after achieving both
Developer and Architect expert
certifications. Though not listed in the
Selected Process Document, will the Port
Authority accept this particular
certification?

b. Incases where Oracle 11.1.2 tests have not
yet been released, will prior level
certifications be acceptable to commence
work with the expectation that
tertifications are advanced as tests become
avallable?

¢. The Oracle B+ certification appears to be
on a sunset plan. Based an the advice cited
here, will you agree to waive this
requirement in favor of waiting for
appropriate tests to be offered for current
software? The certification website now
says for Hyperion Bl+ Certlfled Expert:
"While Oracle stiil recognizes and offers this
certification, it is expected that this
certification will become obsolete as the
Hyperlon suite and other Oracle toolsets
are fully Integrated into QBIEE and
customers migrate to those solutions. This

The Authority requires Respondents to convey, in the
Staffing Plans, the lavel of achieved Oracle certification
{by proposed staff and organization) reievant to the work
required by the Scope of Work. The Authority will
evaluate the levels of Qracle certification achieved by the
Respandents and their proposed staff in its overall
evaluation of the Responses,




certification represents professionals with a
strong knowledge of Hyperion Bi+
Infrastructure administration and
installation processes. The exam required,
Hyperlon System 9 Bl+ 9.3 Administrator,
con be prepared for by attending Hyperion
Reporting & Analysis 11.1.2 Administration.
However, it is Important to note thot the
Bl+ platfarm that s covered in the exam no
longer exists, so it Is unlikely that all
examination toplcs will be covered in the
course.”

d. Which roles in the Selection Process
Document does the Port Authority require
these certifications?

12. What is the total size of the pon-concurrent
BudgetPro user population?

There are approximately 250 non-concurrent users of
Budget PRO within the Authority.

13. For onsite support during business hours, will
BudgetPro support vendor's personnel be
located separately from the user community or
in close proximity?

For onsite support, the Contractor’'s staff will be located
in close proximity to the primary user community, which
resides in the Management and Budget Department of
the Authority. However, since the larger user community
is located at different facllities, the Contractor's staff will
necessarily be located separately from the larger user
community. Nonetheless, in performing the Scope of
Work, the Contractor's staff will communicate only with
the Authority’s Contract Manager and the primary user
community {Management & Budget Department).

14.

a. Do the Authority have a minimum staffing
leve| In mind In terms of daily on-site
support during business hours (i.e. for a
vendor plan involving multiple staff
members, do all BudgetPro approved
resources need to be onsite at the same
time? Is this at the discretion of the
Contractor as long as service |evels are
met?)

- b, Are SAP or PecpleSoft skills required for
staffing the BudgetPro support team?

a. “Asdescribed In Section 8.15 of Attachment C (Scope
of Work) of the Selection Process Document, the
Authority expects that key team members of the
selected Respondent {i.e. Contractor), including the
Account Manager if he or she is considered by the
Authority and the Contractor to be part of the core
team performing the required services, to perform ali
their work on Authority premises [Monday through
Friday, 8:00AM to 5:00PM] at the location designated
by the Authority, except where noted otherwise In
the Contract or in the selected Respondent’s {l.e.
Contractor's) Response to the Selection Process
Document, as accepted by the Authority. Therefore,
the Authority will conslder alternative staffing models
(i.e. staffing provided offsite or staffing provided
both onsite and offsite according to the categories
of services, etc.) from the Respondents, provided
that such staffing models meet the (operational,
business, technological, security, etc.) requirements
listed herein.”




Therefore, the Autharity will consider and evaluate
alternative staffing plans offered by the Respondents.

b, No.

15, How many new BudgetPro users were set up

and trained in the past year?

Approximately 20 people were set up as Budget PRO
users within the past year. (This number of new users
should be considered within the relatively constant
number of total Budget PRO users conveyed in the
answer to question 12, above.)

16. How many Level 1 hotline calls were logged last

year? How many were converted to Level 2
after triage? .

Approximately 120 Level 1 calls were received last year,
45 of which were escalated to Level 2.

17. Does the Authoerity use Hyperion Planning task

Iists to guide users through financial processes?

The Authority does not use Hyperion Planning task lists to
guide users through financlal processes.

18. Does the Authorlty use Hyperion Planning

workflow functionality to control the timing,
status and release of budgets and forecasts?

Presently, the Authority does not use Hyperion Planning
workflow functionality to control the timing, status and
release of budgets and forecasts.

19. What type and level of documentation exists

for the applications to be supported?

The Authority uses electronic libraries with application
and technical documentation, which are, to the extent
known, updated with the latest information.

20. Does tha current documentation comply with

the Authority’s published IT Control
Requirements?

Yo the extent known, the current documentation
complies with the Authority’s published IT Control
Requirements.

21. What Is your preferred transition timing to

work alongside the outgoing support vendor?

With respect to transition, the selected Respondent {}.e.
Contractor) shall Interact, as necessary, with the outgoing
contractor {support vendor) until May 24, 2012.

22. If requests arise for supplemental application

development work arise, what are the
expectations for the Authority’s new BudgetPro
support vendor and how does this related to
the "Extra Work” clause in the proposed
canteact?

Major enhancements to the applicatlons comprising
Budget PRO shall be priced under the “Miscellaneous
Tasks” sections of the Selection Process Document’s price
forms, as approved by the Authority. Work that is
considered by the Authority and the Contractor not to be
major enhancements {generally, work less than 100
hours} shali be payable according to the price provided
for “Application Maintenance and Support” In the
Authority-approved price forms.

23. What [s the “twice per” cycle mentioned for

SAP and PeopleSoft data loads In SOW Section
1.4 {A)?

SAP: Flat file uploads for preliminary and final monthly
general ledger data.

PeopleSoft: Overtime data loads an a monthly basis and -
an Initial load of employee data at the start of each
budget cycle.

Note that extracts from Budget PRO are uploaded into
SAP for revenue data and operating major work
rograms.

24. Do users provide Hyperion Planning Inputs

primarily through web forms or Exce! Smart

The Authority’s user community primarily uses web
forms. However, the Authority’s primary user community




View templates or is there a mixture of both?

(Le. Management & Budget Department) uses the
Essbase Excel add-in to perform lock and sends,

25,

Regarding the third-party Support Detail
Reporting (SDR), this too! appears to be an in-
house Oracle web application written in Java.
Does adequate formal documentation exlst to
enable transition to a new support team?

To the extent known, there is such adequate formal
documentatton.

26.

If alternative tools and approaches to providing
SDR functionality, how would the Authority
propose such alternatives be presented?

The Authority expects the selected Respondent (i.e.
Contractor) to suggest such alternatives.

27,

Within Hyperion Financial Reports (HFR), does

the Authorlty currently schedule and distribute
report books or just maintain a required set of
individual reports and report books?

The Autharity maintains a required set of individual
reports and report books.

28.

Will the new support vendor be expected to
create and validate new HFR reports? Is so,
how many such request were typical per year in
recent years?

The selected Respondent (i.e. Contractor) will be
expected to create and valldate HFR reports. There were

approximately 12 such reports in the last year.

29.

Daes the list of Hyperion applications provided
in the BudgetPro support SOW indicate Pian
Types or Planning Applications with one or
move plan types each?

Planning Applications with one or more plan type each.

30.

Of the two data architectures available within
Essbase, does the Authority use both BSO and
ASO Essbase cubes?

The Authority uses BSO.

31

Describe the boundaries of responsibility for
Pameroy as your technology support vendor.
For exampie: A user reports a problem
resulting In a work ticket for your BudgetPro
support vendor. If there Is be a problem with
an underlying Hyperion software service, what
is the partnering protocol for discussion and
handoff 1o Pomerory?

The Authority expects Pomeroy to address issues related
to the hardware and operating system of Budget Pro,

Users convey issues to the Authority’s Management and
Budget Department (the primary user community). Such
Department decides the severity of the issue (i.e. Level 1
or 2), and whether such Issues could be related to the
aforementioned hardware and operating system.

32.

Regarding after-hours support {outside of 8a -
5p), will the Authority need only remadial
maintenance or will it need on-call suppart in
case of emergencies as well? In other words,
for what types of support will Authority need
after hours support? {The Selection Process
Document seems to indicate only for remedial
maintenance, but there may be a potential
need for on-call support for emergencies as
well.)

For after-hours support, the Authority expects the
Contractor to be available for remedial maintenance,
which includes on-call support in case of emergencles.

33.

It appears that the functional business owner
expects all resources onsite. Will the Authority
permit a combined service model using onsite
and offshore resources?

See the response to question 14.a, above,




34. Would it be acceptable to provide a Level 2 See the response to question 14,3, ahave.
support modei that is accessible by an 800# but
staffed by offshore resources?

This communication should be Initlaled by you and annexed to your response upon submission, In case
any Respondent fails to conform to these instructions, its response will nevertheless be construed as
though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed.

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & N

KATHY LESLIE WHELAN, MANAGER
PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION

RESPONDENT’S NAME:_a’_lV\

INITIALED: S~
DATE: s \ ! 17
BR] T

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO JAMES SUMMERVILLE, WHO CAN
BE REACHED AT JSUMMERVILLE@PANYNJ, GOV and 201-395-3454
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H. Acceptance of General Contract Provisions

Linium does not take any exceptions to the General Contract Provisions.

. M/WBE Plan

Please find the attached M/WBE Plan compieted in accordance with the M/WBE Subcontracting
Provisions of this RFP and provided in Appendix E.

linium 27
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Appendix A — Articles of Incorporation
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Articles of Organization
of
oRegources, LLC

Under Soction 203 of the New York Limited Liability Company Law

Filed By: MICHAEL J. HANNAH ESQ.
11 SUNSET DRIVE
LATHAM, NEW YORK 12110




Articles of Organization
ot
eResources, LLC

Under Section 203 of the Limited Liability Company Law
of the State of New York

I am a natural person of gt least the age of eighteen (18) years and, acting as
organizer of a limited llability company pursuant to Sectlon 206 of the Limited Liabllity

Company Law of the State of New York, | HEREBY CERTIFY:
ARTICLE I: UMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME
The name ot the limited Hability company is:

6Resources, LLC

ARYICLE N: COMPANY OFFICE

The county withln this state in which the office of the limited liabllity company
i3 to be located Is:

ALBANY

ARTICLE Ill. SECRETARY OF STATE IS AGENT OF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

The Secretary of State of tha State of New York is hereby designated as the
agent of the limited lability company upon whom process against it may be served
and the post office address to which the Secretary of State shall mail a copy of any
process against it served upon him is:

Offlce and Post Office Address:

eResources, LLC
98 Wolf Road, Suite 10
Albany, New York 122056




ARTICLE 1V: DURATION OF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
The duratlon of the limited liability company is perpetual.
ARTICLE V: MANAGEMENT OF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
The limited llability company ls to be managed by one member thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and subscribed these
Articles for the purposes of forming the limited Hability company under the laws of the
State of New York and does affirm the foregoing as true under the penalties of
petjury this 5th day of April, 2000.

Yt ST

Michael J. Hadrfah Esq., ORGANIZER
QOtfice and Post Office Address:

EX.1
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF

ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION

" — i 1

OF

ERESOURCES, LLC
Under Section 211 of the Limited Liability Company Law

FIRST: The name of the limited liability eompany is: ERESOURCES, LLC

SECOND:  The date of the filing of the articles of organization is: April 9,2002.

THIRD: The amendment effected by this certificate of amendment Is as follows:

Article I of the Articles of Organfzation relating to the name of the Hmited liability
company is hereby amended to read as follows:

The name of the limited liabitity company is: LINIUM, LLC
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Appendix B — Financial Information

A. Certified Financial Statements

Linium's consolidated financial statements and independent accountants’ compilation report are
provided under a separate cover via US Mail to this RFP response.

B. Statement of Work

Please find the attached Statement of Work (SOW) reflecting a Linium Hyperion Planning project.

A high-level overview of the project details are as foilows:

| Project Name: ' ] | University of Pennsylvania Health System
, Description of Work: Implementation of:

- | Hyperion Planning v11.1.2.1

Oracle Data Integrator

Hyperion Reports v11,1.2.1

' R 7 e , | Hyperion Essbase

. Annual Dollar Value U B 5890,800
Locatlon {City, State) T _____; Philadelphia, PA
. Current Percentage of Compieted Work_ _j 95%
' Expected Date for Completion | To be competed April 2012
Contact Name (person most familiar wnth David Honma, CPA

- work performed}) Director - Finance & Systems

i (267) 414-2249

‘ | david.honma@uphs.upenn.edu

C. Banking Institution Information

The following section details Linium’s banking institution information, including Linium’s Federal
Employer Identification Number and Dun and Bradstreet number. Please note that Linium has not
furnished information to any credit service.

KeyBank
| 155 wolf Rd
Albany NY 12205

518-453-1612
Ex.1

R TR 511512
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